
The YouTube channel "City of Franklin WI" will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA*
TUESDAY SEPTEMBER 5, 2023 AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order, Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance.

B. Citizen Comment Period.

C. Approval ofMinutes: Regular Common Council Meeting ofAugust 15, 2023.

D. Hearings.

E. Organizational - The Mayor has made the following appointment for Council confirmation:

Kristin Kurutz, 6768 S. 35th St., Ald. Dist. 3 - Mayor Appointment for Board of Review for a 3
year term expiring 04/20/26..

F. Letters and Petitions.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. Franklin Civic Celebrations Commission Report for the June 30-July 2, 2023 Civic

Celebrations Event and a Request for Spending Authority for 2024 and Summary of
2023 Activities.

2. West Elm Road Underground Storage Feasibility Report.
3. Request from the Franklin Fire Department for Approval/Extension of the "Milwaukee

County Equipment Sharing Agreement."
4. Request from Franklin Fire Department for Approval to Purchase Additional

Firefighting Hose and Related Hardware at a Cost not to Exceed $36,000.
5. Authorize a Budget Amendment Request for Municipal Court Staffing Needs.
6. A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute a Development Agreement with

the Developer of Woodfield Trail Condominiums, Located at 12000 W. Loomis Road
(TKN 891 9011 000).

7. A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute an Agreement with Carl
Collective (Trozzolo Creative Resources Inc.), for Marketing Materials Development
Professional Services.

8. A Resolution Authorizing the Installation of a Fence within the 20-foot Public Sanitary
Easement Upon Lot 14 in Block 11 in Southview Estates Addition No. 1, Being a re-



Common Council Meeting Agenda
September 5, 2023
Page 2

division of Outlot 1, Block 7, Southview Estates, and a part of the SW 1/4 of Section
10, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County,
Wisconsin (7534 South 69th Street) (TKN 791-0182-000) (Glenn and Janet
Mittelstadt, Applicant).

9. A Resolution to Execute a State/Municipal Financial Agreement and a State/Municipal
Maintenance Agreement for S. 27th Street (STH 241) from W. Elm Road to W. Villa
Drive (ID 2265-09-71) for $3,546,990.

10. A Resolution to Enter a Memorandum of Agreement with the Wisconsin Department
of Transportation for 116th Street Trail (ID 2976-00-02).

11. Authorization to Add an Associate Planner Position to the Planning Department.
12. Continued Discussion of a W. Puetz Road Pathway from S. 76th Street to W. St.

Martins Road.
13. A Resolution Imposing Conditions and Restrictions for the Approval of a Special Use

for a Sports Training Facility Use Upon Property Located at 6814 S. 112th Street (Bion
Strength and Conditioning LLC, Applicant).

14. Discussion Regarding Meeting Time Change for Plan Commission.
15. Establish 2023 Trick or Treat.
16. Confirmation of the Appointment of Justin Ligocki as the Director of Inspection

Services. The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats.
§19.85(1)(c) and (f) to consider employment, promotion, compensation, or
performance evaluation data of a public employee over which the Common Council
has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility and to consider financial, social, or personal
histories of specific persons which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have a
substantial adverse effect upon the reputation of any person referred to in such histories
and may re-enter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

17. BPC County Land, LLC v City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County Circuit Court Case
Nos. 2019-CV-8963 and 2021-CV-5581. The Common Council may enter closed
session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel for the
Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the
body with respect to the subject litigations, and to reenter open session at the same
place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

18. Velo Village Apartments, LLC v City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County Circuit Court
Case No. 2023-CV-5465. The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to
Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel for the Common Council who is
rendering advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to the
subject litigation, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such
matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

19. City personnel performance evaluation. The Common Council may enter closed
session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(c), considering employment, promotion,
compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the
governing body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility, Wis. Stat. §19.85(1)(t),
considering financial, medical, social, or personal histories or disciplinary data of
specific persons, preliminary consideration of specific personnel problems, or the



Common Council Meeting Agenda
September 5, 2023
Page 3

investigation of charges against specific persons except where par. (b) applies which, if
discussed in public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse effect upon the
reputation of any person referred to in such histories or data, or involved in such
problems or investigations, and Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(g), conferring with legal counsel
for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy
to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is likely to become
involved, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

H. Licenses and Permits: License Committee Meeting of September 5, 2023.

I. Bills.
Request for Approval ofVouchers and Payroll.

J. Adjournment.

Supportmng documentation and details of these agenda Items are available at Caty Hall during normal business hours

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts wll be made to accommodate the needs of disabled mndrv1duals through appropr1ate ands
and services For add1tonal information, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500]

REMINDERS:

September 7
September 19
September 21
October 3
October 5

Plan Commission
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission

7:00 p.m.
6:30 p.m.
7:00 p.m.
6:30 p.m.
7:00 p.m.



BLANK PAGE



ROLL CALL A.

CITIZEN COMMENT B.

MINUTES C.
AUGUST 1, 2023

PUBLIC HEALTH G.l.
CONTRACT GRANTS

CENTERS FOR DISEASE G.2.
CONTROL GRANT FOR
COVID-19 MITIGATION
AND RECOVERY

PURCHASE HEALTH G.3
DEPARTMENT
VEHICLE APPROVED IN
2022 BUDGET

CONTRACT WITH G.4.
ADAIR FLOORS FOR
HEALTH WING
CARPETING

ACCEPT DONATIONS G.5.
FROM MULTIPLE
DONORS FOR ANNUAL
BIKE RODEO

c.
CITY OF FRANKLIN

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING
AUGUST 15, 2023

MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Franklin Common Council was held on
August 15, 2023, and was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor
Nelson in the Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis
Road, Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were present:
Alderman Ed Holpfer, Alderwoman Michelle Eichmann, Alderman
Yousef Hasan, Alderman Alderwoman Courtney Day, Alderman Mike
Barber, and Alderman Jason Craig. Also in attendance were Director
of Administration Kelly Hersh, City Engineer Glen Morrow, City
Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski, and City Clerk Karen Kastenson.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:31p.m. and was closed at
6:34p.m.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the amended minutes of the
Common Council meeting of August 1, 2023, as amended. Seconded
by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to authorize the Director of Health and
Human Services to accept the 2023 Division of Public Health
Consolidated Contracts to continue funding Health Department grants.
Seconded by Alderwoman Day. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to authorize the Director of Health and
Human Services to accept the updated Centers for Disease Control
Public Health Workforce Development Grant for COVID-19
mitigation and recovery efforts. Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to authorize the Director of Health and
Human Services to purchase a Health Department Vehicle as indicated
in the 2022 Approved City of Franklin Health Department Budget.
Seconded by Alderwoman Day. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to authorize the Director of Health and
Human Services to execute a contract with Adair Floors for carpeting
in the Health Wing. Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye
except Alderwoman Eichmann abstained from the vote; motion
carried.

Alderman Barber moved to authorize the Director of Health and
Human Services to accept monetary donations in the amount of $2, 100
for the Annual Bike Rodeo. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted
Aye; motion carried.



Common Council Meeting
August 15, 2023
Page 2

ACCEPT DONATION G.6.
FROM FRANKLIN
LIONESS LIONS CLUB
FOR COMMUNITY
HEALTH
PROGRAMMING

RES. 2023-8028 G.7.
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
OF WATERMAIN
EXTENSION ON W.
MINNESOTA AVE.

RES. 2023-8029 G.8.
PURCHASE WETLANDS
MITIGATION CREDITS
FROM BARNES PRAIRIE
WETLAND
MITIGATION BANK
FOR S. 116" STREET
TRAIL PROJECT

RES. 2023-8030 G.9.
REPLACE RES. 2022-
7828
WEPCO LICENSE
AGREEMENT FOR
LINEAR PARK

CONCEPT REVIEW FOR G.10.
LAND DIVISION AT
10885 S. 27TH STREET
MARK NORDLAND,
LIKEWISE PARTNERS,
LLC, APPLICANT

Alderman Hasan moved to authorize the Director of Health and
Human Services to accept monetary donations in the amount of $300.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye except Alderwoman
Eichmann abstained from the vote; motion carried.

Alderman Hasan moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8028, A FINAL
RESOLUTION DIRECTING PAYMENT AND LEVY OF SPECIAL
ASSESSMENT FOR THE COST OF WATERMAIN EXTENSION
ON W. MINNESOTA AVENUE FROM S. 51ST STREET TO S. 49TH
STREET. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to table this item until the next
meeting, there was no second, motion fails.

Alderman Craig moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8029, A
RESOLUTION TO PURCHASE WETLAND MITIGATION
CREDITS FROM BARNES PRAIRIE WETLAND MITIGATION
BANK FOR S. 116"H STREET TRAIL PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT
OF $143.000 and direct Staff to issue a check this week to cover this
project. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All on Roll Call, All voted
Aye except Alderwoman Eichmann who voted no; motion carried 5-1-
0.

Alderman Craig moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8030, A
RESOLUTION TO REPLACE RESOLUTION 2022-7828 TO
ENTER LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH WISCONSIN ELECTRIC
POWER COMPANY TO USE THEIR PROPERTY FOR A LINEAR
PARK FROM S. 11TH STREET/W. MAYERS DRIVE TO
MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY WITH MUSKEGO. Seconded by
Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

No action was taken following the Concept Review for a Land
Division and "Light Industrial Flex Space" Development located at
approximately 10885 S. 27 Street. (TKNs 978-9997-000, 978-9998
000 and 978-9999-001) (Mark Nordland, Likewise Partners LLC,
Applicant).



Common Council Meeting
August 15, 2023
Page 3

CONCEPT REVIEW FOR G.11.
LAND DIVISION AT
9410 S. 76"H STREET
ALEX SCHELER,
CARMA
LABORATORIES, INC,
APPLICANT

DONATIONS FOR G.12.
JANUARY - JUNE 2023

RES. 2023-8031 G.13.
SUPERSEDE
FINANCIAL
AGREEMENT FOR WI
DOT PROJECT ON S.
LOVERS LANE/W.
RYAN ROAD

WEST ELM ROAD G.14.
UNDERGROUND
STORAGE FEASIBILITY
REPORT

RES. 2023-8032 G.15.
FENCE WITHIN 20
FOOT DRAINAGE
EASEMENT AT 7247 W.
WOODBURY DRIVE,
DAVID HENSLEY,
APPLICANT

RES. 2023-8033 G.16.
R.A. SMITH, INC.
DESIGN SERVICES AT
WATER TOWER PARK
8120 S. LOVERS LANE
RD.

No action was taken; tabled for another meeting for the Concept
Review for a Land Division and Combined Industrial and Office
Development Located at approximately 9410 S 76th St. (TKNS 884
9997-000 & 884-9998-000) (Alex Scheler, Carma Laboratories, Inc,
Applicant).

Alderman Barber moved to acknowledge and accept donations
received for January - June, 2023 from various Franklin residents and
businesses. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8031, A
RESOLUTION TO SUPERSEDE A STATE/MUNICIPAL
FINANCIAL AGREEMENT FOR A WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT
OF TRANSPORTATION PROJECT ON S. LOVERS LANE/W.
RYAN ROAD (USH 45/STH 100) FROM S. 60TH STREET TOW.
ST. MARTINS ROAD AND INCREASE THE AMOUNT TO
$1,482,100. Seconded by Alderwoman Day. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderwoman Day moved to hold this item over until the next meeting
for further information and clarification from Supervisor Taylor.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8032, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A
FENCE WITHIN THE 20-FOOT DRAINAGE EASEMENT UPON
LOT 6, WOODBURY ESTATES, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE
SW 1/4 OF THE SW 1/4 OF SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH,
RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE
COUNTY, WISCONSIN (7247 W. WOODBURY DRIVE) (TAX
KEY NO.7910195000) (HENSLEY, DAVID, APPLICANT).
Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8033, A
RESOLUTION FOR R.A. SMITH, INC. TO PROVIDE DESIGN
SERVICES AT WATER TOWER PARK - 8120 S. LOVERS LANE
ROAD (TKN 801-9986-000) FOR $42,050. Seconded by Alderman
Craig. All voted Aye; motion carried.



Common Council Meeting
August 15, 2023
Page 4

JULY 2023 MONTHLY
FINANCIAL REPORT

RES 2023-8034
CLOSED SESSION
POTENTIAL TID NO. 9
DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT WITH
CARMA
LABORATORIES, INC.

RES. 2023-8035
DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT WITH
CARMA
LABORATORIES, INC.

G.17. Alderman Holpfer moved to receive and place the July 2023 monthly
financial report on file. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

G.18. Alderwoman Eichmann vacated her seat at 7:58 p.m. and returned at
8:04p.m.

Alex Scheler presented his plan for the Carma Laboratories, Inc.
project. Rich Simonsen, Chief Operating Officer also spoke to this
project, share of market space, and cost effectiveness of staying in
Franklin.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to enter closed session at 8:20 p.m.,
pursuant to Wis. Stat. §19.85(1)(e), to deliberate upon a Potential Tax
Incremental District No. 9 Development Agreement Between the City
of Franklin and Carma Laboratories, Inc. (Developer) 225,000 Square
Foot Corporate Headquarters Building at Northeast Corner of West
Ryan Road and South 76th Street, the negotiation of Agreement terms
and the investing of public funds in relation thereto, for competitive
and bargaining reasons, and to reenter open session at the same place
thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems
appropriate. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. On roll call, all voted
Aye except Alderwoman Day voted No. Motion carried 5-1-0.

Mayor Nelson took a five-minute recess at 8:20 p.m. We returned to
closed session at 8:27 p.m.

Upon re-entering open session at 8:52 p.m.,

Alderman Holpfer moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8034, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
EXECUTE A TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 9 [creation
thereof in process] DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE CITY OF FRANKLIN AND CARMA LABORATORIES, INC.
(DEVELOPER) 225,000 SQUARE FOOT CORPORATE
HEADQUARTERS BUILDING AT NOTHEAST CORNER OF
WEST RYAN ROAD AND SOUTH 76TH STREET (PROJECT).
Seconded by Alderman Barber. On a roll call, all voted Aye except
Alderwoman Day voted No. Motion carried 5-1-0.

G.19. Alderman Holpfer moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8035, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
EXECUTE A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENTS WITH CARMA LABORATORIES, INC.,
LOCATED AT 9410 S. 76TH STREET AND 7520 W. RYAN ROAD
(TKNS 884 9997 000 AND 884 9998 000), in the form and content as



Common Council Meeting
August 15, 2023
Page 5

CLOSED SESSION G.20.
POTENTIAL
COMMERCIAL
DEVELOPMENT(S) AT
S. OAKWOOD PARK DR.
AND W. RYAN RD.

approved by the City Engineer and City Attorney. Seconded by
Alderman Barber. On a roll call all voted Aye except Alderwoman
Day voted No. Motion carried 5-1-0.

Alderman Holpfer moved to enter closed session at 9:00 p.m., pursuant
to Wis. Stat. §19.85(1)(e), to deliberate and consider terms relating to
potential commercial/industrial/manufacturing development(s) and
proposal(s) and the investing of public funds and governmental actions
in relation thereto and to effect such development(s), including the
terms and provisions of potential development agreement(s) for,
including, but not limited to the propert(ies) at the southeast corner of
South Oakwood Park Drive and West Ryan Road, and to reenter open
session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed
therein as it deems appropriate. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann.
On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Upon re-entering open session at 9:29 p.m.,

Alderman Holpfer moved to direct staff to proceed as discussed in
closed session. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

W.PUETZRD.
PATHWAY FROM
SOUTH 76TH ST. TO W.
ST. MARTINS RD.

MISCELLANEOUS
LICENSES

G.21. Alderman Holpfer moved to direct staff to proceed with contacting
neighbors to the W. Puetz Road Corridor. Seconded by Alderwoman
Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

H. Alderwoman Day moved to approve the following licenses:

License Meeting ofAugust 15, 2023:

Grant Extraordinary Entertainment & Special Event to: Luxe Golf
Bays-1" Anniversary Fireworks Display, Jimmy Stueck, 7065 S
Ballpark Dr, 8/18/23 (Amended application with corrected date &
time); Federation of Croatian Societies, Inc-Pavilion Fundraiser,
Tomislav Kuzmanovic, 9100-9140 S 76 st, 9/17/23;
Grant Class "B: Beer Change of Agent to DBA Marcus Showtime
Cinema, Marcus Cinemas of Wisconsin LLC, 8910 S 102" St, Mark
Peterson, Sr;
Grant 2023-24 Operator License to: Claire Almquist, Nicolas Gullo,
Chad Lehrke, Lillian Nicholas, Arianna Singer, Meghan Struck; and
Grant 2023-24 Renewal Operator License to Lindsay Safranek,
Franklin Lioness Lions Club-St Martins Fair with a 2-0-1-abstention
(Eichmann) vote.

Seconded by Alderman Craig. All voted Aye; motion carried.



Common Council Meeting
August 15, 2023
Page 6

VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

ADJOURNMENT

I.

J.

Alderman Barber moved to approve City vouchers with an ending date
of August 10, 2023, in the amount of $2,337,508.47, and payroll dated
August 11, 2023, in the amount of $468,337.36 and payments of the
various payroll deductions in the amount of $248,550.99, plus City
matching payments, and estimated payroll dated August 25, 2023, in
the amount of $660,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $552,000, plus City matching payments,
and to also include an additional $143,000 for Council agenda item
G.8. Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. On roll call, all voted Aye.
Motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to adjourn the meeting of the Common
Council at 9:47 p.m. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted
Aye; motion carried.



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

CORRECTED

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Mayoral Appointment

MEETING
DATE

09-5-23

ITEM
NUMBER

E.

The Mayor has made the following appointment for Council confirmation:

Kristin Kurutz, 6768 S. 35 St., Ald. Dist. Ald.Dist. 3 - Mayor Appointment for Board of
Review for a 3 year term expiring 04/20/26.

COUNCIL ACTION

Motion to confirm the following Mayoral appointment:

Kristin Kurutz, 6768 S. 35 St., Ald. Dist. Ald.Dist. 3 - Mayor Appointment for Board of
Review for a 3 year term expiring 04/20/26.

CLERK.DPT



Shirley Roberts

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Name:
PhoneNumber:
EmailAddress:
YearsasResident:
Alderman:
ArchitecturalBoard:
CivicCelebrations:

volunteerfactsheet@franklmnw1.mnfo
Tuesday, June 27, 2023 9:38 AM
Lusa Huenng; Shirley Roberts; Karen Kastenson
Volunteer Fact Sheet

Kristin Kurutz
810-922-9447
kristinkurutz@gmail.com
4.5
3
no
no

CommunityDevelopmentAuthority: no
EconomicDevelopmentCommission: no
EnvironmentalCommission: no
FinanceCommittee: no
FairCommission: no
BoardofHealth: no
FirePoliceCommission: no
ParksCommission: no
LibraryBoard: no
PlanCommission: no
PersonnelCommittee: no
BoardofReview: yes
BoardofPublicWorks: no
QuarryMonitoringCommittee: no
TechnologyCommission: no
TourismCommission: no
BoardofZoning: no
WasteFacilitiesMonitoringCommittee: no
BoardWaterCommissioners:
CompanyName.Job1:
CompanyAddressJobl:
TelephoneJobl:
StartDateandPositionJobl:
EndDateandPositionJob1:
CompanyName.Job2:
AddressJob2:
TelephoneJob2:
StartDateandPositionJob2:

no
Social Security Administration
310 W. Wisconsin Ave, Ste. 300W, Milwaukee, WI 53202
866.495.0039 ext. 35112
July 2018 Attorney Advisor
Currently Employed Attorney Advisor
Legal Services of Eastern Michigan
436 S. Saginaw St, Flint, Ml 48502
810-234-2621
April 2014 Volunteer Attorney

1



EfdDateandPositionJob2:
CompanyNameJob3:
AddressJob3:
TelephoneJob3:
StartDateandPositionJob3:
EndDateandPositionJob3:
Signature:
Date:
Signature2:
Date2:
Address:
Prioritylisting:

Whylnterested:

DescriptionofDutiesJobl:

DescriptionofDutiesJob2:

DescriptionofDutiesJob3:

AdditionalExperience:
See Current Results

June 2018 StaffAttorney {Domestic relations and Expungement Attorney)
Shelton Legal Services
no longer in existence

August 2013 Legal Intern
December 2013 Legal Intern
Kristin M. Kurutz
06/27/2023
Kristin M. Kurutz
06/27/2023
6768 S. 35 St Franklin, WI 53132

I think the process afforded to residents to challenge their assessments is
important function of the city given the annual nature of our assessments. The
board serves and important impartial function to ensuring our residents are
paying the fair amount of taxes rather than a potentially inflated value because
of a rapidly changing housing market.
Draft decisions for claimants of Title II and Title XVI benefits. Draft
overpayment decisions. Review records prior to hearing of remanded cases
and voluminous case files.
Represent indigent/low income persons in all aspects of family law. Represent
criminal defendants in expunging felony and misdemeanor records. Worked
with the Fair Housing Center to author the Impediments to Fair Housing Study.
Review testing data for Fair Housing Center and train testers and real estate
agents/brokers on Ml and federal fair housing laws.
Draft criminal motions Draft civil pleadings Communicate-with clients regarding
legal matters/case status. If you desire to speak with managing attorney of this
firm please contact me and I can provide his personal information.

2



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

9-5-23

REPORTS AND Franklin Civic Celebrations Commission Report for the
RECOMMENDATIONS June 30-July 2, 2023 Civic Celebrations Event, Request

for Spending Authority for 2024 and Summary of 2023
Activities

ITEM NUMBER

Attached are reports from John Bergner, Chairman of the Civic Celebrations Commission, requesting
authority from the Common Council for the Commission to sign and execute contracts and agreements
for the 2024 Franklin Civic Celebration. The event is planned for four days, July 3-July 6, 2024.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to accept and place on file the summary from the 2023 Civic Celebrations event, and allow John
Bergner to execute contracts and agreements for the 2024 Franklin Civic Celebration event.

OR

As directed.

Office of the City Clerk - klk



Franklin Civic
Celebrations Commission

Request for Spending Authority 2024
AUGUST, 2023

I, John Bergner, Chairman of the Franklin Civic Celebrations Commission request
authority to enter into contracts and agreements for the 2024 Franklin Civic
Celebration. The dates and times will be:

• Wednesday, July 3rd - 5:00 pm to 11:00 pm
• Thursday, July 4th -10:30 pm to 11:00 pm
• Friday, July 5th - 5:00 pm to 11:00 pm
• Saturday, July 6" -3:00 pm to 11:00 pm

With your approval, I request authority to spend the following amounts for 2024:

2024 2023
Requested Actual

1. ENTERTAINMENT $30,000 $28,100
2. FIREWORKS $30,000 $30,000
3. RENTALS $20,000 $17,885
4. PARADE $12,000 $11,291
5 ICE CREAM $1,200 $1,198
6. PRINTING $6,000 $5,787
7. SUPPLIES, SIGNS,T-SHIRTS $8,000 $16,111
8. MISC. $3,000 $2,922

Totals: $110,200 $113,294
With your approval, I request the annual general fund transfer from General
Fund 01 to the Civic Celebration General Fund 29 be increased to $30,000 per year
from $13,000 per year.

The 2023 Festival was a 3 day event and the 2024 Festival is a 4day event.

Note: Police and DPWcost are not included in any ofthe amounts.

City ofFranklin
teens. #

4 Thriving Counity in Southeastern Ji
Page 1 of 1



2023 FRANKLIN CIVIC CELEBRATION

JUNE 30 -JULY 2

INCOME STATEMENT

INCOME 2023 2022

(3 days) (4 days)

1. DONATIONS $24,549.00 $24,317.00

2. TICKET SALES DEPOSITS $77,974.00 $82,858.00

3. FOOD (NET) $18,180.95 $17,622.19

4. CITY FUNDS $13,000.00 $13,000.00

5. CARNIVAL COMMISSION $22,895.00 $25,609.55

6. NON-FOOD/ LICENSES $600.00 $250.00

7. HELICOPTER RIDES $0.00 $0.00

8. ATM RENTAL $342.50 $344.50

9. CORN HOLE $40.00 $36.00

CASH FROM TICKET SALES:

10. CASH PAID TO BADGER BAND $2,100.00 $0.00

TOTAL INCOME $159,681.45 $164,037.24



EXPENSES 2023 2022

1. ENTERTAINMENT $28,100.00 $33,800.00

2. PRINTING, TICKETS $5,787.26 $4,073.92

3. POLICE AND DPW $50,751.19 $41,482.86

4. PARADE (INCLUDES FLAGS) $11,290.58 $12,216.00

5. FIREWORKS $30,000.00 $0.00

6. ICE CREAM $1,198.08 $1,082.88

7.BEER $19,581.10 $19,923.20

7A. WINE $0.00 $1,575.00

8. SUPPLIES, NEW COOLERS INCLUDED $6,320.00 $7,624.37 $1,420.89

9. RENTAL, TENT, BAR, TABLES, CHAIR, TOILETS $17,885.80 $16,795.95

10. T-SHIRTS- $4,837.50 $4,538.00

11. SIGNS, BANNERS $955.00 $1,878.05

12. BACKGROUND CHECKS $175.00 $175.00

13.GOLF CARTS $1,525.00 $940.00

14.DPW SUPPLIES $2,693.95 $3,099.67

15. POSTAGE $40.20 $387.82

16. LIONS CLUB 1/2 NET PROFIT $1,925.00 $2,490.00

17. SERVICES $0.00 $385.10

18. THE WALL THAT HEALS $0.00 $11,885.31

19. SODA $588.21 $366.66 (84-12 packs)

20. ICE $1,397.40 $1,368.01

21. GENERATOR FUEL $965.70 $4,830.45

TOTAL EXPENSES $187,321.34 $164,714.77
NET INCOME OR LOSS -$27,639.89 -$677.53



APPROVAL

~
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

West Elm Road Underground Storage Feasibility Report

MTG. DATE
September 5, 2023

ITEM NO.
Ald. Dist. 4

G.2.

BACKGROUND
This item was discussed at the August 15, 2023 common council meeting and was held over to be
discussed at the September 5, 2023 meeting with a conversation with Milwaukee County
Supervisor Steve Taylor. Supervisor Taylor has been invited to the meeting and is expected to
attend and discuss. The action sheet from the August 15, 2023 meeting is reprinted below in talics.
The attachments have not been re-attached with the exception of the December 27, 2022 letter
from Supervisor Taylor.

On August 23, 2022 the City sent a requestfor the County to donate a I 0-acre easementfor space
to provide stormwater management in the Franklin Corporate Park. the letter stated that this
would generate an estimated $587,000 revenue annually to the County. On January 3, 2023,
Milwaukee County Supervisor Steve Taylor appeared before the Common Council on January 3,
2023 to discuss the issue that involved a $700,000 leasefor a I 0-acre property.

On January 17, 2023, Common Council authorized Amendment 7, to Task Order 5 to Ruekert &
Mielke, Inc. for Feasibility ofStorm Water Options for Elm Road Project that would utilize
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District (MMSD) Green Funding to offset the net cost to the
TID. The analysis was complex and the final report is about one month ahead ofschedule. The
report and select excerpts ofthe exhibits are enclosed. A copy ofthe report with thefull exhibits
are availablefor review at the City Engineering office during normal City Hall business hours.

ANALYSIS
To summarize, the UndergroundStorage Alternative is afeasible alternative to an Traditional Wet
Detention Alternative. The costs are summarized on page 8 ofthe report and are asfollows:

Description
Constructionfor Elm Road Improvement Project
Easement on county Parks Parcel
MMSD Green Infrastructure Funding Grant
Engineering Design and Bidding Services
Total Cost

Traditional Wet
Detention
Alternative

$5,200,000
$700,000

$0
$200,000

$6,100,000

Underground
Storage

Alternative
$6,340,000

$0
($1,500,000)

$280,000
$5,120,000

Even though there is a significantfinancial advantage to Underground Storage Alternative, there
are advantages to the Traditional Wet Detention Alternative:

I. Advantage that a stormwater pond is an infrastructure with known maintenance. DPW
knows how to maintain these ponds as there are several other similar ponds owned and
maintained by the City. Underground detention would require routine maintenance to
remove sediment before it enters the underground chamber and clogs the infiltration areas.
Ifroutine maintenance is notperformed adequately, a more extensive and time-consuming
cleaning ofthe underground chambers would need to be performed.



2. Advantage that construction ofW Elm Road would be quicker. There are many utility
companies that would need to relocate some buriedfacilities which takes significant time
and utility coordination. In addition, construction of the undergroundfacilities would
disrupt traffic though W Elm Road much longer than construction ofan off-site and out
of-the-waypond.

3. Advantage that construction of W. EIm Road would be less cumbersome. Significant
excavation in W Elm road would be difficultfor exiting businesses along W Elm Road to
continue operations during construction ofthefacilities infront ofor near their driveways.

4. Advantage that MMSD green funding could be allocated to other City projects, such as
Water Tower Park.

Staffsuggests that the close to $1 million difference between the alternatives is significant enough
to endure the disadvantages ofthe underground storage alternative. However, ifthe County were
to remove the $700,000 easement cost, the roughly $300,000 cost advantage is not worth the
disadvantages ofthe underground storage alternative.

OPTIONS
A. Select underground storage for the design of W. EIm Road. If this is chosen, Staffwill

advise MMSD ofthe preference and draft afunding agreement to allow this to happen.

B. Select the Traditional Wet Detention Alternative. If this is chosen, Staff will advise
Milwaukee County ofthe choice and start working on a lease.

C. Other direction to Staff. This option may include, but not limited to, more negotiation with
Milwaukee Countyfor the price ofa lease, elimination ofcost, etc.

FISCAL IMPACT
In addition to Saputo and the other two new developments in TID 8, almost all conversationsfor
new developmentprojects express a needfor improvement to W Elm Road. Once the project is
ready to bid, financial evaluations with new developments can be more accurately calculated.

RECOMMENDATION
At the direction ofCommon Council

Engineering Department: GEM



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Steve F. Taylor
17 DISTRICT SUPERVISOR

December 27, 2022

Alderman,

Here Is a bnef recap of my verbal remarks at the December 20 Common Council Meeting On May 17th the Common
Council adopted Resolution 2022-7863 directing staff to negotiate with Milwaukee County to obtain land for storm water
purposes On or about August26th I received a packet of Information from Steve Olson and Shan Hanneman On October
20th I met with Shan Hanneman, Peggy Steeno and John Regetz to discuss the City's request and I presented the terms I
would support If the Common council was agreeable, I would assist getting approval ofthe MIiwaukee County Board
Here are the terms

• Easement to build stormwater basin would cost $700,000 ($70,000/acre)
• Half ($350,000) would be spentm Cityof Franklin to enhance Milwaukee County Parkland (Grobschmudt, Park,

FitzsimmonsWoods, and Franklin Savannah)
• Half ($350,000) would be spent in a Milwaukee County Park located mn Supervisor Martin's District

Alderwoman Hanneman mentioned the per acre cost atwhich time I pointed out the approximate $120,000/acre 1t would
cost to purchase the Biller property. Not onlywould that money leave Milwaukee County and the City of Franklin but it
would also clearly lower the developable amount in the business park Thiswas pointed out in the documentation sent to
Milwaukee County

I spoke with Shan on December 2nd wanting to knowthat status ofwhatwe discussed I relayed that if the city was
interested, we should proceed now because Itwill take time to draft up an agreement and get both governmental bodies to
sign off on At this pomt I was told that "I can't come up with $700,000" and the conversation ended

I spoke at the Common Council meeting for several reasons first, thatthe status ofthe negotIatIons was not presented to
the Common Council and one alderman cannot speak for the rest ofthe body. Secondly, recentWaukesha water easement
negotIat1ons hit a snag when It reached the County Board. The original offer was $100,000 for 75 acres The Board balked
and rt ended up being $250,000 ($333,333/acre) I only mention this because the fair pnce I proposed may not be the end
amount once Board starts dehberatmg

I leave you with these final thoughts Steve Olson started talking to me about this over a year ago. He told me that Sup
Logsdon had no desire to assist, and the County Executive wouldn'tspend time on t withoutthe support of the sitting
Supervisor Shortly after I was elected Olson wanted to move forward quickly and was proven by the fact that a month
after I was sworn In a resolution was put before the Common Council. Now there seems to be no sense of urgency and 1fI
was sitting in your seat l would askwhy You approved the resoluton and now know the terms It is your decision on
whether you want to workwith Milwaukee County or Scott Buller. Doing nothmg isn't an opton unless things are being
concealed from you Please feel free to reach out to discuss All My Best!!

Steve F. Taylor

MILWAUKEE COUNTY COURTHOUSE
901 North 9th Street, RM 201 • Milwaukee, W1 53233

Phone (414) 278-4263 • Fax (414) 223-1380 • steve taylor@milwaukeecountyw gov • county milwaukee gov/SteveTaylor

"Am d e f i n i t i o n ofa successful l i fe mu s t mclude scrvmg others." - Geo1ge II. . Bush



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Request Common Council approval/extension of the
"Milwaukee County Equipment Sharing Agreement"

MEETING
DATE

915123
ITEM NUMBER

G.3
In 2021, Council approved a fire department request to sign on to the "Milwaukee County Equipment
Sharing Agreement," that allows departments to lend or borrow equipment or apparatus, up to and
including heavy fire apparatus and ambulances. The agreement was vetted by legal counsel representing
the insurers of all 19 Milwaukee County municipalities; including of the League of Wisconsin
Municipalities, CVMIC, and the City of Milwaukee's Corporation Counsel.

The original agreement had a term of two years, with possible annual extensions as approved/authorized
by each municipality. All Milwaukee County Shared Services fire departments are in consensus that the
Equipment Sharing Agreement has been very successful, and Franklin has benefitted significantly by
being able to borrow apparatus during prolonged periods when both a fire engine and ambulance had to
have extensive repairs. In turn, FFD has loaned out equipment such as power-cots to other departments
while their equipment was being repaired or serviced.

The revised agreement is identical in language to the original agreement vetted by the insurance
companies, with the exception that it eliminates the annual renewal/extension process, and instead gives
any municipality the ability to opt out with notice to all other municipalities.

As stated, this arrangement has been extremely positive for the City and its customers, stakeholders, and
taxpayers; and the fire chief highly recommends approval of the revised agreement.

--------------------------------------
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve Fire Department continued participation in the "Milwaukee County
Equipment Sharing Agreement"

FD: AJR



Milwaukee County Association
of

Fire Chiefs

To: Milwaukee County Fire Chiefs

From: Robert Whitaker, Secretary/Treasurer

Date: August 25, 2023

Re: Equipment Sharing Agreement Between Milwaukee County Fire Departments

In Summer 2021, the Milwaukee County Fire Chiefs worked with attorneys from CVMIC, the League of
Wisconsin Municipalities Insurance and the City of Milwaukee to develop an equipment sharing
agreement between Milwaukee County fire departments

After a consensus agreement was reached with the three attorneys, twelve fire departments entered into
the agreement The agreement adopted in 2021 had a two-year term with the option for three add1t1onal
single year terms Rather than needing to re-approve this agreement annually, the Milwaukee County Fire
Chiefs are recommending amending the agreement to be long-standing with a thirty-day termination
notice

The amended agreement is attached If you are interested in continuing to be part of this Agreement,
please move rt through your approval process and return the signed document to me with any updated
contact information required in the Agreement

Representing Fire Chiefsfrom·
-Cudahy --Hales Corners -Franklin -Greendale -Greenfield--Milwaukee --
--Milwaukee County Airport -North Shore -Oak Creek-South Milwaukee 
-St. Francis -Wauwatosa -WestAllis -- Wisconsin Air National Guard



EQUIPMENT SHARING AGREEMENT BETWEEN
MILWAUKEE COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENTS

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 66.0301 and 66.03125, this Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement
("Agreement") is entered into as of the date signed by the respective parties, each a Wisconsin
municipal corporation acting by and through its fire department, each with proper authorization to
execute this Agreement (herein referred to collectively as "the Parties" or "the Departments" or
singularly as "Party" or "Department") for the sharing of fire and emergency medical services
apparatus and equipment. Participating agencies should create a list of equipment eligible for
sharing.

RECITALS:

The Parties are municipal corporations duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the
State of Wisconsin with the power to carry on their business as it is now being conducted under
the Constitution, the statutes of the State of Wisconsin, and their respective Municipal Codes.

The Parties are interested in occasionally sharing equipment to ensure efficient and effective
operations.

The Parties desire to enter into an Agreement to establish procedures for sharing equipment and
defining legal relationships and responsibilities;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed by and between the Parties as follows:

PURPOSE

The purpose of this Agreement is to create a system for the occasional sharing of motor vehicles,
equipment, tools and machinery (collectively referred to in this agreement as "Equipment")
between the Parties for efficiency and effectiveness of operations.

The Parties agree to make available to each other vehicles, equipment, tools, machinery, and
related items in the manner and pursuant to the terms and conditions provided in this agreement.
A Party supplying Equipment shall be designated the "Provider." A Party receiving Equipment
shall be designated the "Borrower."

TERM

This Agreement shall be in full force and in effect with the passage and approval of an authorizing
ordinance or resolution by all participating member municipalities, in the manner provided by law,
and upon the signing of this agreement by the Village President or City Mayor or authorized
representative and the comptroller or clerk, as applicable.

Parties may withdraw from the Agreement in accordance with the Termination Section of the
Agreement.



EQUIPMENT USAGE

a. Usage Scenarios. Instances in which Equipment owned by a party to this Agreement is
operated by another party to this Agreement shall fall into two categories:

1. Just In Time Operations: Non-pre-planned operation of equipment
2. Short-Term Sharing: The Parties agree to permit Equipment to be used pursuant to this

agreement for a time period not to exceed thirty (30) days. Equipment usage that exceeds
that timeframe will be reassessed by the parties and requires execution of an additional
agreement between the parties.

b. Operator Qualifications. The Parties agree to permit Equipment to be used only by properly
trained, properly licensed and supervised operators. All drivers shall be licensed and shall have
a satisfactory driving record. All equipment operators shall be properly trained and qualified
to operate the Equipment shared under this Agreement. In cases of Short-Term Lending,
borrower shall make available to Provider upon request proof of training, licensing, and
qualifications of operator prior to release of Equipment.

c. Usage Requirements. Equipment shared under this Agreement shall be used by Borrower's
employees only to conduct official business. Borrowers shall use and operate Equipment only
for its intended purpose, in a careful manner and in compliance with all requirements for
operation and of any governmental authority having jurisdiction, if applicable. Borrower shall
not sublease or allow anyone other than Borrower's employees to use Equipment shared under
this Agreement.

JUST IN TIME OPERATIONS

"Just In Time Operations" are those operations occurring at emergent responses where personnel
from assisting agencies may be needed to operate other municipalities' vehicles/apparatus. Early
identification of needs is key to assessing and handling these situations, which includes the
following considerations:

It is preferred that personnel from the Department owning the vehicle operate the
vehicle/apparatus, and, if additional personnel are necessary for mitigating an emergency while
the vehicle is being operated, those personnel be requested from a Department that does not own
the vehicle/apparatus.

If all personnel from the Department owning the vehicle are needed to mitigate the emergency and
a driver is needed to operate an apparatus/vehicle owned by another Department, the following
should occur:

1. Officer in charge of apparatus/vehicle needing operation should communicate with
the incident commander that assistance is needed in driving the apparatus/vehicle.

2. Incident Commander should identify a driver to assist.

2



3. The member selected to drive should review the "just in time" training document
specific to the vehicle/apparatus.

4. Officer in charge should strongly consider directing the vehicle/apparatus be
operated in a non-emergency status during ''just in time" operation.

5. Wisconsin Statute pertaining to Emergency Vehicle Operations always applies.
6. The provisions of this agreement relating to negligence shall apply to the aiding

Operator.

SHORT TERM SHARING

a. Borrower Responsible for Charges and Fees. Borrower is responsible for all fines and other liens
that might be incurred against equipment shared under this Agreement, and shall hold the Provider
harmless from and against any and all fines, assessments, fees, charges, expenses, penalties and
forfeitures incurred in connection with the use of shared Equipment.

b. Fuel. Borrower shall be responsible for supplying all fuel used during the period it borrows the
Equipment. Provider shall ensure that the fuel tank(s) are full when Borrower picks up the
Equipment, and Borrower shall ensure that the fuel tank(s) are full when it returns the Equipment
to Provider.

c. Charges for Equipment. Lender shall not charge Borrower for use of equipment unless there
would be reimbursement from a third party.

d. Delivery/Pickup. Borrower shall be responsible for picking up and returning any Equipment
shared under this Agreement, unless Provider and Borrower mutually agree to other arrangements.
Equipment may generally be picked up and returned between standard business hours. However,
it is understood that when dealing with the necessity of emergency equipment, requests may occur
at hours outside of standard business hours.

e. Notification. Borrower shall contact Provider as well in advance as reasonably possible of each
pick-up and delivery to confirm. The acceptance of any request is at the discretion and timing of
the Provider.

f. Condition of Equipment. Provider shall ensure that any Equipment being shared is serviced
consistent with recognized industry standards prior to Borrower's pick-up.

g. Inspections. Providers sharing Equipment under this agreement certify that the Equipment is in
good repair and ready for the intended use. Equipment shared under this Agreement shall be
inspected by representatives of both Provider and Borrower at the time of delivery/pickup and
again when returned. The inspections shall include an examination of the tires on the Equipment,
which the Parties must agree are sound at the time Borrower picks up the Equipment, and which
must have adequate tread depth to ensure safe and legal operation during the share period. The
results of these inspections shall be documented on an Equipment Inspection Form and on a High
Wear Item Inspection Form (if used by the provider or borrower). Digital photographs of the
equipment should be taken at the time of pickup to ensure that any existing damage is documented
appropriately.

3



h. Operations and Safety Manuals. Provider shall make a copy of all Equipment operation and
safety manuals available to Borrower at the time of Equipment delivery.

i. Contact Person. Each Party agrees to appoint a person or persons to act as liaison(s) for each
rental request and inspection and to otherwise facilitate the orderly and efficient distribution of
equipment-sharing requests and related information. Contacts by agency are as indicated below:

A list of each Department's contact person shall be maintained by the Milwaukee County
Association of Fire Chiefs or its designee.

j. Maintenance and Repair of Equipment. Borrower shall be responsible for performing all
required maintenance during the share period, such as fluid level checks and daily pre-trip
inspections.

k. Borrower shall be responsible for the following items during the share period:

1. Tire repair and replacement of any damaged tires that cannot be
safely repaired;

2. Replacement of any damaged or worn-out tools such as cutting
edges and bits;

3. Replacement of any windows or windshields that are cracked or
damaged;

4. Minor repairs and adjustments required to keep the Equipment in
safe operating condition during the share period, including but not
limited to replacement of defective lighting or mirrors, adjustment
of hinges or latches, adding fluids to correct levels, and adding air
to tires. If it is observed that Equipment requires an excessive
amount of minor repairs and adjustments as described above,
Borrower is to promptly notify Provider of specific issue prior to
utilizing Equipment.

Any repairs or replacements made by Borrower pursuant to the requirements of this agreement
shall be performed by qualified personnel; specifically, persons or contractors employed by
Borrower to maintain and repair Borrower's own fleet equipment.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, Provider shall be responsible for latent
defects that may occur during the normal operation of Equipment by borrower.

l. Provider shall be responsible for the repair or replacement of Equipment when:

1. Equipment fails during its normal operation, and;
2. Equipment, is being used as intended by the manufacturer, and;

4



3. Equipment has received all manufacturer required maintenance during its
use by the Borrower.

m. Borrower shall reimburse Provider for the cost of repair or replacement of Equipment when:

1. Operating Equipment outside of its normal operation, or;
2. Operating Equipment in a manner not intended by the manufacturer, or;
3. Operating Equipment without performing required maintenance.

n. Borrower shall not claim damages from the Provider in the form of monetary, lost efficiency
or time or consequential damage as a result of equipment failure.

o. Borrower Responsibility for Damage. Borrower shall be responsible for the cost ofrepairing all
damage to equipment incurred during the share period that is not considered to be normal wear
and tear necessitated by misuse or negligent operation and for the maintenance and/or replacement
of high wear items identified in each Provider's Equipment Catalog and as noted on each
Provider's Equipment Inspection Form.

1. Borrower shall notify Provider immediately if Provider's Equipment is involved in
any accident during the share period.

2. Provider shall be responsible for the cost of repairing all Equipment damage due to
accidents caused by equipment defects.

3. In cases of equipment damage resulting in a total loss, Borrower shall be
responsible for covering the loss. Provider shall submit an invoice to Borrower,
equal to eighty percent of the current retail market value of the Equipment prior to
the damage as determined by an independent appraisal, for any Equipment
determined to be a total loss.

In cases of Equipment damage resulting in a total loss caused by a third party where that party
assumes responsibility, Borrower shall seek reimbursement from the third party's insurance
carrier. If the reimbursement is greater than eighty percent of the retail market value prior to the
damage, Borrower shall give the entire amount of the reimbursement to Provider.

Provider shall not be entitled to consequential damage for the loss of use of the equipment due to
accidental damage.

WARRANTY

Provider is neither a manufacturer nor supplier of the Equipment and therefore makes no
warranties, express or implied, including, without limitation, the condition of the equipment, its
design, capacity, performance, construction, workmanship, or fitness for any particular use. All
Equipment is shared on an '"as-is" basis. Provider shall not be responsible or liable to Borrower
for any loss, delay, or damage of any kind resulting from defects in or accidental breakage of
Equipment shared under this agreement.

5



INSURANCE

During the term of this agreement, each Party will keep in force, at its own expense, insurance
requirements as specified by the Parties. It is understood by the Parties that the City of Milwaukee
is self-insured.

EMPLOYMENT STATUS & LIABILITY

Nothing in this Agreement shall alter the employment status of any employee providing services
under this Agreement. Employees shall at all times continue to be subject to all standards of
performance, disciplinary rules, and other terms and conditions imposed by their employer. No
Party shall be responsible for the direct payment of any salaries, wages, compensation, or benefits
of any employee of another Party to this Agreement. Any employee of any Party, while providing
services under this Agreement, shall be covered by that Party for purposes of worker's
compensation, unemployment insurance, benefits under Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes, and
any civil liability.

For the purposes of third party claims or lawsuits, each Party shall be solely responsible for its
own acts and those of its employees and officers under this Agreement. No Party shall be
responsible or liable for consequential damages to another Party arising out of providing or using
equipment, services, or labor under this Agreement.

NO WAIVER

The Parties acknowledge and affirm that they are governmental entities entitled to immunities
pursuant to, among other provisions, common law and Wis. Stat. § 893.80, and agree that nothing
contained in this Agreement is intended as a waiver of any defenses, immunities, or limitations to
which they are entitled.

GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Wisconsin.

TERMINATION

Any Party may terminate this Agreement for any reason by giving thirty (30) days' prior written
notice to all other Parties. In the event of such termination, all costs incurred up to the date of
termination shall be the responsibility of the User.

6



ENTIRE AGREEMENT & AMENDMENT

This Agreement represents a complete understanding of the Parties with respect to its subject
matter and may not be amended except in writing. The Agreement may be executed in multiple
counterparts or duplicate originals, each of which shall constitute and may be deemed as one and
the same document.

The Municipality/Department signatory certifies that this Apparatus Sharing Agreement
has been adopted and approved by ordinance, resolution, or other manner allowed by law,
a copy of which is attached hereto.

Upon receipt of this local signatory, the Fire Chief shall provide this document to the
Secretary/Treasurer of the Milwaukee County Association of Fire Chiefs to acknowledge
and apprise all parties participating in this agreement.

Signatory

Date

7



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Request Common Council Approval to Purchase
additional firefighting hose and related hardware at

a cost not to exceed $36,000

MEETING
DATE

/5123
ITEM NUMBER

.4.

The Fire Department is seeking council approval to purchase additional fire hose to increase the
compliment carried on our three existing engine companies, as well as outfitting a reserve engine.
Because of the substantial number of recently constructed and planned large commercial and
industrial structures within our response area, the department needs to increase the amount of fire
hose carried on each existing engine in order to conduct efficient and effective fire suppression
operations within these expansive structures. Additionally, with the expected delivery of a new engine,
the department plans to retain a current engine in reserve status for use when current units are out of
service for maintenance or repair. In order to keep the reserve apparatus in a ready state it is
necessary to outfit the unit with fire hose and related nozzles and hardware.

This purchase was prioritized highly in the department's 2023 capital improvement budget request,
and the appropriation was included in the Mayor's recommended budget, as approved by Council.
That appropriation will fund 100% of the purchase cost (Fund 41-0221-5815). A quotation from Air
One Equipment is attached with this action.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve Fire Department purchase of additional firefighting hose and related
hardware with existing appropriation in the 2023 Capital Improvement Fund 41-0221-5815, at
a cost not to exceed $36,000.

Fire: AJR



@a8
AIR ONE

EQUIPMENT, INC.

Sold To

360 Production Dnve
South Elgm, IL 60177
Phone 847-289-9000
Fax 847-289-9001
Emal aurone@aoe net

Ship To

Date

8/7/2023

Quote#

28132

QUOTATION
VALID FOR 30 DAYS

Franklin Fire Department
8901 W Drexel Avenue
Franklm, WI 53132
Attn Kurt

Franklin Fire Department
8901 W Drexel Avenue
Frankhn, WI 53132

PLEASE DO NOT PAY OFF OF THIS Quoted By PO No Terms Salesman
QUOTE. A FINAL INVOICE WILL BE
SENT ONCE ORDER IS COMPLETE. AA Net 30 AA

Item Descript1on Qty Cost Amount

DP! 7-I000X50'O-ARN KEY FIRE HOSE COMBAT READY I 75" X 50' 50 294 50 14,725 00
ORANGE DOUBLE JACKET ATTACK HOSE

TO BE STENCILED ON BOTH ENDS WITH
FRANKLIN FIRE DEPARTMENT 172 THROUGH
221

XMISC KEY FIRE HOSE COMBAT READY 175X10' 5 105 00 525 00
YELLOW DOUBLE JACKET ATTACK HOSE

TO BE STENCILED ON BOTHENDS WITH
FRANKLIN FIRE DEPARTMENT 190 THROUGH
194

XMISC KEY FIRE HOSE COMBAT READY I 75" X 10' 5 105 00 525 00
RED DOUBLE JACKET ATTACK HOSE

TO BE STENCILED ON BOTH ENDS WITH
FRANKLIN FIRE DEPARTMENT 195 THROUGH
199

RC50-450X100Y-STRZ KEY FIRE HOSE. PRO-FLOW LDH 5" X 100' 10 809 00 8,090.00
YELLOW RUBBER LARGE DIAMETER HOSE

TO BE STENCILED ON BOTHENDS WITH
FRANKLIN FIRE DEPARTMENT 553 THROUGH
562

RC50-450X40'Y-STRZ KEY FIRE HOSE PRO-FLOW LDH 5"X 40' 2 539 00 1,078 00
YELLOW RUBBER LARGE DIAMETER HOSE

TO BE STENCILED ON BOTH ENDS WITH
FRANKLIN FIRE DEPARTMENT 551 AND 552

Freight charges are addedwhep invoicedunless otherwisenoted,
3% PROCESSING FEE FOR CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS OVER $500

Effective Jan 1, 2021, all returns after 30 days ofdelivery wll incur a 20% restocking fee
Items ordered m connect1on wth natural disasters, pandemtc or like situations cannot be
returned and orders for such items cannot be cancelled after 10 days of Seller's receipt

Page 1

Subtotal
Sales Tax (0 0%)

DO NOT PAY-INVOICE TO FOLLOW

Total



A£)
AIR ONE

EQUIPMENT, INC.

Sold To

360 Production Dnve
South Elgm, IL 60177
Phone 847-289-9000
Fax 847-289-9001
Ema1l aurone@aoe net

Sh1p To

Date

8/7/2023

Quote#

28132

QUOTATION
VALID FOR 30 DAYS

Franklmn Fire Department
8901 W Drexel Avenue
Franklm, WI 53132
Attn Kurt

Franklm Frre Department
8901 W Drexel Avenue
Franklm, WI 53132

PLEASE DO NOT PAY OFF OF THIS Quoted By PO No Terms Salesman
QUOTE. A FINAL INVOICE WILL BE
SENT ONCE ORDER IS COMPLETE. AA Net 30 AA

Item Description Qty Cost Amount

DP25-800X50'W-ARN KEY FIRE HOSE BIG 10 2 5"x 50' WHITE 35 217 50 7,612.50
DOUBLE JACKET ATTACK HOSE

TO BE STENCILED ON BOTH END WITH
FRANKLIN FIRE DEPARTMENT383 THROUGH
517

SI-IIPPING & HANDLING SHIPPING & HANDLING - FREE DELIVERY I 0 00 0 00

Freight charges are addedwheninvoicedunless otherwise noted.
3% PROCESSING FEE FOR CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS OVER $500

Effective Jan 1, 2021, all returns after 30 days of delivery wll 1cur a 20% restocking fee
Items ordered mn connect1on wnth natural disasters, pandemic or lke situations cannot be
returned and orders for such items cannot be cancelled after 10 days of Seller's receipt

Page2

Subtotal
Sales Tax (0.0%)

Total

$32,555 50

$0 00

$32,555 50

DO NOT PAY- INVOICE TO FOLLOW



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR 

COUNCIL ACTION 

MEETING DATE 

09/05/2023 

REPORTS & 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
Authorize a Budget Amendment Request for 

Municipal Court Staffing Needs 

ITEM NUMBER 

G5 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Municipal Court has been experiencing staffing concerns. The department is currently staffed with two 
full-time and one part-time employees. Kari Kowalski, one of the full-time employees, is retiring. Kari’s last 
day is projected to be September 20, 2023. However, Kari has sick and vacation time, which will cover her 
paid time off through December 1, 2023, with approximately 10-12 days extra she will need to be paid 
through. Staff recommends filling Kari’s position with the other full-time employee, Amanda Baumgart, and 
then filling Amanda’s position after that. The part-time employee can work about 150 hours of overtime if 
needed, with approximately 60-80 hours per pay period until September 20, 2023, and a new full-time 
person is hired to take the full-time vacancy left by filling Kari’s position with Amanda. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
The attached financials assume the part-time employee works the maximum hours she is allowed. At the 
same time, Amanda would receive a 7.5% pay increase and move into Kari’s position officially, effective 
September 25, 2023. 
 
Judge Fred Klimetz will be in attendance and is willing to answer any questions. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
There are two options for funding the municipal court personnel deficit brought on by this unpredicted 
situation.   
 
1. Increase the Municipal Court expenditure budget to cover the extra costs without taking the money from 
any other account or increasing a revenue account. Essentially, this results in taking the increase out of the 
fund balance.  
2. Reduce the budget in account 01-0199-5114 SEVERANCE PAYMENTS and add it to the Municipal Court 
budget to cover the deficit. There is a 2023 budget of $75,000 in this account. This was budgeted for any 
unexpected retirements requiring severance payments during the year. Kari’s retirement was not expected 
for 2023; therefore, it is logical we would fund the Municipal Court Personnel account 01-0121-5111 with 
the necessary expenditure required from the Severance Payments account. 
 
Staff recommends option 2. 
  

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED 
 
Motion to authorize staff to transfer the necessary expenses to cover Kari Kowalski’s retirement from the 
Severance Payments fund account 01-0199-514 to the Municipal Court Personnel account 01-0121-5111 to 
provide Amanda Baumgart with a 7.5% pay increase aligning with the workload Amanda has already put 
forth and will be expected to do as Kari’s successor.  
 

 
DOA-KH/Municipal Court-FK/HR-DZ 



"8
(1J·c:
S

"'0
Q..,
0

U)w
0zw
U)
_Jwzz
8g
a::wn.

"'fD00
;;;
$

ococo 88aOMVor « ,-.. u, N
or--- :il .... ..,-...-...-

4

.... V 00 N.... (').., co

"' ¢ o N-co
' o"'

Ol">V 00 - ....o-.-, <D .... 0
ci t- <O oo<"'>f">
IO O 0 ;! r- MIX!. co

o..-oor-r-Nor-
00>0>010co<010.ffl
i.riomo..-o"ft'Nil')
0> 00r-r-m10V<0 r,.;.;
M<ON OVN N

NOD CO _g

g
·d

OMOV-.;tN·ew> Or-«>ONNOor- 0 OOOIOOOOOOIO "'NVOU>OV.r- ONNONr-Oll>O> ... OOONOOOOON "';:,;·,...:ocoooMm 33%5"5 ;:: o iaooouio-o :.:V ..- N 10 CJ> U>Or-VN VONt-..,.., mr-O>N "!. t-t-NM..- r 0 .,- "' IOI.Ooi ........ .... t:: .t: .,; "'co "' a, .,

0000000 00000000.0 0 0000000000 0ooooooo 000000000 9 0000000000 0

<28°g3$ OCONr-r-oMor- 5 gggggggggg :.:NCONNO><OV U>
OVN OVN VNV..- r-<O N "t 0 to ow- go « y ....
mew>...: oo ...:M ., .,; ,... 00 N ,.... N O> ;;;g _,.__ - N 0 - -N "'

ggggggg 000000000 £ 0000000000 0
000000000 0000000000 0

'¢mdocoU>-.ii cicoNr-r-oMor- ooocioooooo :.:,.__ CO 0 vcnoo NCONNO><OV lO 4 0000000000o y o t ..,.N"'lt -r-r-<O N O> 0OM ow- - y "':c»CW>..- :-ge ., co ,-.. -ocr r g ;;;~ .... ye N
N

co
00
00..,
N..,
y

g
"'00

"'•....co
i....
"'.,;
N

0
0
0

"'....
00

co ....
NO
,,; 00o,-..
.... 00....

a::wco
::!:
::::,
z
...J
(.9

z
0
1==
0..
Ei:
()
U)
w
0

0, C

a:: g e,
0.. --i >:'.
"' N
(:,I
0,
(:,I 0, (1J~ CX) ,:,

0, C
2 0, (1J

£ Ag
a::
0..

"' ,:,(:,I
"' I'!
(:,I LJ..
CX)

¥5&
<I> c,-,g?
::::,

""' """' u-o Cges
..:"'"'j:::

sC,
0a.
C
::::,

OWc,::goo•o..-,: 0
co

z
2
3
LJ..
LJ..
0
Eu
a::
0
LJ..
f-
0 0g3
!RSu 0zo
4co z
f- wzo::::io8 Ei:g4



APPROVAL REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION MTG. DATE
September 5, 2023

Reports &
Recommendations

AResolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute a ITEM NO.
Development Agreement with the Developer of Woodfield Trail Ald. Dist. 6

Condominiums, Located at
12000 W. Loomis Road (TKN 891 9011 000) U•.

BACKGROUND
Pursuant to the approval of the Woodfield Trail Condominium Development, it is necessary to
enter into a development agreement (DA), at an estimated cost of improvements to the developer
of $1,446,070.00. The developer is Boomtown, LLC.

The condominium plat was approved by Common Council on September 6, 2022 (Resolution
2022-7895).

ANALYSIS
This agreement provides for the necessary public improvements required for the Woodfield Trail
Condominium development. Included in the agreement is the extension of public roads, storm
sewer, sanitary sewer, and water main throughout the site.

OPTIONS
It is recommended that the Common Council approve the enclosed standard form of the DA with
specific items contained in Exhibit "E" attached.

Insurance certificates were requested and will be reviewed for conformance with current City
requirements.

FISCAL NOTE
Municipal services and contingencies are accepted with percentages and are included in bond.

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2023- a resolution authorizing certain officials to execute
a development agreement with the developer of Woodfield Trail Condominiums, located at 12000
W. Loomis Road (TKN 891 9011 000).

Engineering: TAB



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2023----

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE A
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE DEVELOPER OF WOODFIELD TRAIL

CONDOMINIUMS, LOCATED AT
12000 W. LOOMIS ROAD {TKN 891 9011 000)

WHEREAS, the Common Council at its regular meeting on September 6, 2022,
recommended approval of the condominium plat; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Franklin to provide an orderly
planned development of Woodfield Trail Condominiums; and

WHEREAS, Boomtown, LLC, the developer, is willing to complete the installation of
the improvements provided for in the Development Agreement; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute
the Development Agreement on behalf of the City with the developer.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is directed to record the
Development Agreement with the Register ofDeeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2023 by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- -- --



CITY OF FRANKLIN

WISCONSIN

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

FOR

WOODFIELD TRAIL

September 2023

1



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

WOODFIELD TRAIL

ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT (THIS "Agreement") made and entered into this _
day of 2023, by and between Boomtown LLC, a Wisconsm Limited
Liability Company, hereinafter called the "Developer" as party of the first part, and the City of
Franklin, a municipal corporation of Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, party of the second part,
hereinafter called the "City".

WITNESSETH.

WHEREAS, the Developer desires to improve and develop certain lands located in the
City as described on attached Exhibit "A" (the "Development"), and for that purpose cause the
installation of certain public improvements, hereinafter described in this Agreement and the
exhibits hereto (the "Improvements"), and

WHEREAS, the Developer having applied to the City for Natural Resources Special
Exception, Special Use Site Plan and Condominium Plat, and the approval[s] thereof by the City
of Franklin Plan Commission and City of Franklin Common Council, providing that as a
condition of approving the Development, that the Developer shall make and install, or have any
public improvements reasonably necessary, and as hereinafter set forth; and

WHEREAS, the public works schedule and budget of the City does not now include the
Improvements for the Development and normally there would be a considerable delay in the
installation of the Improvements unless this Agreement is entered into by the parties; and

WHEREAS, the City believes that the orderly planned development of the Development
wll best promote the health, safety and general welfare of the community, and hence 1s willing
to approve the Development provided the Developer proceed with the installation of the
Improvements in and as may be required for the Development, on the terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement and the exhibits attached hereto.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the payment of One Dollar ($1.00) and other
good and valuable consideration to each in hand paid by the other, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties agree·

1. The legal description of the Development is set forth on attached Exhibit "A".

2 The improvements aforementioned shall be as described in Exhibit "B" except as
noted in Exhibit "E".

3. The Developer shall prepare plans and specifications for the aforesaid
Improvements, under direction of the City Engineer, and to be approved by the
City Engineer. After receiving the City's approval thereof, the Developer shall
take bids, and award contracts (the "Improvements Contracts") for and install all

2



of the improvements in accordance with standard engineering and public works
practices, and the applicable statutes of the State of Wisconsin. The
Improvements shall be based on the construction specifications stated in attached
Exhibit "F".

4 The full cost of the Improvements will include all labor, equipment, material,
engineering, surveying, inspection and overhead costs necessary or incidental to
completing the Improvements (collectively the "Improvements Costs"). Payment
for the Improvements Costs will be made by the Developer periodically as the
Improvements are completed as provided in the Improvements Contracts. The
total estimated cost of the Improvements is One Million, Four Hundred Forty-Six
Thousand, Seventy and 00/100 Dollars as itemized in attached Exhibit "D".

5. To assure compliance with all of Developer's obligations under this Agreement,
prior to the issuance of any building permits, the Developer shall file with the
City a Financial Guarantee (the "Financial Guarantee", which may be either in the
form of a Letter of Credit or a Performance Bond and such form shall be the
choice of the Developer) in the initial amount of $1,446,070 00, representing the
estimated costs for the Improvements as shown in attached Exhibit "D". Upon
the written approval of the City Engineer, the amount of the Financial Guarantee
may be reduced periodically as the Improvements are paid for and approved by
the City so that following each such reduct1on, the Financial Guarantee equals the
total amount remaining for Improvements Costs pertaining to Improvements for
which Developer has not paid as set forth in the Improvements Contracts for the
Improvements or which remain unapproved by the City. The Financial Guarantee
shall be issued by a bank or other financial institution (the "Surety Guarantee
Issuer") reasonably satisfactory to the City, for the City as "Beneficiary", in a
form satisfactory to the City Attorney. Failure to file the Financial Guarantee
within ten (10) days after written demand by the Caty to the Developer shall make
and render this Agreement null and void, at the election of the City. Upon
acceptance by the City (as described below) of and payment by Developer for all
the completed Improvements, the Financial Guarantee shall be released and
surrendered by the City to the Developer, and thereafter the Developer shall have
no further obligation to provide the Financial Guarantee to the City under this
Paragraph 5., except as set forth under Paragraph 13. below.

6. In the event the Developer fails to pay the required amount for the Improvements
or services enumerated herein within thirty (30) days or per contract after being
billed for each improvement of each stage for any Improvement Costs at the time
and mn the manner provided in this Agreement, and if amounts remain unpaid after
an additional thirty (30) days written notice to Developer, the City may notify the
Guarantee Issuer in writing to make the said payments under the terms of the
Financial Guarantee to the Contractor, within the later of the time frame stipulated
mn the Financial Guarantee or five (5) days after receiving a written demand from
the City to make such payment Demand shall be sent by registered letter with a
return receipt requested, addressed to the Surety Guarantee Issuer at the address

3



indicated on the Financial Guarantee, with a copy to the Developer, described mn
Paragraph five (5) above. It is understood between the parties to this Agreement,
that billings for the Improvement Costs shall take place as the various segments
and sections of the Improvements are completed and certified by the City
Engineer as complying with the approved plans and applicable provisions of the
Franklm Municipal Code.

In addition, the City Engineer may demand that the Financial Guarantee be
extended from time to time to provide that the Financial Guarantee be in force
until such time that all improvements have been installed and accepted through
the one (1) year guarantee period as set forth under Paragraph 13 below,
including the fourteen (14) months following substantial completion of the
Improvements and 10% limitations also set forth thereunder. For the purposes of
this Agreement, "Substantial Completion" is defined as being the date that the
binder course of asphalt is placed on the public roadway of the Development.
Demand for said extension shall be sent by registered letter with a return receipt,
with a copy to the Developer. If said Financial Guarantee is not extended for a
minimum of a one (1) year period prior to expiration date of the Financial
Guarantee (subject to any then applicable of the aforementioned limitations), the
City may send written notice to the Surety Guarantee Issuer to make payment of
the remaining balance of the Financial Guarantee to the City to be placed as an
escrow deposit.

7. The following spec1al provisions shall apply:

(a) Those special provisions as item1zed on attached Exhibit "C" and attached
Exhibit "E" are hereby incorporated by reference in this Agreement and
made a part hereof as if fully set forth herein.

(b) The laterals mentioned in Exhibit "B" are to be installed before street
surfacing mentioned in Exhibit "B" is commenced.

(c) Gas Company is to install all necessary mains before the street surfacmng
mentioned in Exhibit "B" is commenced. Also, any other underground
work by any other utilities is also to be completed before said street
surfacing is commenced.

(d) To the extent necessary to accommodate public utilities easements on the
Development, easements will be dedicated for the use of the Electric
Company, the Telephone Company and Cable Company to provide utility
services to the Development. All utilities shall be underground except for
any existing utility poles/lines.

(e) The curb face to curb face width of the roads in the Development shall be
as determined by the City Engineer.

4



(f) Fee title to all of the Improvements and binding easements upon lands on
which they are located, shall be dedicated and given by the Developer to
the City, in form and content as required by the City, without recourse,
and free and clear of all liens or encumbrances, with final inspection and
approval of the Improvements and accompanying title and easement
documents by the City constitutmg acceptance of such dedication The
Improvements shall thereafter be under the jurisdiction of, the City and the
City shall maintain, at the City's expense, all of the Improvements after
completion and acceptance thereof by the City Necessary permits shall
be obtained for all work described in this Agreement.

8. The Developer agrees that it shall be fully responsible for all the Improvements in
the Development and appurtenances thereto during the period the Improvements
are being constructed and continuing until the Improvements are accepted by the
City (the "Construction Period"). Damages that may occur to the Improvements
during the Construction Period shall be replaced or repaired by the Developer.
The Developer's obligations under this Paragraph 8., as to any improvement,
terminates upon acceptance of that improvement by the City.

9. The Developer shall take all reasonable precautions to protect persons and
property of others on or adjacent to the Development from injury or damage
durmg the Construction Penod. This duty to protect shall mclude the duty to
provide, place and maintain at and about the Development, lights and barricades
during the Construction Period

10 If the persons or property of others sustain loss, damage or inJury resulting
directly or indirectly from the work of the Developer or its subcontractors or
materialmen in their performance of this Agreement or from its failure to comply
wIth any of the provisions of this Agreement or of law, the Developer shall
indemnify and hold the City harmless from any and all claims and judgments for
damages, and from costs and expenses to which the City may be subjected or
which it may suffer or incur by reason thereof, provided; however, that the City
shall provide to the Developer promptly, in writing, notice of the alleged loss,
damage or injury.

11. Except as otherwise provided in Paragraph 12. below, the Developer shall
mdemnify and save harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees, and
shall defend the same, from and agamst any and all liability, claims, loss,
damages, interest, actions, suits, judgments, costs, expenses, and attorneys' fees,
to whomsoever owed and by whomsoever and whenever brought or obtained,
which in any manner results from or arises in connection with·

(a) the neglgent or willfully wrongful performance of thus Agreement by the
Developer or any subcontractor retained by the Developer,

5



(b) the negligent or willfully wrongful construction of the Improvements by
the Developer or by any of said subcontractors;

(c) the negligent or willfully wrongful operation of the Improvements by the
Developer during the Construction Period;

(d) the violation by the Developer or by any of said subcontractors of any
applicable law, rule, regulation, order or ordinance; or

(e) the mfringement by the Developer or by any of said subcontractors of any
patent, trademark, trade name or copyright.

12. Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the Developer shall
not be obligated to indemnify the City or the City's officers, agents or employees
(collectively the "Indemnified Parties") from any liability, claim, loss, damage,
mterest, action, suit, judgment, cost, expenses or attorneys fees which arise from
or as a result of the negligence or willful misconduct of any of the Indemnified
Parties.

13. The Developer hereby guarantees that the Improvements will be free of defects in
material and/or workmanship for a period of one (1) year from the date of
acceptance of the Improvements by the City. To secure the Developer's
obligations under said guaranty upon acceptance of the Improvements by the City,
the Developer will provde to the City a Financial Guarantee equal to 10% of the
sub-total in Exhibit "D of the total Improvements Costs, which Financial
Guarantee shall expire one (1) year after the Improvements have been accepted by
the City or continue the existing base Financial Guarantee maintaining a
minimum of l 0% of the sub-total in Exhibit "D" of the total Improvements Costs
for one (1) year after the improvements have been accepted by the City. This
Financial Guarantee shall be a partial continuation of, and not in addition to, the
Financial Guarantee described in Paragraph 5. above.

14. 14 (a) The Developer shall not commence work on the Improvements until it
has obtained all insurance coverage required under this Paragraph 14. and has
filed certificates thereof with the City:

A General/Commercial L1ab1lrty
To be provded by the
Developer's subcontractor,
Reesman's Excavating &
Gradmg Inc

6

$1,000,000 per each occurrence for bodily
injury, personal mnyury, and property damage
$3,000,000 per general aggregate,

CITY shall be named as an addttwnal insured
on aprimary, non-contributory bass



B Automobile L1ab1lrty
To be provided by the
Developer's subcontractor,
Reesman's Excavatng &
Grading Inc
C Contractor's Pollution Liability
To be provided by the
Developer's subcontractor,
Reesman's Excavatng &
Gradmng Inc
D Umbrella or Excess Liability
Coverage for
General/Commercial, Automobile
Liability, and Contractor's
Pollution L1ab1lrty
To be provided by the
Developer's subcontractor,
Reesman 's Excavating &
Grading Inc

$1,000,000 combmed smgle hm1t

CITYshall be namedas an addztwnal znsured
on aprmary, non-contributory bass

$1,000,000 per occurrence
$2,000,000 aggregate

CITYshall be namedas an addztwnal znsured
on aprzmary, non-contributory baszs

$15,000,000 per occurrence for bodily mJury,
personal mnyury, and property

CITY shall be named as an addztwnal znsured
on aprimary, non-contrbutory bass Umbrella
is excess over the underlying General Lablty

E. Worker's Compensation and Statutory
Employers' L1ability
To be provided by the
Developer's subcontractor,
Reesman's Excavatng&
Grading Inc
F Professional Liability (Errors $2,000,000 smgle limit
& Om1ss1ons)
To be provided by the
Developer's subcontractor,
Pinnacle Engmneerng Group,
Inc

(b) The Developer shall file a certificate ofmsurance containing a thirty (30) day
notice of cancellation to the City prior to any cancellation or change of said
msurance coverage which coverage amounts shall not be reduced by claims not
arising from this Agreement.

15 The Developer shall not be released or discharged of its obhgat10ns under this
Agreement until the City has completed its final inspection of all the
Improvements and the City has issued its wntten approval of all of the
Improvements, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed,
and Developer has paid all of the Improvements Costs, at which time the
Developer shall have no further obligations under this Agreement except for the
one (1) year guaranty under Paragraph 13

7

Contractor willprovide a waiver ofsubrogaton
and/or any rights ofrecovery allowed under any
workers' compensaton law



16. The Developer and the City hereby agree that the cost and value of the
Improvements will become an integral part of the value of the Development and
that no future lot assessments or other types of special assessments of any kind
will be made against the Development by the Developer or by the City for the
benefit of the Developer, to recoup or obtain the reimbursement of any
Improvement Costs for the Developer

17. Execution and performance of this Agreement shall be accepted by the City as
adequate provision for the Improvements required by the City Engineer

18. Penalties for Developer's failure to perform any or all parts of this Agreement
shall be in accordance with Division 15-9.0500, Violations, Penalties, and
Remedies of the Unified Development Ordmance and § 1-19. Penalty provisions
of the City of Franklin Municipal Code, as amended from time to time, in addition
to any other remedies provided by law or in equity so that the City may obtain
Developer's compliance with the terms of this Agreement as necessary.

This Agreement shall be bindmg upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and
assigns, excepting that the parties hereto do not otherwise intend the terms or provisions of this
Agreement to be enforceable by or provide any benefit to any person or entity other than the
party of the first part and the party of the second part. Developer shall not convey or assign any
of its rights or obligatons under ths contract whatsoever without the written consent of the City,
which shall not be unreasonably withheld upon a showing that any successor or assignee is
ready, willing and able to fully perform the terms hereof and the Developer remams liable
hereunder. This Agreement shall run with the land.

[The remainder of thus page 1s intentionally left blank Signatures are on the following pages ]

8



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said party of the first part has set its hand and seal and the
said party of the second part has caused these presents to be duly executed by John R Nelson,
Mayor, and Karen L Kastenson, City Clerk, and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed as of
the day and year first above written.

SEALED IN PRESENCE OF:-------------
Boomtown, LLC

By: _
Name: -----------
Title:

Party of the First Part

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)ss.

COUNTY )

Personally came before me this (day) of 20 the
above named of and
acknowledged that [she/he] executed the foregoing instrument as such officer as the deed of said

by 1ts authority.

(type

or
This instrument was acknowledged before me on (date)
by (name(s) of person(s)) as

of authority, e.g., officer, trustee, etc.) of
_________________ (name of party on behalf of whom mstrument
was executed).

Notary Public,County, WI
( )
My commiss1on expires.

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By: _
Name· John R. Nelson
Title. Mayor

COUNTERSIGNED·

By.--------------
Name: Karen L. Kastenson
Title City Clerk

9



Party of the Second Part

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)ss

COUNTY )

Personally came before me thisday of .20. the
above named John R Nelson, Mayor, and Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk, of the above named
municipal corporation, City of Franklin, to me known to be such Mayor and City Clerk of said
municipal corporation, and acknowledged that they had executed the foregoing instrument as
such officers as the Deed of said municipal corporation by its authority and pursuant to
Resolution No.adopted by its Common Council on the day of
--------~20_.

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, WI
( )
My commission expires:

This instrument was drafted by the City Engineer for the City of Franklin.

Form approved

Jesse A. Wesolowski, City Attorney

10



Exhibit A

Exhibit B

Exhibit C

Exhibit D

Exhibit E

Exhibit F

INDEX OF EXHIBITS
TO

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

WOODFIELD TRAIL

Legal Description of Development

General Description of Required Development Improvements

General Development Requirements

Estimated Improvement Costs

Additional Development Requirements

Construction Specifications

11



EXHIBIT IIA II

TO
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

FOR
WOODFIELD TRAIL

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
OF DEVELOPMENT

Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No 9338, recorded as Document Number 11148158 with the
Milwaukee County Register of Deeds.

12



EXHIBIT "B"
TO

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

WOODFIELD TRAIL

GENERAL DESCRIPTION
OF

REQUIRED DEVELOPMENT
IMPROVEMENTS

Description of improvements required to be installed to develop the Woodfield Trail
Condominium Development

*S Denotes contract for improvements to be awarded, financed and paid
for by the Developer in lieu of special assessments.

*C Denotes contract for improvements to be awarded by the City, but
financed and paid for by the Developer in accordance with this
agreement.

(N.A.) Denotes Improvement 1s not required to be installed m the
Development.

(l) Denotes that the City is to pay for a portion of the improvement, mn
accordance with this agreement, as computed by the City Engineer.

General Description of Improvements
(refer to additional sheets for concise breakdown)

1. Grading of all lots and blocks within the Development in conformance *S
with the approved grading plan.

2. Grading of the streets within the Development in accordance with the *S
established street grades and the City approved street cross-section and
specifications.

3. Installation of concrete or asphalt permanent pavement with vertical face S
concrete curb and gutter in accordance with present City specifications.

4. Sanitary sewer main and appurtenances in the streets and/or easement in *S
the Development, to such size and extent as determined by the master
sewer plan and/or City Engineer, as necessary to provide adequate service
for the final Development and drainage area

13



5. Laterals and appurtenances from sanitary sewer main to the street line; one S
for each building as determined by the Caty

6. Water main and fittings in the streets and/or easement in the *S
Development, to such size and extent as determined by the master water
plan and/or the City Engineer as necessary to provide adequate service for
the final Development and service area.

7 Laterals and appurtenances from water main to the street line; one for * S
each building, as determined by the City Engineer together with curb stop
as specified by the City.

8. Hydrants and appurtenances provided and spaced to adequately service S
the area and as the City shall reqmre.

9. Paved streets with curb and gutter in the Development to the approved *S
grade and m accordance with the City specifications.

10. Concrete sidewalks m the Development to the approved grade and m *S
accordance with the City specifications

11. Concrete, asphalt or chipped pedestrian walks in dedicated pedestrian *S
ways and easements m the Development as approved by the City.

12. Concrete driveways between the street lme and curb and gutter for each (N.A.)
lot as specified and approved by the City

13. Street trees *C

14. Protective fencing adjacent to pedestrian ways, etc (N.A)

15. Engineering, planning and administration services as approved. s

16. Drainage system as determined and/or approved by the City to adequately S
drain the surface water from the Development and drainage basin area in
accordance with the master drainage plan and/or approved system plan.

17. Street hghting and appurtenances along the street right-of-way as *C
determined by the City.

18. Street signage in such locations and such size and des1gn as determined by Cc
the City.

19 Title evidence on all conveyances. sg

14



EXHIBIT "C"
TO

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

WOODFIELD TRAIL

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS

I. GENERAL

A. The Developer shall prepare a plat of the land, plans for improvements, as-built
drawings of the improvements and all other items in accordance with all
applicable state laws and City ordinances and regulations.

B. All improvements shall be installed in accordance with all City specifications and
ordinances.

C. The entire Development as proposed shall be recorded.

II LOT SIZE AND UNIT SIZE

A Units

1. The minimum area of any living unit built in the project shall be as
specified in the Franklin Municipal Code and Unified Development
Ordinance in effect at the time the permit is issued unless otherwise
specified m the agreement

III. WATER SYSTEM

A. Availability

l. Each and every lot in the Development shall be served by a water main.

2 The Developer shall provide for the extension of the water system to
abutting properties by laymg water pipe m public right-of-way or mn water
easement to the exterior lot line of the Development as directed by the
City Engineer

3. Laterals shall be laud to each and every building. Size shall be approved
by the City Engineer.

15



IV

4 Fire hydrants shall be available to the City's Ftre and Public Works
Departments, and both Crty Departments shall have free and unlimited use
of the water.

B. Construction

All construction shall be in accordance with the specifications of the City.

2 Inspection of the work shall be at the Developer's expense.

3 Mains and appurtenances including all pipe, hydrants, gate valves, laterals
and curb stop boxes shall be installed.

SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM

A. Components

Sanitary sewerage service through and within the Development shall be provided.
It shall consist of without limitation because of enumeration, sanitary sewer,
manholes, appurtenances, laterals, and other appurtenances

B Avatlabihty

1 Each and every buuldmng in the Development shall be served by a sanitary
sewer.

2 Laterals shall be laid to the lot line of each and every bmldmg.

3 a) The Developer shall provide for the extension of the sanitary
sewer system to abutting properties by laying sewer pipe to the
exterior lot lines of the Development as directed by the City
Engineer, and in accordance with system plans as approved by
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District.

b) In the event that adjacent property owners request sewer service
prior to the time the sewer extensions are installed to the exterior
boundaries of the Development as described in Section IV. B 3.(a)
above, the City is hereby granted the right to install said extens1ons
within the Development at the expense of the Developer. All costs
for installing sewer systems outside of the boundaries of the
Development shall be paid by the adjacent property owners upon
any special assessment proceedings had by the City or waiver
thereof by the adjacent property owners pursuant to Wis Stat. §
66.0701 Special assessments by local ordinance, and §207.15
Special assessments, of the Municipal Code

16



V. STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

A. Components

Storm water management through and within the Development shall be provided
by means of storm sewer, culverts and ditches installed within the road required
as per approved storm water management plan. It shall consist of, without
limitation because of enumeration, sewers, culverts, pipes, manholes, catch
basins, mlets, leads, open swales, retention basins and absorption ponds as
determined by the City Engineer. The City, at the determination of the City
Engineer, may have the storm water management plan and system reviewed by a
consultant engineer at the Developer's cost

B. Endwalls

1. Endwalls shall be approved by the City Engineer.

2 Endwalls shall be installed on each and every culvert and at all open ends
of storm sewers.

C. Outfalls and Retaining Walls

1. Outfalls and retaining walls shall be built where required by the City
Engineer.

2 The aesthetic design of said structures shall be approved by the
Architectural Board.

3 The structural design of any retaining wall of three feet mn height or more,
shall be done by a licensed professional engineer registered in the State of
Wisconsin

D Responsibility of Discharged Water

1. The Developer shall be responsible for the storm drainage until it crosses the
exterior property line of the Development or until it reaches a point designated by
the City outside of and adjacent to the property from which the water crosses
over, under or through artificial or natural barriers. The water shall be brought to
said pomt by an open ditch or other means as directed by the City Engineer.

2. However, if the Developer of the Development will, in the opinion of the City
Engineer, cause water problems downstream from the Development which will
reasonably require special consideration, the Developer shall comply with such
terms as the City Engineer may reqmre to prevent these problems. Said terms
shall be made part of those documents under the section titled "Special
Provisions".

17



VI. STREETS

A. Locat1on

Streets shall be constructed in such a manner that the centerline of
roadway shall be centerline ofright-of-way.

2 Streets shall be constructed in each and every road right-of-way platted
and shall be built to the extenor lot line of the Development whenever
possible except as noted in Exhibit "E".

B. Names

The names of all streets shall be approved by the City Engineer

C. Construction

All streets shall be built in accordance with the specifications on file in the
City Engineer's Office.

2 All streets shall be constructed with 8" of stone base and 4" of A/C binder
course prior to Development certification. The 2" A/C surface course
shall be installed when 90% of the lots within the Development have been
built upon or at the discretion of the City Engineer.

Before the final lift of asphalt can be mstalled withm a Development the
Developer must make arrangements to repair damaged or failed concrete
curb and gutter, concrete walk, asphalt base course or sub-grade. Also,
damaged or failed utility appurtenances must be repaired, rebuilt or
replaced by the Developer's contractor prior to the installation of the final
hft of asphalt pavement.

All associated costs with this work wll be the responsibility of the
Developer.

3 The construction shall be inspected by the City or its agent and all fees due
to such inspection shall be paid by Developer

D. Snow Removal and Ice Control

The responsibility for snow removal and ice control on all streets within the
Development shall lie with the Developer until:

a) The plat is recorded; and

18



b) The streets have been provisionally approved by the City.

VII EASEMENTS

A. Drainage

l. All drainage easements dedicated to the public shall be improved as
follows:

a) Storm sewer or lmed invert open channel, unless otherwise agreed
upon by the Developer and the City.

b) S1de slopes no steeper than 4:1

c) Landscaped in accordance with the applicable City regulations
and/or approvals conditions for the Development for landscaping
requirements or, in the case of storm sewer, as directed by the City
Engmeer

2 Pedestr1an

a) The public recreational trails shall be constructed and mstalled in
accordance with the plans approved by the City Engineer.

b) The edge of the walk shall be at least one (1) foot from either side
of the easement.

VIII. PERMITS ISSUED

A. Building Permits

I. No building permits shall be issued until:

a) The sanitary and storm sewer and water mains have been installed,
tested and approved.

b) The necessary storm water management facilities have been rough
grade certified by the design engineer and approved by the City
Engineer ..

c) Streets and lots have been rough graded and approved, and curb
and gutter installed and the base course of asphalt pavement
installed.

d) The plat has been recorded.

19



e) All Development monuments have been set

2 Buildmg permits may be granted for model homes prior to satisfying the
above conditions, provided an agreement relating thereto has been
approved by the Common Council of the City of Franklin.

B. Occupancy Permits

1. No temporary occupancy permits shall be issued until:

a) Streets have been paved except for the final lift of asphalt.

b) The gas, telephone and electrical services have been installed and
are in operation.

c) The water system is installed, tested and approved

d) The site 1s stabilized and the necessary storm water management
facilities have been re-certified by the design engineer and
approved by the City Engineer.

IX DEED RESTRICTIONS

A. A Financial Guarantee approved by the Carty Attorney mn the full amount of all
non-assessable improvements not yet installed and approved as of the date of this
Agreement shall be submitted to the City before any permits are issued.

B. The time of completion of improvements.

1. The Developer shall take all action necessary so as to have all the
improvements specified in this Agreement installed and approved by the
City before two years from the date of this agreement

2. Should the Developer fail to take said action by said date, it is agreed that
the City, at its option and at the expense of the Developer, may cause the
installation of or the correction of any deficiencies in said improvements.

X. CHARGES FOR SERVICES BY THE CITY OF FRANKLIN

A. Fee for Checking and Review

At the time of submitting the plans and specifications for the construction of the
Development improvements, a fee equal to two-and-one-fourth percent (2¼ %) of
the cost of the improvements as estimated by the City Engineer at the time of
submiss1on of improvement plans and specifications, to partially cover the cost to
the City of checking and reviewing such plans and specifications provided that

20



cost does not exceed $250,000.00, a fee equal to one-and-three-fourth percent (1¾
%) of such cost, if the cost is in excess of $250,000 00, but not in excess of
$500,000.00; and one-and-one-fourth percent (1 ¼ %) of said cost in excess of
$500,000.00. At the demand of the Developer or City Engineer, the fee may be
recomputed after the work is done in accordance with the actual cost of such
improvements and the difference, if any, shall be paid by or remitted to the
Developer. Evidence of cost shall be mn such detail and form as required by the
City Engineer.

B. For the services of testing labs, consulting engmeers and other personnel, the
Developer agrees to pay the City the actual charge plus five (5%) percent for
admimstration and overhead

21



EXHIBIT "D"
TO

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR WOODFIELD TRAIL

ESTIMATED IMPROVEMENT COSTS

costs or t e project are estimate 0 e as o ows

DESCRIPTION COSTS
Grading (including Erosion Control) $223,718.43

Sanitary System $191,726.80

Water System $191,281.56

Storm Sewer System $245,794.83

Paving (including sidewalk) $160,295.00

Street Trees (21 x $400/lot) $8,400.00

Street Lights ( 1 ) @ approximately $5,000/ea. $5,000.00

Street Signs $2,500.00

Underground Electric, Gas and Telephone $80,000.00

Retention Basin Included in Grading

SUBTOTAL $1,180,716.62

Engineering/Consulting Services $38,000.00

Municipal Services $77,610.16
(7% of Subtotal)

Contingency Fund $221,743.32
(20% of Subtotal)

TOTAL: $1,446,070 00

All improvement costs, including but not limited to preparation of plans, installation of facilities
and mspection shall be borne by the Developer in accordance with Paragraph (4) of this
Agreement.
Said f h dt b fll

Total: One Million, Four Hundred Forty-Six Thousand. Seventy and 00/100 Dollars.

APPROVED BY: Date:
Glen E. Morrow, City Engmeer

22



EXHIBIT flE fl
TO

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

WOODFIELD TRAIL

ADDITIONAL DEVELOPMENT
REQUIREMENTS

I. The Developer agrees that it shall pay to the City of Franklin for one (1) public street
light fixtures and poles as provided by WE-Energies. The LED fixtures shall be oval
high lumen (143 watts) for major intersections and medium lumen (92 watts) for the
mtenor of the subdivision. The poles shall be 35-foot fiberglass with 6-foot arm
(position over the City street). Non-LED lights are not permitted.

2. The Developer shall make every effort to protect and retain all existing trees, shrubbery,
vines and grasses pursuant to the approved Natural Resource Protection Plan (the
"NRPP"). Trees shall be protected and preserved during construction in accordance with
sound conservation practices as outlined in §§15-8 0204A. through F. of the Unified
Development Ordinance.

3. The Developer shall cause all grading, excavations, open cuts, side slopes and other land
surface disturbances to be so mulched, seeded, sodded or otherwise protected that
eros10n, siltation, sedimentation and washing are prevented in accordance with the plans
and specifications approved by the City Engineer as outlmed in§§ 15-8.0203H.1. through
5. of the Unified Development Ordmance

4. The Developer agrees to pay the City for street trees planted by the City on S Sophia
Court at the rate of $400 per tree with a planting distance between trees of 85 feet on the
average. The City shall determine the planting schedule and shall be responsible for tree
maintenance and replacement except for damage caused by the Developer, the
Developer's sub-contractors, or the lot owners

5. The requirements for the installation of concrete driveway approaches shall be omitted
from this agreement because the Developer will require that the owners of said lots install
concrete driveway approaches, as required by the Franklm Building Inspector

6. The Developer shall be responsible for cleaning up the debris that has blown from
buildings under construction within the Development. The Developer shall clean up all
debris within forty-eight (48) hours after receiving a notice from the City Engineer.

7. The Developer shall be responsible for cleaning up the mud and dirt on the roadways
until such time as the final lift of asphalt has been installed. The Developer shall clean
the roadways within forty-eght (48) hours after recervmng a notice from the City
Engineer.

23



8. Prior to commencing site grading, the Developer shall submit for approval by the City
Engineer an erosion and silt control plan. Said plan shall provide sufficient control of the
site to prevent siltation downstream from the site The Developer shall maintain the
erosion and siltation control until such time that vegetation sufficient to equal pre
ex1sting conditions has been established.

9 The Developer shall preserve the environmental natural resource features as shown on the
Natural Resource Protection Plan and shall install an orange snow fence and silt fence
around the environmental natural resource features prior to land disturbing.

10. The Developer shall install an 8-mch diameter water main on S Sophia Court from the
existing water main located on W Ryan Road, north of the Development

11. Prior to commencing any land disturbance, the Developer shall employ a forestry expert
approved by the City Forester to review the development and during the development
process make periodic inspections to monitor the activity relative to the protection of the
woodlands. Periodic reports shall be furnished to the Environmental Commission,
Planning Manager and City Engmeer, the purpose of these requirements being to ensure
compliance with the Unified Development Ordmance.

12 The Developer shall mforrn the persons purchasmg lots of their obhgat10n to cut weeds to
conform to the City's noxious weed ordinance.

13. The Developer shall construct storm water management facilities as required in the Storm
Water Management Plan in accordance with the plans and specifications approved by the
City Engineer Maintenance of said storm water management fac1litres shall be the
responsibility of the Developer and/or owners association.

14. The Developer shall create a Condominium Association for the care and maintenance of
all common lands, mcluding all storm water management facilities, and other green areas
Said Condominium Association documents shall be reviewed and approved by the
Franklin Plan Commission or as may otherwise be provided by the UDO, prior to
recordmg of the Condominium Plat. The Developer is responsible to recertify the storm
water management facilities after the site is stabilized and prior to the conveyance to the
Condominium Association.

15. Condominium Association documents shall include a Declaration of Restrictions and
Covenants specifying the preservation of the existing storm water management systems
and landscaping and entryways. Said document shall be recorded after review and
approval by the City Attorney.

16. Construction Requirements:

a) Prior to any construction actrvrty on the site, Developer shall prepare a gravel
surfaced parkmng area within the boundaries of the site.

24



b) During construction, all vehicles and equipment shall park on the site. Parking shall
not be permitted on any external public right-of-way

c) Prior to issuance of any building permits other than in the case of the issuance of any
model structure permits, all necessary grading and improvements shall be completed
as directed by the City Engineer.

d) All traffic shall enter the site from West Ryan Road

17. The Developer shall provide for the connection to the existing West Ryan Road and
install any necessary curb and gutter and pavement.

25



EXHIBIT "F"
TO

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

WOODFIELD TRAIL

CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS

The following specifications shall be used for the construction of the various Improvements.

ITEM SPECIFICATION

Storm & Sanitary Sewer STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR
SEWER AND WATER CONSTRUCTION
IN WISCONSIN, most current edition
CITY OF FRANKLIN

Water Mains STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR
SEWER AND WATER CONSTRUCTION
IN WISCONSIN, most current edition
CITY OF FRANKLIN

Concrete Curb & Gutter CITY OF FRANKLIN

Streets:

Construction CITY OF FRANKLIN

Materials
Asphalt CITY OF FRANKLIN
Aggregate CITY OF FRANKLIN
Concrete CITY OF FRANKLIN

Cross Section CITY OF FRANKLIN

26



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute an
Agreement with Carl Collective (Trozzolo Creative

Resources Inc.), for Marketing Materials Development
Professional Services

MEETING
DATE

September 5, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

Annexed hereto is a copy of the above-entitled Resolution and the Agreement with Attachment A thereto.

At its May 16, 2023 meeting the Common Council directed staff to solicit proposals from qualified vendors to
provide marketing collateral to the City of Franklin. As directed, the City's Economic Development Commission
collaborated with staff to select a firm and negotiate an agreement for submission to the Common Council for
approval (Agreement annexed hereto).

As proposed to the Common Council, the initial agreement contains deliverables pertaining to economic
development marketing materials including: Business Development Guide, business park fliers, stock photography,
webpage development and, potentially, other marketing collateral.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute an Agreement with Carl Collective
(Trozzolo Creative Resources Inc.), for Marketing Materials Development Professional Services.

Economic Development JGR



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH CARL COLLECTIVE (TROZZOLO CREATIVE RESOURCES

INC.), FOR MARKETING MATERIALS DEVELOPMENT PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Economic Development Commission having received Common
Council approval to solicit proposals for development ofmarketing materials for the City and
having received said proposals and having negotiated a services agreement with a vendor;
and

WHEREAS, Carl Collective (Trozzolo Creative Resources Inc.), is a professional
marketing services organization respected for its expert services regarding community
promotional services and Carl Collective has proposed to provide such necessary services
with regard to generating marketing materials for the City of Franklin; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council upon the recommendation of the Economic
Development Commission and City staff having reviewed such proposed agreement for
professional services and having found same to be reasonable.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Agreement to Provide Marketing Materials
Development with Carl Collective, in the form and content as annexed hereto, be and the
same is hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor, City Clerk and Director ofEconomic
Development be and the same are hereby authorized to execute and deliver such agreement.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day 0f? 2023.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2014.

APPROVED:

ATTEST:
John R. Nelson, Mayor

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT
--- --- ---



AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT, made and entered into this_ day of August 2023, between the City of
Franklin, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132 (hereinafter "CLIENT") and
Trozzolo Creative Resources, Inc (dba Carl Collective) (hereinafter "CONTRACTOR"), whose
principal place of business is 811 Wyandotte St, Kansas City, MO 64105

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR is duly qualified and experienced as a municipal services
contractor and has offered services for the purposes specified in this AGREEMENT; and

WHEREAS, in the judgment of CLIENT, it is necessary and advisable to obtain the services
of the CONTRACTOR to provide marketing services;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and the following mutual
covenants, terms, and conditions, CLIENT and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:

I. BASIC SERVICES AND AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION

A. CONTRACTOR shall provide services to CLIENT for marketing services, as
described and incorporated herein as Attachment A, and additional proposals also
to become future additions to Attachment A.

B. CONTRACTOR shall serve as CLIENT's professional representative in matters
to which this AGREEMENT applies. CONTRACTOR may employ the services
of outside consultants and subcontractors when deemed necessary by
CONTRACTOR to complete work under this AGREEMENT following approval
by CLIENT.

C. CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and all persons furnishing services
hereunder are employees of, or independent subcontractors to, CONTRACTOR
and not of CLIENT. All obligations under the Federal Insurance Contribution Act
(FICA), the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA), and income tax
withholding are the responsibility of CONTRACTOR as employer. CLIENT
understands that express AGREEMENTS may exist between CONTRACTOR
and its employees regarding extra work, competition, and nondisclosure.

D. During the term of this AGREEMENT and throughout the period of performance
of any resultant AGREEMENT, including extensions, modifications, or additions
thereto, and for a period of one (1) year from the conclusion of such activity, the
parties hereto agree that neither shall solicit for employment any technical or
professional employees of the other without the prior written approval of the
other party.

II. FEES AND PAYMENTS

Page-1



CLIENT agrees to pay CONTRACTOR, for and in consideration of the performance of Basic
Services further described and not to exceed the budget in Attachment A, subject to the terms
detailed below:

A. CONTRACTOR may bill CLIENT and be paid for all work satisfactorily
completed hereunder on a monthly basis. CLIENT agrees to pay
CONTRACTOR's invoice within 30 days of invoice date for all approved work.

B. Total price will not exceed budget approved in Attachment A. For services
rendered, monthly invoices will include a report that clearly states type of work
completed and the fee earned during the month being invoiced.

C. In consideration of the faithful performance of this AGREEMENT, the
CONTRACTOR will not exceed the fee for Basic Services and expenses without
written authorization from CLIENT to perform work over and above that
described in the original AGREEMENT.

D. Should CLIENT find deficiencies in work performed or reported, it will notify
CONTRACTOR in writing within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice and
related report and the CONTRACTOR will remedy the deficiencies within thirty
(30) days of receiving CLIENT's review. This subsection shall not be construed
to be a limitation of any rights or remedies otherwise available to CLIENT.

Ill MODIFICATION AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A. CLIENT may, in writing, request changes in the Basic Services required to be
performed by CONTRACTOR and require a specification of incremental or
decremental costs prior to change order agreement under this AGREEMENT.
Upon acceptance of the request of such changes, CONTRACTOR shall submit a
"Change Order Request Form" to CLIENT for authorization and notice to
proceed signature and return to CONTRACTOR. Should any such actual
changes be made, an equitable adjustment will be made to compensate
CONTRACTOR or reduce the fixed price, for any incremental or decremental
labor or direct costs, respectively. Any claim by CONTRACTOR for adjustments
hereunder must be made to CLIENT in writing no later than forty-five (45) days
after receipt by CONTRACTOR of notice of such changes from CLIENT.

IV. ASSISTANCE AND CONTROL

A.

B.

C.

The City's Economic Development Director, John Regetz will coordinate the
work of the CONTRACTOR, and be solely responsible for communication
within the CLIENT's organization as related to all issues originating under this
AGREEMENT.

CLIENT will timely provide CONTRACTOR with all available information
concerning PROJECT as deemed necessary by CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR will appoint, subject to the approval of CLIENT, Carl
Collective's Regional Director, Erik Brooks and Patrick Leahy, Account
Coordinator CONTRACTOR's Project Manager and other key providers of the

Page-2



Basic Services. Substitution of other staff may occur only with the consent of
CLIENT.

V. TERMINATION

A. This AGREEMENT may be terminated by CLIENT, for its convenience, for
any or no reason, upon written notice to CONTRACTOR. This
AGREEMENT may be terminated by CONTRACTOR upon thirty (30) days
written notice. Upon such termination by CLIENT, CONTRACTOR shall be
entitled to payment of such amount as shall fairly compensate
CONTRACTOR for all work approved up to the date of termination, except
that no amount shall be payable for any losses of revenue or profit from any
source outside the scope of this AGREEMENT, including but not limited to,
other actual or potential agreements for services with other parties.

B. In the event that this AGREEMENT is terminated for any reason,
CONTRACTOR shall deliver to CLIENT all data, reports, summaries,
correspondence, and other written, printed, or tabulated material pertaining in
any way to Basic Services that CONTRACTOR may have accumulated. Such
material is to be delivered to CLIENT whether in completed form or in
process. CLIENT shall hold CONTRACTOR harmless for any work that is
incomplete due to early termination.

C. The rights and remedies of CLIENT and CONTRACTOR under this section
are not exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law or appearing in any other article of this AGREEMENT.

VI. INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR shall, during the life of the AGREEMENT, maintain insurance coverage with
an authorized insurance carrier at least equal to the minimum limits set forth below:

A. General/Commercial Liability (Must $2,000,000 per each occurrence for bodily injury,
have General/Commercal) personal injury, and property damage

$3,000,000 per general aggregate,

CITY shall be named as an addtonal mnsured on a
prmary, non-contributory basis

B. Automobile Liability (Must have $1,000,000 combined single limit
auto lablty)

CITY shall be named as an addtonal insured on a
prmary, non-contributory bass

Page-3



D. Umbrella or Excess Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury,
Coverage for General/Commercial, personal injury, and property
Automobile Liability, and Contractor's
Pollution Liability

CITY shall be named as an additonal insured on a
prmary, non-contributory bass

E. Worker's Compensation
Employers' Liability (Must
workers compensaton)

and Statutory
have

Contractor wll provde a waver of subrogaton
and/or any rghts of recovery allowed under any
workers' compensaton law

F. Professional Liability (Errors & $2,000,000 single limit
Omissions) (Ifapplcable)

Upon the execution of this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall supply CLIENT with a suitable
statement certifying said protection and defining the terms of the policy issued, which shall specify
that such protection shall not be cancelled without thirty (30) calendar days prior notice to CLIENT,
and naming CLIENT as an additional insured as required above.

VII. INDEMNIFICATIONAND ALLOCATION OF RISK

A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold
harmless CLIENT, CLIENT'S officers, directors, partners, and employees from and
against costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to reasonable fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and reasonable
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negligent
acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR'S officers, directors,
partners, employees, and consultants in the performance of CONTRACTOR'S
services under this AGREEMENT.

B. Nothing contained within this AGREEMENT is intended to be a waiver or estoppel
of the contracting municipality CLIENT or its insurer to rely upon the limitations,
defenses, and immunities contained within Wisconsin law, including those contained
within Wisconsin Statutes §§ 893.80, 895.52, and 345.05. To the extent that
indemnification is available and enforceable, the municipality CLIENT or its insurer
shall not be liable in indemnity or contribution for an amount greater than the limits
of liability for municipal claims established by Wisconsin Law.

VIII. TIME FORCOMPLETION

CONTRACTOR shall commence work immediately having received a Notice to Proceed and 1n
accordance with the timeline outlined in Attachment A.

IX. DISPUTES

This AGREEMENT shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin.
The venue for any actions arising under this AGREEMENT shall be the Circuit Court for Milwaukee

Page-4



County. The prevailing party shall be awarded its actual costs of any such litigation, including
reasonable attorney fees.

X. RECORDS RETENTION

CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records pertaining to this AGREEMENT during the term of this
AGREEMENT and for a period of 3 years following its completion. Such records shall be made
available by the CONTRACTOR to CLIENT for inspection and copying upon request.

XI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. Professionalism. The same degree of care, skill and diligence shall be exercised in the
performance of the services as is possessed and exercised by a member of the same
profession, currently practicing, under similar circumstances, and all persons
providing such services under this AGREEMENT shall have such active
certifications, licenses and permissions as may be required by law.

B. Pursuant to Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary anywhere else set forth
within this AGREEMENT, all services and any and all materials and/or products
provided by CONTRACTOR under this AGREEMENT shall be in compliance with
all applicable governmental laws, statutes, decisions, codes, rules, orders, and
ordinances, be they Federal, State, County or Local.

C. Conflict of Interest. CONTRACTOR warrants that neither it nor any of its affiliates
has any financial or other personal interest that would conflict in any manner with the
performance of the services under this Agreement and that neither it nor any of its
affiliates will acquire directly or indirectly any such interest. CONTRACTOR
warrants that it will immediately notify the CLIENT if any actual or potential conflict
of interest arises or becomes known to the CONTRACTOR. Upon receipt of such
notification, a CLIENT review and written approval is required for the CLIENT to
continue to perform work under this Agreement.

D. This AGREEMENT may only be amended by written instrument signed by both
CLIENT and CONTRACTOR.

XII. CONTROLLING TERMS AND PROVISIONS

The aforesaid terms and provisions shall control over any conflicting term or prov1s1on of any
CONTRACTOR proposal, Attachment, Exhibit, and standard terms and provisions annexed hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed on the day
and year first above written.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

BY _

PRINT NAME John R Nelson

TROZZOLO CREATIVE RESOURCES,
INC (dba Carl Collective)

BY· _

PRINT NAME Rachel Lupardus

Page-5



TITLE Mayor

DATE _

BY _

PRINT NAME Damelle L Brown

TITLE. D1rector of Finance and Treasurer

DATE

BY _

PRINT NAME Karen L Kastenson

TITLE CIty Clerk

DATE·

Approved as to form·

Jesse A Wesolowski, Cty Attorney
DATE _

TITLE EVP COO/CFO

DATE· _

Page-6



@ CARL
~ COLLECTIVE

Letter of Agreement Between
Carl Collective and
City of Franklin, Economic Development Commission
8/15/2023

Carl Collective Is pleased to serve as the City of Franklin's Economic Development
Commission's strategic communications agency. In thus letter, we set out the terms of our
arrangement with you. Specific project scopes wll include detailed budgets and timelines
in separate documents relating to each project.

1 We shall obtain prior written approval of any actions we intend to take on your behalf
(approval may be given via email or other written correspondence), as follows

(a) Before proceeding to execute major ideas, plans, programs or communications,
we will obtain your written approval

(b) Written approval on matters of information and communications content, budget,
costs and changes in strategy will be obtained from any person you designate

(c) Unless you indicate otherwise, via email or other written correspondence, your
approval will constitute authority to proceed to the next stage of the project A
delay in approving materials can result in missed deadlines and/or additional costs

(d) We shall provide cost estimates prior to commencing work or separate activity
outside of the original scope.

2 You may cancel or stop any and all plans, schedules or work in progress at any time
at your sole discretion. We shall act promptly to abide by those directions However,
you will be responsible for all reasonable cancellation costs and charges that cannot
realistically be avoided This could include services rendered by us before notice to
stop, and other reasonable costs and expenses that cannot be prevented under the
circumstances. We will, however, make every attempt to minimize the foregoing
charges, costs and expenses

3 We will not be liable in the event our performance Is delayed or prevented or any work
is rendered obsolete or unusable due to causes beyond our control, including acts of
nature, nots, accidents, labor disputes, governmental acts, industry changes, inability
to obtain materials, or failure of third-party performance In such event, we will attempt
to mmImIze your cost However, you will be responsible for all reasonable charges,
costs and expenses that cannot be avoided under the circumstances

o Tl r 2 ' Carl Collective com



4 We agree to exercise our best Judgment to prepare and place your publicity with a
view to avoiding any claims, proceedings or suits beng made or instituted against
you or us

5 After material has been issued by us to the media or to another third party, its uSe IS
no longer under our control We cannot assure the proper use of press materials by
any media outlet. Similarly, we cannot control the form or manner of use by the media
or others of the material, including the accurate presentation of information supplied
by us. Notwithstanding the foregoing, we will ensure that any materials that are
trademarked and/or copyright-protected are appropriately designated as such prior to
being issued to the media or another third party

6. Nothing 1n this memorandum shall be deemed to require us to undertake any
campaign, prepare any materials or publicity, or cause publcaton of any copy or
article that, in our reasonable and professional judgment, would be misleading,
indecent, libelous, unlawful, or otherwise prejudicial to your interest or to ours
Similarly, nothing in this memorandum shall be construed as committing us to violate
any lawful contractual commitments to media or others

7. Compensaton for Services: Car! Collective will always outline in writing the specific
costs of the work we've been engaged to complete, and will provide written change
orders 1f the specifications or scope of the project changes before work commences

Hard costs and incidental expenses (f needed) will be tracked, itemized and billed as
follows:

(a) Cost plus 17.65% of materials and services purchased and produced for you.

(b) Media Billing:

a Advertising media are invoiced two months prior to approved media
placements (for example, March placements will be invoiced at the end
of January). Carl Collective checks all media advertising before
payment to media vendors is approved for payment

b All media placement requests shall name the Client as Advertiser and
the Carl Collective as the Client's Agent. Carl Collective will service
and bill the Ghent each month Once payment has been made to Carl
Collective, Carl Collective assumes full financial responsibility for
remitting payment to the media mn a timely manner

c If, however, the Client fails to remit payment to Carl Collective, then
financial responsib1hty for payment lies with the Ghent and not with
Carl Collective This agreement shall remain in effect until such time
as the Client notifies local media that the Client/Carl Collective



relationship has been discontinued and all payments due have been
satisfied by the Ghent

d Carl Collective retains the standard 15% commIssIon earned from
all media placements made by the Carl Collective on the Ghent's
behalf, under approved Media Authorizations for services provided
for media research, planning, buying, trafficking and billing

(c) Reasonable costs directly attributable to services on your behalf, such as
(1) travel expenses, (2) sales tax; and (3) any other incidental expenses

(d) Payment is due to Car Collective withmn 30 days of the date of the invoice

8 Confidentiality: Carl Collective scrupulously safeguards the confidences and privacy
rights of former, present and prospective clients We enter into this agreement with
the understanding that all communications and materials remain confidential and that
the client legally owns the rights to papers or materials created and paid for by the
client Confidential practitioner/client communications are not, however, privileged
against disclosure in a court of law, but we will only disclose such communications
and materials as we are compelled to in order to comply with applicable laws and/or
the order of any court of competent Jurisdiction If requested, we will reasonably
cooperate with you in your efforts to obtain a protective order regarding any
communications or materials that we are compelled to disclose.

9 Rights of Termination: The Agreement is subject to the appropriation and availability
of city, state and/or federal funds. In the event the funds are not appropriated or are
otherwise unavailable, Client reserves the right to terminate the Agreement upon
written notice to Carl Collective Said termination shall not be deemed a breach of the
Agreement by the Client. Upon receipt of the written notice, Carl Collective shall
cease all work associated with the Agreement. Should such an event occur, Carl
Collective shall be entitled to compensation for all satisfactory and authorized
services completed as of the termination date. Upon such termination, Carl Collective
shall have no right to recover from Ghent any actual, general, special, incidental,
consequential, or any other damages whatsoever of any description or amount
This agreement may be canceled by 90 days' prior written notice given by Carl
Collective to the Client, or by the Client to Carl Collective.

All services performed and materials prepared by Carl Collective during the 90 days
prior to termination of this Agreement shall be billed to the client wthin 30 days of
completion, and shall be due and payable by the Client upon receipt Carl Collective
shall deliver to the Client, upon payment of all outstanding obligations, all papers,
digital files, photographs and other materials related to the work performed on or
before the termination date, as well as any work performed, invoiced and paid for
during the 90-day termination period



The Client shall own all work for hire and other materials prepared or purchased
by the Carl Collective for the client and for which the client has paid, regardless of
whether such materials were published, displayed, or otherwise presented prior to
the termination of the Agreement. Except, all third-party licensed music, talent,
photography and any other third-party assets will be subject to the license
agreements as stated in the individual scopes of work.

Any unused or rejected marketing, public relations, advertising or other graphic
design programs, plans, designs, and ideas prepared by Carl Collective will remain
the property of Carl Collective, and shall be used as 1t sees fit, provided it does not
involve the release of any confidential information regarding the Client's business or
methods of operation.

Noncancelable contracts Carl Collective has committed to on behalf of the Client
and with the Client's approval/authorization shall be taken over and paid for by the
Client, in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, and the Client will
indemnify Carl Collective against any claims thereof

10. Indemnification· Carl Collective shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City of
Franklin's Economic Development Commission, and each director, officer, employee
or agent of the company, from and against any and all claims, damages, costs,
expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees), and liabilities of any kind arising out
of or relating to Carl Collective's performance or breach of its respons1b1llt1es under
this Agreement, including any liability arising out of any action or failure to take action
by Carl Collective's employees, agents or subcontractors, and including both
negligent and intentional acts or omissions

The City of Franklin's Economic Development Commission shall indemnify, defend,
and hold harmless Carl Collective, and each director, officer, employee or agent of
Carl Collective, from and against any and all claims, damages, costs, expenses
(including reasonable attorney's fees), and liabilities of any kind arising out of or
relating to the City of Franklin's Economic Development Commission's performance
or breach of its responsibilities under this Agreement, including any liability arising out
of any action or failure to take action by employees, agents or subcontractors, and
including both negligent and intentional acts or omissions.

11. This Letter of Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced m accordance with the
laws of the state of Missouri, notwithstanding any conflicts of legal principles to the
contrary This Letter of Agreement represents the entire agreement of the parties with
respect to the subject matter described herem This Letter of Agreement may be
amended or modified only by a written agreement signed by both parties.



Please indicate your agreement with the provisions of thus letter by signing and dating
the space provided below on the copy of this memorandum and returning the signed
copy to us.

Acknowledged, accepted and agreed, on the 15th day of August, 2023

Carl Collective

By
Erik Brooks, Regional Director

Date ------------------------------

By.------------------------------
Client Name/Title

Date.------------------------------

8/9/2023



@@ CARL¥ COLLECTIVE

Scope of Work

City of Frankhmn
Economic Development Scope
8/15/2023

Background

Carl Collective Is a dynamic and innovative student-powered marketing agency,
dedicated to providing real-world experiential learning opportunities to Marquette
University students while delivering high-quality work to clients We are a full-service, for
profit firm that operates through an exclusive partnership agreement with Marquette's
Diederich College of Communication Our parent company 1s Trozzolo Communications
Group, one of the top independent communications firms in the Midwest, located in
Kansas City, Missouri

We bring to bear the power and experience of our 34-year-old parent company mn all of
our work. Trozzolo Communications Group is a full-service marketing and
communications agency offering a wide range of services - including branding,
public relations, digital marketing, social media management, and content creation - to
clients across a variety of industries, from health care and finance to retail and hospitality

Our firm has a long history of award-winning strategic marketing, copy, web, video, and
other targeted media With great experience, especially in the public sector - here are
some samples of our work.

• Visit Overland Park. Building on our experience and successful track record in
destination marketing, we collaborated with Visit Overland Park to drive tourism
Through the "Come for Kansas City and stay for Overland Park" campaign, we
effectively showcased the unique qualities of the area and positioned it as a
must-visit destination for travelers through various mediums like videos, graphics,
and digital ads. Details

• MobiliSE: Mob1liSE is a nonprofit organization focused on addressing
transportation challenges in Southeastern Wisconsin, accelerating community
serving projects, and driving investment in transportation solutions Carl
Collective has played a pivotal role in its rebranding by enhancing its on line
presence, organizing large local events, and facilitating discussions with key
stakeholders, including the media and state secretaries, to shape the
organization's future and initiatives like FlexRide Milwaukee. Details

• FlexRide Milwaukee. We have been a strong partner with FlexR1de Milwaukee
since before 1t launched in 2022. FlexR1de, a new transit service, initially
struggled with low awareness and needed more riders and business part1cipat1on
to survive. Through our support, including a successful launch event and
strategic social and PR efforts, FlexRide generated signrficant attention, resulting
in record-breaking weekly ridership, increased state and county funding, and

carlcollective com



expanded services like extended coverage areas (including to Franklin),
connections with child care centers, and 24-hour service Monday-Friday. Details

• Westlake ACE: This Is a great example of our work on websites Prior to us
working with them, Westlake's online presence fell short in comparison to its in
store experience, lacking a true reflection of the brand's success and struggling
with design, navigation, management, and scalability To address these issues, a
completely revamped WestlakeHardware com was built with significant
Improvements, including enhanced analytics, a customized user experience,
support for new and existing stores, and streamlined content management
tailored to meet marketing requirements. Details

We look forward to putting our experience to work for Franklin - building on the work we
recently completed for the Franklin Tourism Commission. Carl Collective was engaged in
a comprehensive research project for the commission, collecting both new and existing
tourism data and information through focus groups, surveys, interviews, and other tactics.
Our goal was to gain valuable insights that will define Franklin's primary tourism markets,
identify key messaging, and develop effective strategies to reach those markets We
delivered on that promise and shared the finished product in July

We are excited to help further uplift Franklin with our knowledge of the city through this
project with the Economic Development Commission.

Description ofWork

Franklin has an authentic and distinct story to tell, and we look forward to helping you tell
it The city offers a compelling business environment with a range of advantages The
city's strategic location provides easy access to both major freeway and highway
systems, as well as two major airports Additionally, the proximity to the Port of
Milwaukee enables efficient shipping and logistics operations, not to mention the acres of
available developmental space. Furthermore, Franklin offers significant business
development incentives to fuel investment, and has used them successfully with new
developments throughout the community With its status as one of the wealthiest
communities in Southeastern Wisconsin, businesses can tap into a high-dIsposable-
1ncome consumer base As one of the fastest growing communities in Wisconsin,
Franklin's expanding population showcases its dynamic nature, while a superior quality of
life, exceptional schools, and a variety of natural and recreational activities make it an
attractive place to live, do business, and raise a family.

Indeed, there is strong momentum in Franklin, with a number of new mixed-use,
commercial, industrial, and residential developments recently completed, under
construction, or planned. From The Rock to the city's dynamic business parks to the new
life coming to 27th Street and beyond, the city Is developing quickly, with new
International companies bringing new jobs and new investments to the area. At the same
time, the opportunity for future growth is significant, with large portions of the city still
undeveloped. We want to help Franklin seize on that opportunity.

The city has done the foundational work, creating spaces for businesses to thrive To
make those investments pay off, Franklin must continue to attract and retain companies,
helping them expand. That starts with the city's business-focused marketing efforts
Equipping Key stakeholders with updated, well-designed, and well-written economc
development tools will help attract and retain more businesses, bringing more money and



opportunities into an already thriving crty. Carl Collective is excited to help deliver these
tools and is strongly positioned to do so, with decades of experience working with local
governments to help them effectively tell their stones

Following Is an outline of our proposed activities

Economic Development Guide

Update & Redesign
Carl Collective is committed to delivering a comprehensive update to the City of Franklin's
Economic Development Guide. Our firm will create a new, visually engaging guide with
updated information relevant to the target audience(s) We will also create an onhne
version to be strategically integrated on franklinw1.gov

The guide will give current and prospective business owners, of any scale, a better
understanding of the opportunities Franklin provides and how the city can partner with
them to succeed. This 1s an opportunity to uplift more recent developments, further
showcasing why Franklin is ideally suited for businesses. The final guide will serve as a
catalyst for attracting businesses and investments, promoting economic growth in
Franklin

Working closely with your team, we will establish a content plan, with Carl Collective
providing the copywriting and design elements of the guide The Economic Development
Comm1ss1on will have multiple review points throughout the process.

Business Parks Promotional Materials

Asset Creation
Carl Collective will create promotional materials for both Franklin Corporate Park and
Loomis Business Park. Deliverables will include a one- or two-page document for each
business park These documents will provide an overview of each specific park,
highlighting location information, available spaces, potential incentives, and key
advantages Each will be easily adaptable for both print and digital use. These will also
be featured on the city's website.

The goal is to have comprehensive, easy-to-understand, and versatile documents that
will highlight the unique qualities of each business park to help potential tenants or
investors make informed decisions about where to locate their businesses. Development
of additional materials, if needed in addition to the foundational document, will be also
considered upon further discussion with stakeholders

Website

Economic Development Web Pages Review/Refresh
Carl Collective will do an extensive review of the pages currently on the City of Franklin
website devoted to economic development. This includes a perspective on the pages'
layouts, specific content, technical edits, and language.

We will explore ways to better inform prospective and current developers and also
business owners through the website with content development and page enhancement,
as well as integrate the new Economic Development Guide and promotional materials



Once our review is completed, we will share proposed changes with your team for
approval before page edits are made Using our recommendations, City of Franklin staff
will be responsible for all website programming, including physical changes.

An mnrtial review of the site shows the need to likely
• Remove outdated pages and content.
• Potentially reorganize different pages.
• Update and improve website language and potentially add supporting images

and other graphical content
• Add links to new content being developed through this contract.

The goal of this work 1s to better connect the nght audiences to the nght resources 1n a
simple yet compelling way.

Asset Gathering

Professional Photography
Our firm will produce a series of high-quality photos that capture the essence of Franklin
as a premier business destination Together, the photographs will complement all three
projects listed above.

Carl Collective will be responsible for coordinating and executing the photoshoots,
ensuring they capture the diverse range of activities and interactions happening in
Franklin We will work closely with the EDC to identify subjects and significant locations
that best exemplify its character, including all mayor business parks.

Both indoor and outdoor photoshoots will be thoughtfully set up pnor to each shoot, using
professional-grade gear and lighting equipment as needed.

After photoshoots are complete, our team will curate a collection of "best of' photos and
present to the EDC From this selection, we wll collaboratively choose the top images
which will undergo a series of editing processes to enhance their visual appeal. Quantity
of final images will be based on need for each the economic development guide,
business park promotional materials, and websrte pages

Photo assets will be invaluable for reuse for any future materials beyond the project listed
above.

Budget

Economic Development Guide
Business Park Promotional Materials
Economic Development Web Pages Review/Refresh
*Includes both the website audit and execution
Asset Gathering

2023 Total Budget: $30,000

$5,000
$4,500
$13,000

$7,500



**Please note, the above budget does not include hard costs, such as printing, location
fees, or permits required for photography

This budget is based on information available at the time this document was prepared
Costs are subject to change should any of the project's recommendations or
specifications be modified or altered in any way lf specification changes require a
revision in the estimated budget, Carl Collective will submit written estimate changes for
client approval prior to beginning work on the project

Approval

If the above meets your approval, please sign below and return a copy to us. Upon
agreement, Carl Collective will begm work immediately. Acknowledged, accepted, and
agreed upon mn August of 2023

City of Franklin

By

Name, Title

Carl Collective

Date

By: 8/9/2023
Erik Brooks, Regional Director Date



APPROVAL

~
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution Authorizing the Installation of a Fence Within the
20-foot Public Sanitary Easement Upon Lot 14 in Block 11 in Southview

Estates Addition No. 1, Being a re-division of Outlot 1, Block 7,
Southview Estates, and a part of the SW 1/4 of Section 10, Township 5
North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County,

Wisconsin
(7534 South 69 street) (Tax Key No. 791-0182-000)

(Glenn and Janet Mittelstadt, Applicant)

MTG. DATE
September 5, 2023

ITEM NO.
Ald. Dist. 5

G.8

BACKGROUND
Staff received a request to install a 6- foot PVC fence within a 20-foot drainage easement, on the
North and West of the property line of 7534 South 69" Street. The said fence will be installed 5
feet, plus or minus within the property along the north and east of the said property lines.

The proposed PVC fence will encroach the 20-feet sanitary easement on 7534 South 69 Street.
See Exhibit C.

ANALYSIS
Staff is agreeable to allow the fence to be installed within the easement if the property owner is
fully responsible for repair and/or replacement if the said sanitary easement should need to be
accessed for improvement or maintenance purposes.

The resolution provides that:
1. The subject fence shall not impede the stormwater drainage way.
2. The property owners, and their successors and assigns, shall keep the fence in good

repair.
3. The property owners, and their successors and assigns, shall be responsible for the

replacement and/or repair of the fence should the fence need to be removed or
damage due to access for improvement or maintenance to the said sanitary
easement.

4. The City is not responsible for any damage that may occur during or as a result of
maintenance purposes needs and/or activities.

5. The property owner(s) and any mortgage with an interest in the property shall agree
to and execute the Acceptance set forth on Exhibit A annexed hereto, and the
Mortgage Holder Consent set forth on Exhibit B (No Mortgage) annexed hereto,
respectively.

OPTIONS
Approve or Deny

FISCAL NOTE
None

RECOMMENDATION
Resolution 2023- a resolution to authorize the installation of a fence within the 20-foot
sanitary easement, upon Lot 14, in Block 11 in Southview Estates Addition No. 1 Subdivision
(7535 South 69 Street) (Tax Key No. 791-0182-000) (Glenn and Janet Mittelstadt, applicant).

Engineering: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 ----

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A FENCE WITHIN THE
20-FOOT SANITARY EASEMENT UPON LOT 14 IN BLOCK 11 IN

SOUTHVIEW ESTATES ADDITION NO.I, BEING A RE-DIVISION OF THE
OUTLOT 1, BLOCK 6, AND OUTLOT 1, BLOCK 7, SOUTHVIEW ESTATES,

AND A PART OF THE SW 1/4 OF SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST,
IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

(7534 SOUTH 69"" STREET) (TAX KEY NO.791 0182 000)
(GLENN AND JANET MITTELSTADT, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, the Southview Estates Addition No. 1 Subdivision Plat prohibits the
building of structures within the 20-foot "public sanitary easement," described thereon; and

WHEREAS, Glen and Janet Mittelstadt , property owner, having applied for an
installation of a 6-foot wood PVC fence, located at 7534 South 69"" Street, zoned R-6
Residential, bearing Tax Key No. 791-0182-000, more particularly described as follows:

LOT 14 IN BLOCK 11 IN SOUTHVIEW ESTATES ADDITION NO.I, BEING A RE
DIVISION OF THE OUTLOT 1, BLOCK 6, AND OUTLOT 1, BLOCK 7,
SOUTHVIEW ESTATES, AND A PART OF THE SW 1/4 OF SECTION 10,
TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN,
MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
and

WHEREAS, the fence would encroach on the 20-foot "Public Sanitary Easement"
(Exhibit C) located on the northern and eastern property lines; and

WHEREAS, the 20-foot "Public Sanitary Easement" restrictions upon the Final Plat of
Southview Estates Addition No. 1 Subdivision and its accompanying restriction of the building
of structures is a restriction which was imposed by the Franklin Common Council in its approval
of the Final Plat; and

WHEREAS, Wis. Stats. § 236.293 provides in part that any restriction placed on platted
land by covenant, grant of easement or in any other manner, which was required by a public body
vests in the public body the right to enforce the restriction at law or in equity and that the
restriction may be released or waived in writing by the public body having the right of
enforcement; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the owner's request (Exhibit D),
for the encroachment at the 20-foot drainage easement restriction only so as to allow for the
subject fence installation; and



WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the proposed location of and type
of fence to be installed upon the subject property and potential interference with the stormwater
runoff.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the installation of the proposed fence of the type and
specifications as described and only upon the location as set forth within the plans accompanying
the application of Glenn and Janet Mittelstadt, on August 21, 2023, be and the same is hereby
authorized and approved and that the "Public Sanitary Easement" restrictions as they would
apply to such installation upon the subject property only, are hereby waived and released, subject
to the following conditions:

1. The subject fence shall not impede the stormwater drainage way.
2. The property owners, and their successors and assigns, shall keep the fence in

good repair.
3. The property owners, and their successors and assigns, shall be responsible for the

replacement and/or repair of the fence should the fence need to be removed or
damage due to access for improvement or maintenance to the said sanitary
easement.

4. The City is not responsible for any damage that may occur during or as a result of
maintenance purposes needs and/or activities.

5. The property owner(s) and any mortgage with an interest in the property shall
agree to and execute the Acceptance set forth on Exhibit A annexed hereto, and
the Mortgage Holder Consent set forth on Exhibit B (No Mortgage) annexed
hereto, respectively.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the applicant shall further obtain all required
permit(s) for the installation of the subject fence and that the subject fence shall be installed
pursuant to such permit(s) within one year of the date hereof, or all approvals granted hereunder
shall be null and void.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and the same is hereby directed to
obtain the recording of this Resolution with the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee
County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of,2023, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of,2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor



ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOESABSENT



Exhibit A

Acceptance

The undersigned, Glen 4Jae± M\{±elshlt applicants of the property located at
7534 5,9"st Franklin, Wisconsm 53132, Tax Key No. 7q1- o183- ooo , does hereby
agree to, consent to and accepts the terms and provisions of the City ofFranklin Resolution No. 2023
and that in consideration of the making of such grant to allow the installation of PC Fee.within the
public water main easement by the City of Franklin, the undersigned agrees that this acceptance shall be
binding upon the undersigned and the undersigned's successors and assigns and that the terms and
provisions of the City of Franklm Resolution No. 2023- shall run with the land, subject to any
amendments thereto and/or any other actions thereto approved by the Common Council of the City of
Franklin in the future.

In witness whereof, the undersigned has executed and delivered this acceptance on the?? day of
--qs+ ,2023.

Property owner

Py 9ast:a0A



anking Corporation typed or printed

Notary Public

(yp{y O[

My commission expires on._

ExhibitB

MORTGAGE HOLDER CONSENT

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
S.S.

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE)

On this, the 20 before me, the
undersigned, personally app ed, the of

aWiscons' banking corporation, and a owledged that (s)he executed the
foregoing instrument on b half of said corporation, by its thority and for the purposes therein
contained.

Wisconsin banking
corporation (" ortgagee"), as Mortgagee under that certain Mortgag encumbering the Property
and recorded inf e Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee C unty, Wisconsin, on __
,LU.as[ocument 0.
hereby consents to e execution of the foregoing Resolution No. 023->authorizing
the installation of th signs within the 20-foot public water mai easement.

IN WITNESS WHE OF, Mortgagee has caused these resents to be signed by its duly
authorized officers and i corporate seal to be hereunto af ed, as of the day and year first above
written.



Exhibit C '19/- tJl l..t..

LOCATION: 1.sJf South 69th Street, Franklin, Wisconsin

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Lot 14 in Block 11 in SOUTHVIEW ESTATES ADD'N. MO. 1,
being a -re-division of Outlot 1, Block 6, and Outlot 1, Block 7, Southview
Estates, and a part of the SW 1/4 of Section lo, T 5 N, R 21 E, in the City
of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

September 27, 1982. Survey No. 58764

APP.ROVED o - .
FINISHED GRA E ELEV TION:a:_/o__;)___.,__ .7 _
lf,.l~ '-f!i.~~~~'LK._.. -aCiTY Or FRANKLIN DATUM

' q/.:J.91.i_st

~

8'
~;.;i /A..£ -----
~

:'\~'<j
sca

,

ifflS st;RVE\,· IS MAGE FOY. TrlE EXCLUSIVE US OF THE PRESENT OWNERSOF THE
PROPSm' , AND Al.,S()fflOSEWO PJR€RAS, MORT GAGE, OR GUARAkrEE Th!E T1TU;
11'1!:llETQV.'!,TRINOl\lcl1)YcAII FRGMOA:IE HEREOF

\. I HEREBYCf~TIFYTHATS HAVE SUR\l'EYEOTHEN30VE. OESCRl3ED PRCP-cfliY ANO THAT THE
Af!l:NEMA?ISA'l'illlEREPRESENTAT!QWTHEREOFA.'IDSnOV.'S'iHESIZEAN-::JLOOAT!CNOF
nE 0PERT, rrs ata11GReoo~ll'lE LCCATICH OF AU.V-'516'...!:: sm-.icruREs
A.>i&l:f~~OFALLPIIINetl'ALBUU,DJNGSlff"..falN,~DARYFENGES.APPARENT
EA:ia.iEi'f!SAHDiiOADWA'VSMOVISIIU:~.S. IFANY .

, METROPOLITAN SURVEY SER-VICE, INC.
\ REGISTERED LAND SURVEYORS .
\_ 11000 W. JANEBVIU;E RO. HAU;.SOORNERS,WI 53130.
\ 529-sass

\



Exhibit D

Glen E. Morrow, PE

City Engineer/Director of Public Works/Utilities Manager

City of Franklin

Subject: Permission to waive easement restrictions

August 21, 2023

Dear Glen,

We would like to secure a perm1ss1on to waive easement restrictions regarding replacement of our
fence. We have followed the proper guidelines from the City of Franklin to have the fence installed and
was issued a permit. When the City Inspector came to our property she was not able to allow the project
to move forward since the fence was within the 10 feet sewer easement from our property line.

The original fence is 40 years old and in need of replacement to improve our property. We cannot have
1t installed 10 feet in from the property lne because we will lose much of our backyard and current
landscaping

We would like to place the shorter side of the fence on the north side " 2-3 feet from the property lme
which would provide more space from the sewer pipes. If possible we would like to place the longer side
of the fence on the east side "5-6 feet from the property line which is also " 5-6 feet from where the
sewer line has been marked as located.

e do not have a mortgage as our property has been paid in full.

In the event of a future need to access or service the sewer line and 1f the fence provides a hindrance to
that process, with a substantial notice to us from the City of Franklin, we will facilitate removal of that
section of the fence. If we sell our home the prior statement will be communicated to the potential new
mortgage holder.

Once the fence has been installed and inspected by the City of Franklin inspector the owner will not
have respons1b11ity for the sewer being accessed except for removal of the fence as stated above.

We would like to expedite this request and follow the correct procedure to be compliant with the City of
Franklin. We understand that our request will be reviewed by the Plan Commission and decided by the
Common Council at the next meeting.

We appreciate your guidance and attention to this request and are hopeful that our fence project will be
allowed , .-- ,es., ok@lee

/.J ·'/at- ))tooarl
Glenn and Janet Mittelstadt

7534 S 69" Street

Franklin, WI 53132



APPROVAL

~
Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution to Execute a State/Municipal Financial Agreement
and a State/Municipal Maintenance Agreement for

S. 27 Street (STH 241) from
W. Elm Road to W. Villa Drive (ID 2265-09-71) for $3,546,990

MTG.DATE
September 5, 2023

ITEM NO.
Aid Dist. 4

BACKGROUND
On June 6, 2023, Common Council (Item G.3) chose to instruct Wisconsin Department of
Transportation (WisDOT) to construct 6-foot wide sidewalks continuously on S. 27 Street (STH
241) from W. Elm Road to W. Villa Drive. This project is anticipated to bid on 9/25/2026. For
tracking purposes, the WisDOT project has a Design ID of 2265-09-01 and a Construction ID of
2265-09-71. A decision was made on June 20, 2023 to fund the project with special assessments.

The above information was relayed to WisDOT and they refined their plans and estimates to
prepare the attached State/Municipal Financial Agreement (SMFA) that commits the City to pay
for the costs and a State/Municipal Maintenance Agreement (SMA) that commits the City to
maintain the facilities when they are constructed.

ANALYSIS
The current estimate for the entire road project is $19,980,550, of which $3,546,990 is the City
portion of the pathways. Recall the June 20, 2023 discussion that estimated the City's portion to
be about $2.3 million.

The City's portion is still Park Impact Fee eligible (62%). So, an estimated $2,199,133.80 could
be paid for with Park Impact Fees and the remaining $1,347,856.20 could be assessed to adjacent
83 parcels.

FISCAL NOTE:
Note that the entirety ofthe accumulated Park Impact Fees is approximately $5.8 million and there
are other projects that are counting on those funds. It is recommended that the June 20, 2023
directive to "Staff to prepare an Engineers Report considering assessment of38% ofthe local
costs with the remainder 62% ofthe costs to be borne by Park Impact Feesfor properties along
27 Streetfrom W Villa Drive to W Elm Road and return with a preliminary resolution to

assess when ready" be paused until the full picture of the Park Impact Fees are clear.

OPTIONS:
Approve or Deny the SMFA and SMA agreements with WisDOT.

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to adopt Resolution 2023- a Resolution to execute a State/Municipal Financial
Agreement and a State/Municipal Maintenance Agreement for S. 7" Street (STH 241) from W.
Elm Road to W. Villa Drive (ID 2265-09-71) for $3,546,990. Also, direct Staff to hold off on an
Engineers Report for special assessments until a full accounting of Park Impact Fees are
completed.

GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 ----

A RESOLUTION TO EXECUTE A STATE/MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL AGREEMENT
AND A STATE/MUNICIPAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR

S. 27TH STREET (STH 241) FROM
W. ELM ROAD TOW. VILLA DRIVE (ID 2265-09-71) FOR $3,546,990

WHEREAS, Wisconsin Department of Transportation is designing a transportation project
for S. 27 Street (STH 241) from W. Elm Road to W. Villa Drive to be constructed circa 2026-2027;
and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin desires amenities to be added for the benefit of a multi-use
pathway; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin will maintain these facilities once constructed by WisDOT.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The City of Franklin will enter into a
State/Municipal Financial Agreement and a State/Municipal Maintenance Agreement with the
Wisconsin Department of Transportation for the partial payment and full maintenance of these City
facilities located within the State right-of-way.

Introduced at a regular order meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of_2)23 by

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



STATE/MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL
AGREEMENT FORA STATE-LET

HIGHWAY PROJECT

Date August 22, 2023
I D 2265-09-01/22/23/71
Road Name STH 241
Title OAK CREEK- MILWAUKEE
Limits WELM ROAD TO W VILLA DRIVE
County Milwaukee
Roadway Length 3 3 miles

The signatory City of Franklin, hereinafter called the Municipality, through its undersigned duly authorized officers
or officials, hereby requests the State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the State, to
initiate and affect the highway or street improvement hereinafter described.

The authority for the Municipality to enter into this agreement with the State is provided by Section 86.25(1 ), (2)
and (3) ofthe Statutes.

NEEDS AND ESTIMATE SUMMARY:

Existing Facility - Describe and give reason for request: Improvement

Proposed Improvement- Nature ofwork: As determined by project scoping.

Describe non-participating work included in the project and other work necessary to finish the project
completely which will be undertaken independently by the municipality: A nominal amount is included to cover
items in paragraph 4 (to be adjusted in the final plan).

TABLE 1: SUMMARY OF COSTS
Total Federal/State Municipal

Phase Est. Cost Funds % Funds %

Preliminary Engineering
Plan Development $ 1,150,000 $ 1,150,000 100% $ - 0%

Real Estate Acquisrton
Acquisrtion (22) $ 420,000 $ - 0% $ 420,000 100%
Acquisition (23) $ 450,000 $ 360,000 80% $ 90,000 20%
Compensable Utilities $ - $ - 0% $ - 100%

'Construction
Participating $ 14,000,000 $ 14,000,000 100% $ - 0%
B40-0709 $ 175,500 $ 3,510 2% $ 171,990 98%
C40-0114 $ 100,000 $ - 0% $ 100,000 100%
Sidewalk $ 3,680,000 $ 920,000 25% $ 2,760,000 75%

Non-Participating $ 5,000 $ - 0% $ 5,000 100%

Total Cost Distribution $ 19,980,500 $ 16,433,510 $ 3,546,990
1 Estimates mnclude construction engineering

This request shall constitute agreement between the Municipality and the State; is subject to the terms and
conditions that follow (pages [2] - [4]); is made by the undersigned under proper authority to make such request
Central File Planning\Project Agreement\Milwaukee County Page I of4 ID 2265-09-01_7I- SE Region



for the designated Municipality, upon signature by the State, upon fully executed signature of applicable State
Municipal Mamtenance Agreement and delivery to the Municipality The initiation and accomplishment of the
improvement will be subject to the applicable federal and state regulations. No term or provision of neither the
State/Municipal Financial Agreement nor any ofits attachments may be changed, waived or terminated orally but
only by an instrument in writing executed by both parties to the State/Municipal Financial Agreement.

Signatures certify the content has not been altered by the mumc1pahty
Signed for and in behalf of the City of Franklin (please sign in blue ink)

Name (print) John R Nelson Title Mayor

Signature Date

Name (print) Karen L Kastenson Title City Clerk

Signature Date

Prov1s1ons have been made to pay the hab1hty thatwill accrue under this contract

Name (prmnt) Dantelle L Brown Title Director of Fmance & Treasurer

Signature Date

Approved as to form and execution

Name (print) Jesse AWesolowski Title City Attorney

S1onature Date

Signed for and mn behalf of the State (please sign in blue ink)

Name Tony Barth TitleWisDOT SE Region Planning Chief

Sianature Date

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1. The Municipality shall pay to the State all costs incurred by the State in connection with the improvement which
exceeds federal/state financing commitments or are ineligible for federal/state financing. Local participation
shall be limited to the items and percentages set forth in the Summary ofCosts table, which shows Municipal
funding participation. In order to guarantee the Municipality's foregoing agreements to pay the State, the
Municipality, through its above duly authorized officers or officials, agrees and authorizes the State to set off
and withhold the required reimbursement amount as determined by the State from General Transportation
Aids or any moneys otherwise due and payable by the State to the Municipality.

2 Funding of each project phase is subject to inclusion in an approved program and per the State's Facility
Development Manual (FDM) standards. Federal aid and/or state transportation fund financing will be limited
to participation in the costs ofthe following items as specified in the Summary ofCosts:

(a) Design engineering and state review services.

Central File: Planmng\project Agreement\Mdwaukee County Page 2 of4 ID 2265-09-01_71-- SE Region



(b) Real Estate necessitated for the improvement.

(c) Compensable utility adjustment and railroad force work necessitated for the project.

(d) The grading, base, pavement, curb and gutter, and structure costs to State standards, excluding the cost of
parking areas.

(e) Storm sewer mains, culverts, laterals, manholes, inlets, catch basins, and connections for surface water
drainage of the improvement; including replacement and/or adjustments ofexisting storm sewer manhole
covers and inlet grates as needed.

(f) Construction engineering incidental to inspection and supervision of actual construction work, except for
inspection, staking, and testing of sanitary sewer and water main.

(g) Signing and pavement marking necessitated for the safe and efficient flow oftraffic, including detour routes.

(h) Replacement of existing sidewalks necessitated by construction and construction of new sidewalk at the
time of construction. Sidewalk is considered to be new if it's constructed in a location where it has not
existed before.

() Replacement ofexisting driveways, in kind, necessitated by the project.

(J) New installations or alteration resulting from roadway construction of standard State street lighting and
traffic signals or devices. Alteration may include salvaging and replacement ofexisting components.

3 Work necessary to complete the improvement to be financed entirely by the Municipality or other utility or
facihty owner includes the following items:

(a) New installations of or alteration of sanitary sewers and connections, water, gas, electric, telephone,
telegraph, fire or police alarm facilities, parking meters, and similar utilities

(b) New installation or alteration ofsigns not necessary for the safe and efficient flow of traffic.

(c) Roadway and bridge width in excess ofstandards.

(ct) Construction inspection, staking, and material testing and acceptance for construction of sanitary
sewer and water main.

(e) Provide complete plans, specifications, and estimates for sanitary sewer and water main work. The
Municipality assumes full responsibility for the design, installation, inspection, testing, and operation of
the sanitary sewer and water system. This relieves the State and all of its employees from the liability for
all suits, actions, or claims resulting from the sanitary sewer and water system construction.

(f) Parking lane costs.

(g) Coordinate, clean up, and fund any hazardous materials encountered for city utility construction. All
hazardous material cleanup work shall be performed in accordance to state and federal regulations.

4 As the work progresses, the Municipality will be billed for work completed which 1s not chargeable to
federal/state funds. Upon completion ofthe project, a final audit will be made to determine the final division of
costs.

5 If the Municipality should withdraw the project, it shall reimburse the State for any costs incurred by the State
in behalfof the project.

6 The work will be administered by the State and may include items not eligible for federal/state participation.

7 The Municipality shall, in cooperation with the State, assist with public relations for the project and
announcements to the press and such outlets as would generally alert the affected property owners and the
community of the nature, extent, and timing of the project and arrangements for handling traffic within and

Central Fle Planning\Project Agreement\Milwaukee County Page 3 of4 ID 2265-09-01_71- SE Region



around the project.

8 Basis for local participation:

(a) Funding for preliminary engineering 100% State

(b) Funding for real estate required for standard roadway construction, 100% State. Funding for real estate
required for sidewalk installation (22) is 100% Municipal where the sidewalk construction is funded by the
Municipal 100%. Funding for real estate required for sidewalk mstallation (23) is 80% State 20% Municipal
where the sidewalk construction is funded 80/20.

(c) Funding for compensable utilities required for standard roadway construction, 100% Municipal

(d) Funding for construction ofstandard roadway items - 100% State.

(e) Funding for new sidewalk, 25% State 75% Municipality. Overall percentage calculated based on aggregated
costs for two sections ofsidewalk. Costs for section 1 (north ofRyan Road) are 80% State, 20% Municipal
for standard sidewalk width, plus 100% Municipal for additional I ft ofwidth beyond standard. Costs for
Section 2 (south ofRyan Road) are 100% municipal.

(f) Funding for B40-0709 2% State, 98% Municipal. Overall percentage based on aggregated cost ofwork on
bridge. Extension ofbridge to accommodate sidewalk installation on structure is I 00% Municipal. Repairs
to railing on bridge are I00% State

(g) Funding for C40-0114 100% Municipal for extension ofstructure for sidewalk installation.

(h) Funding for non-participating items 100% Municipality.

Comments and Clarification: This agreement is an active agreement that may need to be amended as the project
is designed. It is understood that these amendments may be needed as some issues have not been fully evaluated
or resolved. The purpose ofthis agreement is to specify the local and state involvement in funding the project.
A signed agreement is required before the State will prepare or participate in the preparation ofdetailed designs,
acquire right-of-way, or participate in construction of a project that merits local involvement.

Central File Planning\Project Agreement\Milwaukee County Page 4 of4 ID 2265-09-01_71 - SE Region



STATE/MUNICIPAL

MAINTENANCE

AGREEMENT

Date. August 22, 2023
ID 2265-09-71
Road Name: STH 241
Limits: W Elm Road to W Villa Drive
County: Milwaukee

The signatory City of Franklin, hereinafter called the Municipality, through its undersigned duly authorized
officers or officials, hereby requests the State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the
State, to initiate and affect this agreement to include the associated maintenance responsibilities hereinafter
described.

The authority for the Municipality to enter into this agreement with the State is provided by Section 84.07(1) of the
Statutes. Wisconsin statutes, Wisconsin Administrative Code, and State policy serve as the defining documents for
State Highway maintenance responsibilities.

DESCRIPTION OF FACILITY:

Facility description upon completion ofState project -As determined by project ID 2265-09-71

This request shall constitute agreement between the Municipality and the State; is subject to the terms and
conditions that follow (pages [2] - [3]); is made by the undersigned under proper authority to make such
request for the designated Municipality and upon signature by the State, delivery to the Municipality and
upon fully executed signature of associated, applicable State Municipal Financial Agreement for project
2265-09-71. The initiation and signature of the agreement will be subject to all the applicable federal and state
regulations. No term or provision of neither the State/Municipal Maintenance Agreement nor any of its
attachments may be changed, waived or terminated orally but only by an instrument in wnting executed by
both parties to the State/Municipal Maintenance Agreement.

Central File I\Planning\Agreements\Maintenance_Agreements! Page 1 of3 Milwaukee- SE Region



Signatures certify the content has not been altered by the mumc1pahty
Signed for and m behalf of the City of Franklin (please sign in blue ink)

Name (print) John R Nelson Title Mayor

Signature Date

Name (pnnt) Karen L Kastenson Title City Clerk

Signature Date

Prov1s1ons have been made to pay the hab1hty thatwill accrue under this contract

Name (onnt) Danielle L Brown Title Director of Finance & Treasurer

Signature Date

Approved as to form and execution

Name (print) Jesse AWesolowski Title City Attorney

S10nature Date

Signed for and m behalf of the State (please sign in blue ink)

Name Bran Roper TitleWisDOT SE Region Maintenance Chief

Sianature Date

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1. In order to guarantee the Municipality's foregoing agreements to maintain the facility to State standards, the
Municipality, through its above duly authorized officers or officials, agrees and authorizes the State to set
off and withhold General Transportation Aids or monies otherwise due and payable by the State to the
municipality, as determined by the State, for any maintenance the State must perform to the facility should
the Municipality fail to comply with the agreement.

2. The State will not install any additional items, not necessitated for the safe and efficient flow of traffic, to a
state highway facility without the Municipality agreeing to maintain those items. The State is responsible for
maintaining the through travel way ofany given highway facility under the State's jurisdiction including:

(a) The energy, operation, repair and replacement of traffic signals and associated street lghtmng required for
the signalized intersections within the limits ofthis agreement for:

1. Signalized intersections at STH 241 and W Oakwood Rd, Ryan Rd (STH 100), W Puetz Rd and
W Drexel Ave.

(b) Signing and pavement marking necessitated for the safe and efficient flow of traffic except those items
listed in #3.

Central File \\Planning\Agreements\Maintenance_Agreementsl Page 2of3 Milwaukee- SE Region



(c) Permitting authority ofutilities and access control on all State Trunk, US and Interstate Highways.

3. The Municipality shall at its own cost and expense maintain all portions within the specified limits of this
agreement that lie within its jurisdiction for such maintenance through statutory requirements in a manner
satisfactory to the State and shall make ample provision for such maintenance each year to include:

(a) Maintain all items outside, and under, the travel way to include, but not limited to curb and gutter,
drainage facilities, sidewalks, pedestrian refuge islands.

(b) Remove snow and ice from sidewalks, and pedestrian refuge islands.

(c) Implement a street sweeping program to help prevent the accumulation of dirt, sand, leaves, paper, or
other clogging debris.

(d) Maintain the storm sewer system to provide a free flow condition throughout the life of the facility
including, but not limited to, annual inspection of inlets, catch basins, manholes, pipe; annual cleaning
and removal of blockages, replace broken or malfunctioning castings, grates, grit covers, risers, covers
and frames; repair top slabs along with bottom and walls ofbasins. Routine mortar repairs such as tuck
pointing and plastering to the inlets, catch basins, and manholes

(e) Maintain and accept responsibility for the energy, operation, maintenance, repair, and replacement of
the street lighting system.

i. The Municipality shall obtain a permit from the State.

ii. The Municipality shall accept responsibility for locating utilities for Digger's Hotline.

iii. If at any time the Municipality should choose to turn off or remove street lighting, in part or in
whole, funded with federal/state dollars, the State will determine potential conflicts and
approve/disapprove such request. If removal is approved by the State, the Municipality will
reimburse to the State an amount determined by Federal and State coordination

(f) Maintain clear right-of-way ofall encroachments.

(g) Maintain crosswalk pavement markings at unsignalized intersections and mid-block crossings in
accordance with the signing and marking agreement ifcompleted as part ofthis project.

(h) Maintain signs and pavement markings not necessary for the safe and efficient movement of traffic (no
parking signs, wayfinding signs, etc.) in accordance with the signing and marking agreement if
completed as part ofthis project.

() Maintain and accept responsibility for the following as apphcable to this agreement·

l. Structures: clearance ofsnow and/or ice from the sidewalk on the structure.

2. Curb & gutter: surface repair

3. Grass: mowing, repair tire ruts in turf, weed control, litter removal.

4. Other (please identify) Utilities water & sanitary

4. The Municipality will coordinate with the State to obtain any necessary Work on Right-of-Way Permits for
maintenance performed on or within the state highway facility or state right-of-way.

5. This agreement does not remove the current municipal maintenance responsibility.

6. The State or Municipality may request an amendment to this agreement to include specific features later
requested by the Municipality throughout the design process.

7. Upon completion of construction project, 2265-09-71, the Mumcipality will assume all afore mentioned
maintenance responsibilities.

Central File I\Planning\Agreements\Maintenance_Agreements\ Page3 of3 Milwaukee- SE Region



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

~
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

AResolution to Enter a Memorandum of Agreement with the
Wisconsin Department of Transportation
For 116 Street Trail (ID 2976-00-02)

MTG. DATE
September 5, 2023

ITEM NO.
Aid. Dist. 6

BACKGROUND
Staff is working to develop the S. 116" Street Trail in the Wisconsin Electric Power Company
(WE Energies) property. Project is expected to be awarded in December 2023 and construction to
commence about August 1, 2024. The delay is to allow We Energies sufficient time to do a
construction project prior to the trail construction.

On August 15, 2023 a resolution was adopted to modify a license agreement with We Energies
that extended the length of time to a minimum of 20-years. Since that time, Wisconsin Department
of Transportation (WisDOT) has requested that the City sign a Memorandum of Agreement that
the City acknowledges that if the license agreement should be terminated prior to 20-years, the
City is obliged to repay the Federal Highway Administration the construction costs. The attached
agreement is in WisDOT's form.

ANALYSIS
Note that We Energies does not have a history of removing any pathways that have been granted
use through a licensing agreement. WisDOT is trying to cover all bases related to the stipulations
imposed by funding from the Federal Highway Administration- the source of funding for this
project.

OPTIONS
Approve. Denial of the agreement would halt the entirety of the project and jeopardize the City
from future funding of projects.

FISCAL NOTE
Not applicable.

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt Resolution 2023- A resolution to enter a Memorandum of Agreement with the
Wisconsin Department of Transportation for 116th Street Trail (ID 2976-00-02)

Engineering Department: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 ----

A RESOLUTION TO ENTER A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT WITH THE
WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

FOR 116" STREET TRAIL (ID 2976-00-02)
.. t-..-.------.---

WHEREAS, the Wisconsin Electric Power Company (WE Energies) owns a rail segment
property of the now defunct Milwaukee Electric Railway and Light Company, also referred to as
the Milwaukee Interurban Lines that connected Hales Comers and Waukesha by passing though
the St. Martins Junction; and

WHEREAS, the City is planning a pathway between the intersection of S. 116 Street and W.
Mayers Drive, passing southerly crossing W. Road, and continuing to the municipal boundary with
Muskego; and

WHEREAS, Wisconsin Department of Transportation and Federal Highway Administration is
partially funding the project with a Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality grant that requires a minimum
of 20-years of use as a trail after the project is complete; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin has a 20-year commitment for a trail use with WE Energies.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, that the City sign a Memorandum of Agreement with the Wisconsin Department of
Transportation for 116th Street Trail (ID 2976-00-02).

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of 2023, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of 2023

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

CITY OF FRANKLIN

AND

THE WISCONSIN DPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Project ID: 2976-00-02

Highway: Non-Highway

Limits:

County: Milwaukee

This memorandum of agreement summarizes the repayment of costs that the sponsor City of Franklin
would be responsible to pay back to the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA} through WisDOT
should the license agreement between the sponsor and We Energies be terminated earlier than the
useful life of the project fundingwas encumbered for.

For the purposes of this agreement, useful life period of the License Agreement for a trail on WE
Energy corridor shall be defined as 20 years after the acceptance of the constructed project.

Should the license agreement be terminated by either the City of Franklin orWE Energies prior to the
completion of the useful life period, the sponsor shall be responsible to remit the proportional cost of
the trails remaining useful life. This shall be calculated as a fraction of time left in the useful life
multiplied by the amount of Federal dollars utilized in the completed project. Payment shall be
remitted by the sponsor to FHWA via WisDOT within 90 days of termination of the agreement.

John R. Nelson, Mayor of City of Franklin

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

Jesse A. Wesolowski, City Attorney- Approved as to form

Authorized signature of WisDOT

Date

Date

Date

Date



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Authorization to Add an Associate Planner
Position to the Planning Department

MEETING
DATE
915123

ITEM NUMBER

G..i.

Background

The Planning Department has experienced significant understaffing over the last few years.
Additionally, the City has many upcoming projects requiring Planning staff involvement and
mandated projects requiring completion. As such, Mayor Nelson and the staff request approval to
add an Associate Planner position to the Planning Department.

Human Resources Manager Dana Zahn and the Planning Manager interviewed four people for this
anticipated position. One of the interviewees who is being highly considered is our Planning
Intern.

Fiscal Impact

Staff anticipates that this new position will start at Grade 7 {Associate Planner); however, if a
candidate is more qualified, we may have to hire at a level up to the midpoint or even at the
market rate (65%) of Grade 7. This position has been added to the 2024 budget. Please note the
specifics for a budget amendment for 2023 will be forthcoming, supplied by our Finance
Department.

Recommendation

Mayor Nelson and staff are recommending approval to add an Associate Planner position to the
Planning Department.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize staff to add an Associate Planner position to the Planning Department.

Mayor/DOA-KH/HR-DZ



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION MTG.DATE
September 5, 2023

Reports &
Recommendations

Continued Discussion of a W. Puetz Road Pathway from
S, 76h Street to W. St. Martins Road

ITEM NO.
Ald. Dist. 1 & 2

G.12.

BACKGROUND
At the suggestion from the Board ofPublic Works, the Common Council directed Staff to proceed
with contacting neighbors to the W. Puetz Road corridor (from S. 76" Street to W. St Martins
Road) and solicit input concerning a possible Puetz Road Pathway. A neighborhood meeting was
held on Tuesday, August 29, 2023 with the assistance of Alderman Ed Holpfer and Alderwoman
Michelle Eichmann that share an aldermanic boundary along this section (District 1 south side and
District 2 north side). Any property adjoining this section of roadway was mailed an invitation
and a notice was distributed for social media purposes to any and all others that might be interested.
The meeting was well attended (estimated over 50 attendees) and other input has been received
via email in response to publication ofthe meeting on various social media.

Some expressed frustration that the City cannot provide plans for this project. At this time, this is
not a project and public input was solicited to help guide the decision-making process. Although
the definitions of the word's "pathway", "trail" and "sidewalk" are addressed in the following
writeup, these terms are mostly used interchangeably throughout this Council Action by Staff and
comments without differentiation or presumption of a final design.

ANALYSIS
Although it is estimated that there were more than 50 in attendance to the August 29 neighborhood
meeting, only 31 people signed in. The message to all was that there is no pre-conceived project
underway. The meeting and solicitation of comments were to gather input.

As of August 30, 2023, forty three comments have been received from forms submitted at the
neighborhood meeting or via email. The forms asked for the following:

Name & Address
My property borders W. Puetz Road: YES/NO (choose one). If so, please provide
your telephone number and email address so that we can contact you in the future, if
needed.
If there were a pathway for this corridor, I would use it for: BICYCLING/WALKING
/ WOULDN'T USE IT (choose one)
I think that a pathway along this corridor is a GOOD/BAD idea (choose one) because:
IF a Puetz Pathway Project is pursued, the best location for a pathway would be
NORTH SIDE/ SOUTH SIDE/NO PREFERENCE (choose one) because:

• Other Comments:

•
•

•

•
•

Of the 43 responses, 28 (65%) believe that a pathway along this corridor is a good idea, 12 (28%)
believed it is a bad idea and 3 (7%) had no opinion. 16 responses said that they would use this for
bicycling, 24 said that they would use it for walking, and 10 would not use it. The comments,
grouped according to their vote, concerning this question are as follows:

Good Idea
• Since moving to Franklin in 2019, one ofthe only disappointments we've had wth our

neighborhood/location is how solated it is from other neighborhoods or public amenities
like trails, parks, etc It has been frustrating to be wthin reasonable walking or biking



distance ofso many things, but unable to safely find a route to get there, especwlly with
children Additionally, while my family can ride our bikes within our immedate
neighborhood/subdivision, there really is no way to connect to the trails or otherpathways
in the areafor longer rides

• There is no safe way to walk, bike, or even go around ups, delivery companies, broken
down cars, etc Also, with the lack oflighting makes it a hazard.

• Recreation
• Safety ofpeople who walk along this road
• The current road has no shoulder and dangerous to walk/run on
• You can't walk down Puetz right now the waypeople drive
• Good idea but the speeding cars have to be stopped
• Fix pot holes, safe driving, walking, lower speed limit to 30 mph
• Much safer to walk & bike on Puetz Hopefully would slow down speeders
• There are manypeople who walk this road, at dusk and due to the hillsyou can't see people

until the last min My nephew who rides his bike to school has almost been hit multiple
times because there is no path from the 84th & Puetz neighborhood to the path to the
middle school

• There is no shoulderfor anyone to walk along the road
• Concerns-Snow removal & who is in charge
• Cars pass on the left on No-Pass zone going east If someone is biking or walking, cars
swerve toward the left.

• It would make it saferfor individuals &families to enjoy recreational activities It would
also help make Franklin a more walkable suburb/city

• Safer connection to innovative, theater, soccer, & city common areasfrom residents near
Puetz it is also very hard to see people at night

• As an avid runner and cyclist, it can be difficult to navigate a route from my home on
Blackbird Trail to the Oak Leaf Trail. Puetz is very navigable to the east of 76th St.,
however, the roadway to the west is very narrow with minimal shoulder to walk/run/bike

Bad Idea
• I am not in favor ofthe pathway as I believe the money could be put to better use People

drive everywhere There are just not that manypeople that walk or run There will always
be those who walk their dogs but they can continue to walk the dogs in their subdivisions

• I am definitely and strongly opposed to such a proposalfor thefollowing reasons
o There is not enough information presented to understand thefull project/impact
o I'm afraid my shed would have to be torn down That's the only reason I would vote

bad idea.
• Traffic is heavy at late afternoon with people coming home
• Very busy road & speeding by cars Never goodfor trick n treaterspeople will get hit
• Culvert, loss oftrees, trash, like the ruralfeel ofthe area
• Drainage, sump pump discharge, snow removal, changing way oflife
• Involves maintenance for the city when it snows. I it was a sidewalk more work for the
residents Wouldfeel lessprivate in the area

• This is a traditionally rural road and should be preserved as such There are many local
parks and an extensive trail system east of76th on Puetz (Oak Creek Parkway)

• Need to eliminate grassy areas/trees no matter which side of the road. Cost to build up
existing and create new drainage dtches So many other ways to walk the neighborhoods
on either side ofPuetz to get to either 76th or WSt. Martins Who will be responsible for
maintaining and would that include snow removal? Will this take away personal property
lot size and create public land.from it (lowering property taxes city would receive)?



When asked if a pathway would be on the north or south side of the road, 13 responses (30%)
preferred the north side, 16 (37%) preferred the south side), and 10 (23%) had no preference. The
comments concerning this question are as follows for each option:

North Preference:
• Apartments/Sr. Living/retail areplannedfor northside ofPuetz-Morepopulation/people to

use path & not cross Puetz. Less impact to existing established lawns/lots
• I vote north side so thepathway doesn't conflict with my shed
• Less culvert, less mail boxes on same side as city hall utilitypoles arefurther back
• Less road crossings to city buildings
• Like how the path was done down Church Street to St. Martins same side
• The north side ofthe street makes more sense so as not to disturb the beautiful large trees

on the south side.
• Trees have already been trimmed
• Trees have already been trimmed

South Preference
• Electrical, hydrants, mail boxes on the north side
• I do not want to give permission to people to stand in myfrontyard or walk in it either!!
My letter said meeting Not Open House

• I would prefer the pathway on the South side ofPuetz as there seems to be more land
available on that side( trees further backfrom the road in manyplaces) andpowerlines
currently located on the north side

• Its easily accessiblefrom our house
• Less intrusive to trees-wetlands and other infrastructure
• Less populated
• Mail boxes & electrical are on the southside
• Mail boxes, fire hydrants on the north side plus water dranage
• Open most ofthe way already
• Seems like this would be the easiest as utilities, mailboxes, fire hydrants, etc , are on the

north side Updates on this project are appreciated!
• Shaded in summer because of trees. More available land for construction. Would be
popular with dog owners.

• The city owns moreproperty on the south side ofthe road
• The majority ofhouses that would access the walkway are south ofthe street

No Preference
• Seems that south side requires more tree removal, North side would require moving

mailboxes
• Switch back & forth

For Other Comments, in order of receipt
•

•

I'm in favor for a more safely connection ofpeople to commute by bike or foot. I don't
currently run this section because it is too dangerous
I do think this is a good idea. Determining which side ofthe road will be a challenge as
I'm sure you have already concluded We happen to live on the South side ofPuetz Rd,
needless to say, we would like to see the pathway on the North side ofPuetz. That being
said, I believe the people that live on the North side ofPuetz will want the pathway to be
on the South side ofPuetz - understandably In reality the decision must be made by city
leaders based on resulting safetyfor users ofthepathway, cost andpotential relocation of
fire hydrants, mailboxes, utilitypoles and re-working ofexisting culverts I don't see this
as bein an inex ensive ro'ect and must wonder where the undin will be com in om.



Whatwill be the cost to mepersonally? Will the citymaintain thepathway and surrounding
landscape? What will the annual maintenance costs be? My reservations, while very self
centered, is landscape maintenance and litter clean up that will result.from increased bike
andfoot traffic My home's back lot borders on the utility easement along the South side
ofPuetz Rd The city has never mowed the lawn ofthe easement or cleaned up the litter,
which has become my responsibility each time Imow the easement lawn. Andfinally, the
mncreased pedestrian and bike traffic that will generate additonal noise and people
wandering in and through my yard to get to the pathway Please take these issues into
account as your/the City's teamplans thepathway

• We would use thisfor walking but only ifthe speed limit drops to 25 and speed bumps are
installed strategically. Otherwise, we would be in serious danger for 50 mph cars
regularly I think this is a good idea because we need space as we are the "suburbs" to
walk or bike But this road is dangerous as the speed is now and the hills blocking views,
etc.

• Please get the speed limits reduced South roadway has several service roadways to
accommodatepathway.

• 1. The proposedpathway would reduce the squarefootage ofmy.front lawn ( impacting
the perceived value ofmyproperty) if it were to be constructed on the south side ofthe
road. 2 Theproposedpathway, and resultingfoot traffic, would increase noise and litter,
andwouldsignificantlyreduce myprivacy, regardless ofconstruction on the north or south
side ofthe roadway 3 Theproposedpathwaywould createforme an extra burden ofsnow
removal if constructed on the south side ofPuetz Rd 4 the proposed pathway would
necessitate the removal ofnumerous valuable trees along PuetzRoad, regardless ofwhich
side ofthe road that construction occurs 5 The money allocatedfor construction would
be much better spent on improving the road surface and obtaining equipment to monitor
and enforce the speed limit, thereby increasing safety.

• I would sayyes andprobably on the north side ofthe road Iwould be great if it could get
safely connected to the currentpath down St Martin's that goes out to Muskego.

• Concerned about any tree removal onSouth side There are huge treeswhose roots should
not be disturbed. Remember shadefor summer

• I like the idea as long as it's on the south side ofthe road and Puetz isn't widened No on
parks on Puetz, plus don't want to encourage additional traffic

• The concern is ifthere are other changes that areplannedfor this area i.e. widen roads to
correspondwith thepathway. What is the scope oftheplan/change to understand the effect
Current andfutureproposedplans

• Its's my understanding there is a path soon constructed along St Martins Rd which I
support I don't see a needfor a path on Puetz I'm worred my shed/structure near the
road would be in conflict & need to be demolished I do not want that to happen I've not
seen manypedestrians & I'll have enough to shovel with the new St Martins Rd path I
don't think we need a path I believe the funds requiredfor thispath could best be used
elsewhere or keep our taxes low by not collecting thesefunds

• As an avid runner/walkerwith a dog, I've tried to use Puetz as a route at times, often early
in the morning when traffic is less, but have stillfound it unsafeforpedestrians due to the
lack ofa shoulder on the road and the hills that limit visibility

• As an avid runner/walker with a dog, I've tried to use Puetz as a route at times, often early
in the morning when traffic is less, but have stillfound it unsafeforpedestrians due to the
lack ofa shoulder on the road and the hills that limit visibility ofoncoming traffic During
the evenings and weekends, there is actually quite a bit oftraffic on Puetz which makes it
pretty much unusableforpedestrians Infact, we often have observed middle/high school
age students using our side yard a pathway when trying to get to their friends' houses
further west down Puetz, or possibly even the Walgreens all the way down on Loomis.
Assuming thepathway is added, we would actually love to see it not end at 76th Street, but
rather continue along Puetz to at least the Oak LeafTrail east of 68th street or possibly



even south down the east side of76th street allowingfor connection to the baseballfields
and Croatian Park. Again, great amenities close to us that are actually difficult to access
by walking or bike at this time

• The hill is byfar the worst section. To help, all the road must be widened If the worry is
just walkers, bikers and the budget, don't touch the road and cut a trail next to the ditch
and asphalt it. Byfar the cheapest and most effective option. Just my 2 cents

• Concerned about traffic speed & Ped/Biker safety
• Widen Puetz Road, no shoulder makes it difficult to bike or walk, where the other side of

76th St is wide with bike lane and shoulder Re-pave, slow down speeders Crosswalk at
89th?

• Great improvements would be appreciated
• Only have seen 1 person walking occasionally on Puetz Rd
• Are you planning to widen the road?
• Please also consider extending the path from 35th & Puetz to 27th and Puetz The

intersection ofPuetz & Hwy 100 is also very dangerous
• My thoughts on Puetz Pathway, if it was done 1 would use it to ride my bike up and down

Puetz road. To me there is no question which side ofthe road it should be on, the south
side, why the northside you havepower lines, water lines &mail boxes & the pizza business
on the northside ofthe road Is the City ofFranklin going to move all that or have cars
going to the pizza place drive over the walkingpath, that would be unsafeforpeople using
the walking path? Puetz road is a busy road, living on itfor 27 years I have seen way too
many speeders on it and have never seen someone stoppedfor speeding. The speed limit is
35, it should be 25, and it should have a few stop signs on it between 76th street and St.
Martins Rd. How will thispath be maintained, will it affect our taxes, in the winter who is
responsiblefor removing the snow? I think the path is a good idea, I would use it a lot, but
there is a lot ofunanswered questions about it You asked our opinion, now what happens,
how will we be informed as to what's next? Thank you for your time and please keep us
informed

• City hall needs a changing table. Who is going to do snow removal ifthe city owns behind
my barn why are we having to mow it

• Would rather have a shoulder added to the road on Puetz would cost lessfor the city
• Don't want money taken away from essential services (Police, Fire, Etc .. .) for Path on

Puetz Don't want a sidewalk on Southside (my Property), I don't want to maintain it
(shoveling, litter) Ipurchased myproperty w/o sidewalk & am happy keeping it that way
Space between path & road should be non-mowable vegetation. Plant w/ natives/planting
that don't need to be mowed & can control run-offfrom paved surface.

• I am opposed if I will be responsible for snow removal/maintenance It needs to be a
pathway not a side walk. I am also concerned ifI would be responsible for assisting with
payingfor it . There would be servicefee

• I meant to attend the meeting but couldn't make it and hope to give some input. I live in the
Security Acres neighborhood, owning a homefor 13 years. When Ifirst bought I received
mail with different designsfor Puetz with sidewalks and never heard anything more I'm
actually shocked there's never been any sidewalks. Driving to work it's always dangerous
when I see someone, especially children, walking down that road I'm surprised nobody
has been killed yet A sidewalk is long overduefor traffic and safety. Also, on the subject,
I'm also curious to why the stretch between 76th andHwy JOO isn't completely a no passing
zone I've come close to accidentspersonallyform someone dangerouslypassing One time
having to drive into a lawn to avoid a head on collision Just an added observation

• The road isjunk widen it andput sidewalks in like you intended 15 years ago My service
drive has turned to gravel, don't' care about new comers wanting an easy access to the
bike tral, kids don't use it. Lived in Franklinfor 50 plus years this city turned to ![



• There are many other ways to get from 76th St. to W. St. Martins Rd walking thru
subdivisions on either side ofPuetz. 1 would walk small portions ofa straightpath along
Puetz but never the whole stretch.

• As I've gotten older and now have afamily that enjoys biking together, our travels to the
Oak Leaf Trail take us to Margaret Lane, which parallels Puetz at that point.
Unfortunately, my little bikers must then cross 76th St. with no crosswalk at the intersection
of 76th /Margaret. More so, as we look ahead to having a middle school student in our
family, there is the possibility that they may walk or bike to Forest Park, however, the
thought of them being on Puetz for even a few blocks is somewhat terrifying without a
better path oftravel. The idea ofa pathway on the south side ofPuetz would offer a direct
connection from those neighborhoods to the west of76th St to the Oak leafTrail and other
neighborhoods that reside east of76th St.

Not included in the tally above is a response received via email from Ryan McMurtrie, EVP
Director of Development for United Financial Group, Inc. which owns approximately 52.63 acres
of land directly east of the intersection of STH 36 (W. Loomis Rd.) and STH 100 (W. St. Martins
Road) on the north side of W. Puetz Road. who wanted to provide the following response:

• We think constructing a pathway along the W. Puetz Rd. corridor is a great idea as it will
provide those living in the area with a safe way to walk throughout the neighborhood.

• We wouldprefer to see the pathway constructed along the north side ofthe road.
o The 22. 63 acres directly south ofBrenwood Park Dr. and W. Highlands Park Ave.

is currently approvedfor 286 units (154 age-restricted 55+ senior apartments and
132 high-end market-rate apartments) as PDDNo. 31.

o We have been in discussions with the City regarding a mixed-use conceptplanfor
the 30-acres directly east ofthe intersection ofW. Loomis Rd. and W. St. Martins
Road since the summer of2021 that is planned to include a public walking path
through the wetlands on the eastern edge (directly west ofPDDNo. 31).

o We would support a coordinated effort to connect the proposed W. Puetz Rd.
corridor walkingpath with the proposed wetland walkingpath to provide existing
and future residents with connectivity throughout the area. This would enable
future sidewalks to be coordinated in a way to eventually expandpedestrian access
evenfurther.

• We would appreciate the opportunity to meet with you and other members ofthe City's
planning and engineering staffin thefuture as weprogress with refining our proposalsfor
the 52.63 acres north ofW. Puetz Rd.

STAFF ANALYSIS
Considering the solicited comments and observations made at the neighborhood meeting, Staff
offers the following comments to answer some of the more common questions or concerns.

Original Plans. This segment of W. Puetz Road has long been anticipated to have the same cross
section of the segment between S. 76" Street and S. 43" Street. This would be a very expensive
project and the City has been unable to find the funding to make this a reality. A sidewalk/pathway
is a proposed option that is much less expensive or disruptive to the neighboring properties.

Great Interest. It is apparent that this issue is one of interest to the residents along W. Puetz Road
and also the entire community and a pathway would be well used.

Safety. The existing road cross section does not accommodate bicycles or pedestrians. The
shoulders drop off to wet ditches in many locations so widening the road is not an easy option.



Road widening alternatives. Although there are some comments to the contrary, it is apparent
that pedestrian and bicycle use along the current condition of the roadway is a significant problem
that needs a solution.

Connectivity. A pathway in this location would allow many neighborhoods to connect to the new
pathway to be constructed along STH 100 (St Martins Road) on the western end. For the eastern
end, S. 76 Street is more accommodating to pedestrians and bicyclist and the W. Puetz Road
section east of S. 76" Street has wide shoulders to accommodate bicycles and pedestrians and also
connects to the Milwaukee County Root River Branch of the Oak Leaf Trail.

Road Configuration and Speed. The often busy W. Puetz Road has some vertical curves (crests)
that provide visual sight restrictions. The road is posted at 3 5 mph but numerous verbal comments
were made that careless and fast vehicles often pass where passing is restricted. This segment of
W. Puetz Road is an arterial and 35 mph is appropriate.

Road Surface Condition. Many noted the poor condition of the pavement. Resurfacing has been
held off for many years in hopes of funding a larger road project. The resurfacing can no longer
be delayed and a portion of the road has been prepped for the 2024 resurfacing program. No
significant widening of the roadway is planned. Unfortunately, a smoother pavement will only
exacerbate the speeding and careless drivers noted above. An alternative sidewalk/pathway will
be even more needed after repaving.

.
Natural Features. Wetlands and trees are indeed a concern for any project and will need careful
planning to minimize the impacts of a new sidewalk/pathway. Note that ditches will be addressed
and trees will be trimmed in preparation of the paving program regardless of the decision to
proceed with a pathway project.

Snow Removal. Many in opposition, and some in favor of a pathway, were concerned about
wintertime snow removal obligations. The City's policy is that, with a few exceptions, residents
are responsible for snow removal within 24-hours of a storm for a sidewalk. However, DPW will
clear snow as part of the overall snow fighting responsibilities for a pathway. A pathway has
been interpreted as a section that has a width that accommodates DPW equipment (minimum of
6-feet).

Maintenance. Regardless of a 5-foot concrete sidewalk or a 10-foot asphalt path, non-snow
maintenance would not be the responsibility of the property owner but be the responsibility of the
City.

Pathway width. As noted above, pathways have a minimum of 6-feet, but grant funding agencies
would likely require an 8 or 10-foot pathway width.

Land Acquisition. Unlike needs for a road system, Wisconsin State Statutes do not allow
condemnation of property for a trail/pathway. Therefore, if property were needed for a pathway,
the property owner would have to be a willing seller. From recent WisDOT seminars, a road
widening that includes a sidewalk would likely be allowed to proceed with condemnation- but
definitely not a project specifically for a trail/pathway. If a decision is made to locate a path on a
certain side that needs property from a property owner that is unwilling to sell, then
accommodations that may include curbing, storm sewers would have to be considered.

Right-of-way. Generally, the City has ample right-of-way throughout the project to install a
pathway. There are some pinch-points on both sides of the road that would be beneficial to
purchase some parts of land and could, with some expense, be designed without impacting tight
locations.



Switching sides throughout the corridor. Having a major pathway crossing a road like W. Puetz
Road is not desirable. Staff would recommend that one side be selected, unless a crossing could
be made at a controlled intersection that is not currently available in this segment.

Assessments. The City may / may not assess for any and all public improvements. Historically
the City has not assessed for sidewalks/pathways in predominant residential areas. When
assessments have been made for sidewalks/pathways in predominantly business areas, the
municipal code allows for indefinite deferments to residential properties.

Cost of the project to the Franklin taxpayers. It is unknown how much a pathway project would
cost at this time. It is unlikely that a sidewalk project for this area would receive a grant because
there are no immediate connections to schools. However, a pathway project would likely be
competitive for a grant considering the safety, connectivity, and other components. These grants
would likely be 80% or 90% grant funds. In addition, the Park Impact Fees could cover 62% of
the local funds needed. Therefore, the net cost to the city could be only 7.6% or 3.8% of the costs.
If not in Franklin, these grant funds will be spent in other places so would not save the Franklin
tax payers.

Obstructions. Power poles, mailboxes, and other obstructions are a consideration, but can be
accommodated with a careful design.

Side of the Road? Staff believes that either side is constructible. It is not apparent that one side
is substantially more/less expensive than the other. Both sides have challenges and advantages.

OPTIONS
A. Direct Staff to start with project development for Grant applications (80% Transportation

Alternative Program due on October 31, 2023).
B. No Action. Place on file.
C. Other direction to Staff.

FISCAL NOTE
This Puetz Pathway trail project, with a yet unknown budget, would be eligible for 62% park
impact fees. The efforts of a consultant to prepare a budget are expected to be less than $2,500
and can be covered in the existing 2023 Engineering budget (01-0321-5219).

RECOMMENDATION
Option A. Direct Staff to start development of a pathway project.

Engineering: GEM



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

ARESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS
AND RESTRICTIONS FORTHE APPROVAL

OF A SPECIAL USE FORA SPORTS
TRAINING FACILITYUSE UPON

PROPERTY LOCATEDAT 6814 S. 112TH
STREET

(BION STRENGTH AND CONDITIONING
LLC, APPLICANT)

MEETING
DATE

09/05/23

ITEM NUMBER

,.13.

Aid. Dist. #6

At its August 17, 2023, regular meeting, the Plan Commission recommended approval
of the attached special use resolution for a sports training facility use upon property
located at 6814 S. 112th Street. The vote was 5-0-0, five 'ayes', no 'noes' and no
absents.

Fiscal impact: not applicable.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2023-__, imposing conditions and restrictions
for the approval of a special use for a sports training facility use upon property located
at 6814 S. 112th Street.

(Bion Strength and Conditioning LLC, applicant)

Department of City Development: RM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2023---

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[draft 08-17-23]

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A SPORTS TRAINING FACILITY

USE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED
AT 6814 S. 112TH STREET,

(BION STRENGTH AND CONDITIONING LLC, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, Bion Strength and Conditioning LLC, having petitioned the City of
Franklin for the approval of a Special Use within an M-1 Limited Industrial District under
Standard Industrial Classification Title No. 7991 "Physical Fitness Facilities", to operate an
indoor sports training facility with proposed hours of operation Monday through Sunday,
from 6:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m., located at 6814 S. 112 Street, bearing Tax Key No. 748-0063
000, more particularly described as follows:

Lot 4 in Block 2 in NORTH CAPE INDUSTRIAL PARK, being a
Subdivision of a part of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 6, Town 5 North, Range
21 East, in the City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of $15-9.0103D. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commission on the 17th day of August, 2023, and the Plan Commission thereafter having
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain
conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon
such conditions, pursuant to §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive
Master Plan; that it will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that it
will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that it will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services; that it will not cause undue traffic
congestion; and that it will not result in damage to property of significant importance to
nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions,
meets the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition ofBion Strength and Conditioning LLC, for
the approval of a Special Use for the property particularly described in the preamble to this
Resolution, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and
restrictions:



BION STRENGTH AND CONDITIONING LLC -- SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2023---
Page 2

1. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by Bion
Strength and Conditioning LLC, successors and assigns, as a sports training facility
use, which shall be developed in substantial compliance with, and operated and
maintained by Bion Strength and Conditioning LLC, pursuant to the application
materials City file-stamped June 19, 2023 and annexed hereto and incorporated herein
as Exhibit A.

2. Bion Strength and Conditioning LLC, successors and assigns, shall pay to the City of
Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees
incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for
the Bion Strength and Conditioning LLC sports training facility, within 30 days of
invoice for same. Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from
time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Bion Strength and Conditioning
LLC and the sports training facility use for the property located at 6814 S. 112th
Street: (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules,
codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals,
permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to be
developed and as presented for this approval.

4. The property owner or applicant shall submit a Site Plan application attesting
compliance with parking setbacks (UDO Section 15-5.0202C4), parking surfacing
(UDO 15-5.0202F) and driveway width (UDO 15-5.0207B) within 3 months from the
date of approval of this Special Use permit and site improvements shall be installed
within I year from the date of approval of this Special Use permit, otherwise this
Special Use shall be revoked. Alternatively, the applicant may request a variance to
allow for a reduction of the parking setback, subject to approval by the Board of
Zoning and Building Appeals.

5. The property owner or applicant shall submit a Site Plan application attesting
compliance with the required quantity of 8 parking stalls and parking design standards
of UDO Section 15-5.0202 within 3 months from the date of approval of this Special
Use permit and site improvements shall be installed within I year from the date of
approval of this Special Use permit, otherwise this Special Use shall be revoked.

6. The property owner or applicant shall submit a Landscape Plan as part of a Site Plan
application attesting compliance with the minimum required quantity of plant units
within I year from the date of approval of this Special Use permit, otherwise the
Special Use shall be revoked. City Development staff recommends that the majority
of the required plantings should be installed in the 20-foot planting screen along the
east property line.



BION STRENGTH AND CONDITIONING LLC - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2023--
Page 3

7. All signage shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 210 of the Municipal Code
and must receive a Sign Permit from the City Development Department prior to
installation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Bion Strength and Conditioning
LLC, successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply with one
or any of the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution, following a ten (10)
day notice to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council,
upon notice and hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this
Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to $15-9.0502 thereof and $1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than
$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as
may be specified therein from time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a
separate violation. Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of
that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such
Special Use Permit as is contemplated by $15-9.0103 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to $15-9.0103G. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit
for such use

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2023.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2023.



BION STRENGTH AND CONDITIONING LLC- SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2023---
Page 4

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



Franklin
w S C O N S I N

CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of August 17, 2023

Special Use

Item C.1.

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends approval of this Special Use
application subject to the condrtons set forth in this staff report and the attached resolution.

Project name: Bion Strength and Conditioning - Special Use

Property Owner: Specter Holdings LLC

Applicant: Stevan Dukie. Bion Strength and Conditioning LLC

Property Address/TKN: 6814 S. 112h Street / 748 0063 000

Aldermanic District: District 6

Zoning District: M-1Lmmrted Industrial

Staff Planner: Regulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP, CNUa, Principal Planner

Project Description/Analysis
Please note:

• Recommendations are underlmed, in Ltaltcs and are included in the draft resolution.
• Suggestions are only underlined and are not included in the draft resolution.

Special Use request to allow for a sports training facility in a multi-tenant building located in
the M-1 Limited Industrial zoning district. Sports tramning facilities are classified as "Physical
Fitness Facilities" under Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Title No. 7991, which requires a
special use permit in the M-1 zoning district.

The proposed use would be located on the east end of the building. According to the project
narrative, the applicant Is not proposing any exterior improvements at this time.

Sports training fac1lit1es may be allowed by Special Use permit in the M-1 district and are
classified under the Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) No 7991:

7991 Physical Fitness Facilities
Establishments pruarily engaged n operating reducing and other health clubs, spas, and
simlar faclties featuring exercise and other actve physical fitness condtoning, whether
or not on a membership basts. Also included in this industry are establishments providing
aerobc dance and exercse classes.

1



The applicant has submitted a substantially complete application for a special use permit,
allowing for Section $ 15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance sets out the General
Standards for Special Uses. City Development staff does not anticipate adverse impacts to
adjacent properties because the training activities would be conducted inside the building.

UDO Section $ 15-3.0703 Detailed Standards for Special Uses in Nonresidential Districts does
NOT apply to this proJect, as the proposed special use not one of the specified special uses in
this section.

Site compliance
Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Section 15-3.0701A.7, a special use shall
conform to the applicable regulations of the zoning district in which is located, the M-1 Limited
Industrial district mn this case. Staff visited the site on July 21 and noticed the following
noncompliance issues:
a) The site doesn't appear to comply with the required 10-foot parking setback from the south

property line, UDO Section 15-5.0202C4.
b) Parking stalls are not marked by painted lines, UDO 15-5.0202F.
c) The existing driveway appears to exceed the maximum width of 24 feet at the property line

and 30 feet at the edge of the street, UDO 15-5.0207B. Note that the Plan Commission may
approve greater distances with a Site Plan application.

City Development staff recommends that the property owner or applcant shall submt a Site Plan
application attestng compliance with parkng setbacks (UDO Section 15-5.0202C4), parking
surfacing (UDO 15-5.0202F and driveway wdth (UDO 15-5.0207B] within 3 months from the
date ofapproval of_this Specal Use permt and site improvements shall be installed wthmn 1 year
from the date of approval of ths Special Use permit, otherwise this Special Use shall be revoked.

According to the applicant's calculations, the existing Landscape Surface Ration (LSR) Is 0.43
(11,325 sq. ft./26,242 sq. ft.) which is in compliance with the minimum LSR of 0.4.

Parking
The site currently has two separate units: 6812 and 6814 South 112" Street. The parking
requirement for each unit are presented below:
• Unit 6812. Per city records, the last permit issued in 2022 Is for warehouse use. Per UDO

Table 15-5.0203, the parking rato for this use 1s 0.5 parking stalls per 1,000 sq. ft of floor
area. This unit is approx .. 3,900 sq. ft; therefore, the required parking Is 2 stalls.

• Unit 6814. Per this application, the expected parking demand Is 6 parking stalls (applicant,
one trainer/employee and 1-4 customers) Note that the parking ratio for health clubs Is 4
stalls per 1,000 sq. ft of floor area. This unit is approx. 2,000 sq. ft.; therefore, the required
parking Is 8 stalls Per UDO 15-5.0203A, the approval authority (the Common Council for
special uses), may approve reductions of up to 25% below the standard parking ratio.

2



City Development staff recommends approval ofthe reducton ofminimum required parking from
8 stalls to 6 stalls for Unit 6874. The total required parking for the entire srte 1s 8 stalls (Units
6812 and 6814).

CityDevelopment staff recommends that the property owner or applicant shall submit a Site Plan
application attesting compliance with the requtred quantity of8 parkngstalls and parking design
standards of UDO Section 15-5.0202 within 3 months from the date of approval of this Special
Use permit and site improvements shall be installed within 1 year from the date of approval of
this Special Use permit, otherwse this Special Use shall be revoked.

Landscaping
Pursuant to UDO Table 15-5.0302, the required quantity of plantings (trees and shrubs) is based
on the quantity of provided parking. See table below:

Commercial, Office, Institutional and Similar Uses

Type Planting S1ze Minimum Quantity

De 5a - ae 15 cal·er pe pr e;oe g ces

3fe-tt=l

pe ;-- 1 Pd p a o

pe o 1 edp -S ,
Minimum Quantity2,m E h

Planting Size

D= 'a

Manufacturing (Industrial)
1-----------~----------~---------~
Type

Even though, this site is located in an industrial zoning district, the proposed use Is commercal,
so the commercial use table applies.

City Development staff recommends that the property owner or applicant shall submit a
Landscape Plan as part of a Site Plan appltcatwn attesttng complwnce with the minimum
required quantity ofplant units within 7 year from the date ofapproval ofthis Specal Use permit,
otherwise the Specal Use shall be revoked. City Development staff recommends that the maorit
ofthe required plantings should be installed in the 20-footplanting screen along the east property
lne. See append#1.

Staff Recommendation:
City Development Staff recommends approval of this Special Use application subject to the
following cond1t1ons.

3



1. City Development staff recommends that the property owner or applicant shall submit a
Site Plan application attesting compliance with parking setbacks (UDO Section 15
5.0202C4), parking surfacing (UDO 15-5.0202F) and driveway width (UDO 15-5.0207B)
within 3 months from the date of approval of this Special Use permit and site improvements
shall be installed within 1 year from the date of approval of this Special Use permit,
otherwise this Special Use shall be revoked. Alternatively, the applicant may request a
variance to allow for a reduction of the parking setback, subject to approval by the Board
of Zoning and Building Appeals.

2. City Development staff recommends that the property owner or applicant shall submit a
Site Plan application attesting compliance with the required quantity of 8 parking stalls and
parking design standards of UDO Section 15-5.0202 within 3 months from the date of
approval of this Special Use permit and site improvements shall be installed within 1 year
from the date of approval of this Special Use permit, otherwise this Special Use shall be
revoked.

3. City Development staff recommends that the property owner or applicant shall submit a
Landscape Plan as part of a Site Plan application attesting compliance with the minimum
required quantity of plant units within 1 year from the date of approval of thus Special Use
permit, otherwise the Special Use shall be revoked. City Development staff recommends
that the majority of the required plantings should be installed in the 20-foot planting screen
along the east property line.

Appendix #1. Plat of survey dated August 10, 1989.

4



.::>UJJU.LV..L.::>.LUU Ul. d. pa.LL. U.L l..U~ ;:>UUL.llt!dbC ..L/ '¼ OI ::,eci::.ion o, 'own b J\IOrtn
Range 21 East, in the City of'Frankl1n Milwaukee County, W1sons1n' $

Survey No
(Located well, changed street name)

August 10, 1989
Drwg Revised 8/18/89

34 PF

s 1" ~o· 1.3"£
95.00

cO' PLANT/NC .stREEN

75381

J377

EXIST

8UJLDJN602

450

9S.2/ l"Ps
N-1° c8 16 E

/2
(60' D STREETO)

'()

g
4365

1091 4() 19
}...

90 {

~$
).... "~ ~

(), % 13 '1 '1.,,

Pp

SET c PK

):o n4o, 700S

'• ~
~ . 11'.J ~i. ....... ? 2995oN,
3 EXIST

I~ .STORY

4-3 86 CONC BLJ<
~
~ BU!LDJN() g....

ti-
(lo.

NAJLS IN POL,£

EXIST
I.Ye STORY s
CONC BLK 9
BUILD

C)g
~

l 3¥1? ...,
'I)

-38/99'
7'

METROPOLITAN SURVEY SERVICE, INC
REGISTERED LANO SURVEYORS

9-415W FOREST HOME AVE SUITE 107 HALES CORNERS WI 53130
521).-5380

I HEREBYCERTIFYTHATI HAVE SURVEYEDTHE AIIO'v'E DESCRIBED PROPERTYANOTHAT THE /\BOVE
M/IP ISATRUE REPRESENT.-.TIONTHEREOFANDSHOWS THE SIZE ANDLOCATIONOF THE PROPERTY
ITS EXTERIOR BOUNO.-.RIES THE LOC,.TIONOF .-.n VIS1BLE STRUCTURES AND DIMENSIONS OF -'LL
PRINCl""1.OUILDINOS THEREON OOIJNO,,RY FENCES -'PP-'RENT EASEMENTS .-.No ROAOWAYS AND
VISIBLE ENCAO,t,CHMENTS IF ANY



City of Franklin
Department of City Development
Date: July 21, 2023

To: Stevan Dukie. Bion Strength and Conditioning LLC

From: Department of City Development
Regulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP, CNUa, Principal Planner

RE: Application for Special Use Bion Strength and Conditioning
6814 S. 112 Street

Below are staff comments regarding your Special Use application submitted on June 19,
2023:

Department of City Development comments and issues

1. Please provide existing Landscape Surface Ratio (LSR) calculations. Note that the
minimum required LSR in the M-1 zoning district is 0.4 per UDO Table 15-3.03. See
definitions below:

a) LANDSCAPE SURFACEAREA: Surface area ofland not covered by any
building or impervous surface, and that is mantamned as a natural area
and left undisturbed or to supportplant life

b) LANDSCAPE SURFACE RATIO (LSR): The rato derived by dvdng the
area oflandscaped surface by the base site area

2. Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Section 15-3.0701A.7, a
special use shall conform to the applicable regulations of the zoning district in which
is located, the M-1 Limited Industrial district in this case. Staff visited the site on July
21 and noticed the following noncompliance issues:

a) The site doesn't appear to comply with the required 10-foot parking
setback from the south property line, UDO Section 15-5.0202C4.

b) Parking stalls are not marked by painted lines, UDO 15-5.0202F.
c) The existing driveway appears to exceed the maximum width of 24 feet at

the property line and 30 feet at the edge of the street, UDO 15-5.0207B.
Note that the Plan Commission may approve greater distances with a Site
Plan application.

See recommended conditions of approval.

3. See parking requirements below for the entire site (units 6812 and 6814):
a) Unit 6812. Per city records, the last permit issued in 2022 is for warehouse

use. Per UDO Table 15-5.0203, the parking ratio for this use is 0.5 parking
stalls per 1,000 sq. ft of floor area. This unit is approx .. 3,900 sq. ft,
therefore, the required parking is 2 stalls.



b) Unit 6814. Per your application, the expected parking demand is 6 parking
stalls (yourself, one trainer/employee and 1-4 customers). Note that the
parking ratio for health clubs is 4 stalls per 1,000 sq. ft. of floor area. This
unit is approx. 2,000 sq. ft.; therefore, the required parking is 8 stalls. Per
UDO 15-5.0203A, the approval authority (the Common Council for
special uses), may approve reductions ofup to 25% below the standard
parking ratio. Your request is subject to review and approval.

If your request is approved, the total required parking for the entire site would be 8
stalls. The required parking stalls shall be marked by painted lines as noted in
comment #2 and shall comply with the design standards of UDO Section 15-5.0202.
See recommended conditions of approval.

4. Pursuant to UDO Table 15-5.0302, the required quantity of plantings (trees and
shrubs) is based on the quantity of provided parking. See table below:
Commercial, Office, Institutional and Similar Uses

Type Planting S1ze MinimumQuantity

De :i a

25 Fl

p° prc redp

e

Manufacturing (Industrial)

Type Planting Size Minimum Quantity

1 edp? r.c

p°
:,h l. C

Even though, this site is located in an industrial zoning district, the proposed use is
commercial, so the commercial use table applies. See recommended conditions of
approval.

Engineering Department comments

5. No comments.

Fire Department comments

6. FD has no comments/concerns

Inspection Services Department comments

7. Inspection Services has no comments on the proposal at this time.



Recommended conditions of approval
If your Special Use permit request is approved, staff recommends the following
conditions of approval:
1. City Development staff recommends that the property owner or applicant shall submit

a Site Plan application attesting compliance with the parking setbacks (UDO Section
15-5.0202C4), parking surfacing (UDO 15-5.0202F) and driveway width (UDO 15
5.0207B) within 3 months from the date of approval of this Special Use permit and
site improvements shall be installed within 1 year from the date of approval of this
Special Use permit, otherwise this Special Use shall be revoked.

2. City Development staff recommends that the property owner or applicant shall submit
a Site Plan application attesting compliance with the required quantity of 8 parking
stalls and parking design standards ofUDO Section 15-5.0202 within 3 months from
the date of approval of this Special Use permit and site improvements shall be
installed within 1 year from the date of approval of this Special Use permit, otherwise
this Special Use shall be revoked.

3. City Development staff recommends that the property owner or applicant shall submit
a Landscape Plan as part of a Site Plan application attesting compliance with the
minimum required quantity of plant units within 1 year from the date of approval of
this Special Use permit, otherwise the Special Use shall be revoked. City
Development staff recommends that the majority of the required plantings should be
installed in the east end of the site which is labeled as a 20-foot planting screen (see
attached plat of survey).



;.-Franklin..,
WISCONSIN

6814 S. 112th Street
TKN 748 0063 000

lq-~.r·-/~1~
-·· ' ",wonts,

Property

\

rq-

$ 1
- ...._J

M-1

~
., f:''#rm .

'\ J.,.;1$P

• ~- --,- ~~~~c_::__ - f

!·

tm···_ -.. .
!- +
"f f-- - ··y-···

<=" reg~~
"

&#,
i"IE}J
;

ls
--'/~__J
,.;:.-~

This map shows the approximate re/alive location ofproperty
boundaries but was notprepared by a professional land surveyor
This map s provdedfor mformatwnalpurposes only
andmay not be sufficient or appropriatefor legal engmeermg
or surveymgpurposes

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 40 80 160 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aenal Photo



!

Franklin
◄

WISCONSIN

6814 S. 112th Street
TKN 748 0063 000

I I I II I

I ! )

I
!

iJ i f
l

I I Ii i
i;

I
I
I

!
Property l

I

88 /
¥

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 40 80 160 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative locatwn ofproperty
boundaries but was notprepared by a professwnal land surveyor
This map s provdedfor nformatonalpurposes only
andmay not be sufficient or appropnatefor legal engneerug
or surveymgpurposes



Exhibit A

Proposed (Special) Use of 6814 S. 1 12 Street

I, Stevan Dukie, have been a personal trainer/coach since graduating from Carroll
University in 2014. In 2018, I started Bion Strength and Conditioning LLC to focus my efforts on
the world of sports performance. I played for the Carroll University Men's Soccer program and
learned the value of what the weight room could provide and therefore chose to pursue teaching
others of its importance. I continue my education through personal research and reading, along
with online and in-person seminars to keep honing my skills to help provide the best quality of
service I can.

My proposed use of this space would be to keep the intended space as is, but to just fill the
warehouse with training equipment, some already owned and some to still be purchased upon
approval of the usage of space and occupancy. I specialize in baseball and soccer, however, I help
coach athletes of all sports one on one and in small groups (3-4 people at a time). The intended
space has a large parking area, as well as a fully functional bathroom for client usage. The intended
usage of the space would not interfere with the surrounding area as all activity will be provided
within the facility as to not to disturb any neighbors.



DIVISION 15-3.0700

SECTION 15-3.0701

SPECIAL USE STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS

GENERALSTANDARDSFOR SPECIAL USES

A.

1.

2.

General Standards. No special use permit shall be recommended or granted pursuant to
this Ordinance unless the applicant shall establish the following:

Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent. The proposed use and
development will be in harmony with the general and specific purposes for which this
Ordinance was enacted and for which the regulations of the zoning district in question
were established and with the general purpose and intent of the City of Franklin
Comprehensive Master Plan or element thereof.

po>osd us ot( be I or6 wo:H )
Rflpome: I r f f> U 1 , , .LL 1n{ oe Speir wre$4 t> col-'- r+o

ool,w ooo cc le
No Undue Adverse Impact. The proposed use and development will not have a substantial 01

undue adverse or det11mental effect upon or endanger adjacent property, the character of the area,
or the public health, safety, morals, comfort, and1genera1 welfare and not substantially diminish
and impair property values within the community or neighborhood.

Response: The proposcd us o!ll al hue ay adverse elk po
1e lo«l @o«+y or e'-bc hod

3. No Interference with Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development will
be constructed, arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the immediate vicinity or to
interfere with the use and development of neighboring propetty in accordance with the
applicable zoning district regulations

R
fl'<-- 0,-00

1
,:,SeJ 1,,.__:ye_ v-:>,r{( vw--\- fl'lterA..r-e_ .;J:+k +L-.e 1,I.S< CJ.-t'\C)

esponse: j' n i L
el owl or »""¥ o

4 Adequate Public .Facilities. The proposed use and development will be 5erved
adequately by essential public facilities and services such as streets, public utilities including
public water supply system and sanitary sewer, police and fire protection, refuse disposal,
public parks, libraries, schools, and other public facilities and utilities or the applicant will
provide adequately for such facilities.

a a I > ol( $eve adcake esenhal pbli
Response: tr ye Uo ' UR.}a aal 3coco

5. No Traffic Congestion. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic
congestion nor draw significant amounts of traffic through residential streets. Adequate
measures wtll be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize traffic
congestion in the public streets .

•-:-1_ · f oo( uSL- i,JI II aol case «nu unae {(Response: fr o, Ur¢- l

ooq»lo
Page I 1



6. No ))estruction of Significant .Features. The proposed use and development will not result
in the destruction, loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of significant
importance.

7/Y!_ /IY>fOS-eei
Response:

0- fJ'-,lt't
IA,.$C:,. l,,U I {(

st,a1coal
1-o cle shah3o

lo .1-1-<_
l l

us sl.(l o.
e! 44 olsktl ,aResponse:

Compliance with Standards. The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the
applicable regulations of the district in which it is located, except as such regulations
may, in each instance, be modified by the Common Council pursuant to the recommendations
of the Plan Commission. The proposed use and development shall comply with all additional
standards imposed on it by the particular provision of this Division and Ordinance authorizing
such use.

7.

B. Special Standards for Specified Special Uses. When the zoning district regulations authorize
a special use in a particular zoning district and fhat special use is indicated as having special
standards, as set forth in Section 15-3.0702 and 15-3.0703 of this Division, a Special Use
Permit for such use in such zoning district shall not be recommended or granted unless the
applicant shall establish compliance with all such special standards.

re proposed soc«al se sill or-py oH all
Response' spc,l («a(as /. pork'la 2rv+jg dskt}

C.

2

3.

Considerations. In detennining whether the applicant1s evidence establishes that the foregoing
standards have been met, the Plan Commission and the Common Council shall consider the
following:

Public Benefit. Whether and to what extent the proposed use and development at the
particular location requested is necessary or desirable to provide a service or a facility that is
in the interest of the public convenience or that will contribute to the general welfare of the
neighborhood 01 community. f

tk pr,pod Sc o,(A Arc o pslHv ip on
Response: # naal, by prov"y o Hl(/.ll« st«

-»cove eel o.lily /" t.
Alternative Locations. Whether and to what extent such public goals can be met by the
location of the proposed use and development at some other site or in some other area that
may be more appropriate than the proposed site. . 1 ',{ ).

Ar,__I /- I 5 J.-.,'-.,. kc.1t ;/\ve-01\(\--<°l-1:') I/\.Ot.,v'-c✓·(1·1
t(@hr( 2o - v- • /

Response; p. Popes pr+y [. Speck«l s ors1gr.Aon
has bee, / vol 6pp»otak ho.

Mitigation of Adverse Impacts. \Vhether and to what extent all steps possible have been
taken to minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use and development on the immediate
vicinity through building design, site design, landscaping, and screemng

Page I 2



AI po»s.bk
11~r1-y 0[/4-V-Cf-K

hlo
p r--Of<:.5t' cl

1---o fV/t,1//Vl-i'z:.e.

peperEy

4. Establishment of Precedent of Incompatible Uses in the Surrounding Arca. Whether the
use will establish a precedent of, or encourage, more intensive or incompatible uses in the
surrounding area.

Response: ~/4. .,,,.c/eJ s;pc ~1 "c.t,{ 0-SC

~ l,-0{'1,\fal-i'hk u.s--cA

I

Page I 3



Accelerating s

G81-:' S I1/lil Sl C ;r.

tt
8585 W Bradley an

document (7) pdfOr_,Col...

F 25; mm
';

.~ . ~ .

"
•• I



APPROVAL
}

REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

Background

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Discussion Regarding Meeting Time Change for
Plan Commission

MEETING DATE

915123
ITEM NUMBER

G.I4.

Plan Commission meetings start at 7 p.m. Mayor Nelson and the staff would like to discuss adjusting this
time to begin at 6 p.m., allowing less time for the team between the end of their work day and the beginning
of the meeting, where they currently spend two hours of their evening waiting for the Plan Commission
meeting to start. This change also allows staff and Plan Commissioners to leave City Hall an hour earlier.

Recommendation

Mayor Nelson and staff recommend changing the Plan Commission meeting start times to 6 p.m., effective
with the first Plan Commission meeting in October 2023.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to change the Plan Commission meeting start time, leave start time as is currently, or as directed by
Council.

Mayor



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL
~

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Establish 2023 Trick or Treat

MEETING DATE
09/05/23

ITEM NUMBER
.45.

The Council may wish to establish the 2023 Trick or Treat observance at this time for notification.

In 2022, Trick or Treat was held on Sunday, October 30, from 4-7pm. It is recommended that
Saturday, October 28, from 4-7pm be established for 2023.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to establish Saturday, October 28, 2023, from 4-7 pm for the Halloween Trick of Treat
observance in the City of Franklin.

Or as directed

CLERKDEPT



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

}k-

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

BACKGROUND

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Confirmation of the Appointment of Justin Ligocki
as the Director of Inspection Services

The Common Council may enter closed session
pursuant to Wis. Stats. §19.SS(l}(c} and (f} to

consider employment, promotion, compensation,
or performance evaluation data of a public

employee over which the Common Council has
jurisdiction or exercises responsibility and to

consider financial, social, or personal histories of
specific persons which, if discussed in public,
would be likely to have a substantial adverse

effect upon the reputation of any person referred
to in such histories and may re-enter open

session at the same place thereafter to act on
such matters discussed therein as it deems

appropriate.

MEETING DATE

09/05/2023

ITEM NUMBER

Tony Csavoj, Director of Inspection Services, has provided HR with notice of termination effective Friday,
September 29, 2023. However, it is important to Tony to ensure he is leaving the department in good
hands. As a result, Tony highly recommends Justin Ligocki to succeed him. Justin has been employed in
the department for 4 years, has earned the respect of his colleagues, is a strong contributor, a natural
leader, knowledgeable, would offer the department similar leadership to Tony, and knows the culture of
the City and the Department of Inspections. Justin has proven to be a reliable, hardworking, and
collaborative member of the Inspection Services department. Mayor Nelson, Human Resources Manager
Dana Zahn, and Director of Administration Kelly Hersh spoke with Tony regarding his departure, listened to
his reasons for recommending Justin, and interviewed Justin. Mayor Nelson and staff are confident in
Tony's recommendation and trust Justin will successfully fill Tony's position with the City. Justin will be
available at the meeting to answer any questions.

RECOMMENDATION

It is the recommendation of Mayor Nelson and staff for the Common Council to confirm the appointment of
Justin Ligocki as the Director of Inspection Services effective Monday, October 2, 2023, with a starting
salary of $91,000 and an increase of $5,000 after completing a 6-month probationary period and an
increase to a 4-week/year vacation benefit accrual rate. Other benefits will be the standard benefits for
non-represented management employees.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to confirm the appointment of Justin Ligocki as the Director of Inspection Services for the City of
Franklin.

Mayor/DOA-KH/HR-DZ



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

BPC County Land, LLC v. City ofFranklin, Milwaukee
County Circuit Court Case Nos. 2019-CV-8963 and

2021-CV-5581. The Common Council may enter closed
session pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(1)(g), to confer
with legal counsel for the Common Council who is

rendering advice concerning strategy to be adopted by
the body with respect to the subject litigations, and to

reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on
such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

MEETING
DATE

September 5, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

g.11.

As BPC County Land, LLC v City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County Circuit Court Case Nos. 20 19-CV-8963 and
2021-CV-55 81 are litigation matters which are in process and pending at this time, a motion to enter closed
session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel for the Common Council who is
rendering advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to the subject litigation, and to
reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems
appropriate.

Legal Services Dept yw



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Velo Village Apartments, LLC v. City ofFranklin,
Milwaukee County Circuit Court Case No. 2023-CV
5465. The Common Council may enter closed session

pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal
counsel for the Common Council who is rendering

advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body
with respect to the subject litigation, and to reenter open

session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deems appropriate

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

MEETING
DATE

September 5, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

As Velo Village Apartments, LLC v City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County Circuit Court Case No. 2023-CV-
5465 is a litigation matter which is in process and pending at this time, a motion to enter closed session
pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel for the Common Council who is rendering
advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to the subject litigation, and to reenter open
session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

Legal Services Dept jw



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

City personnel performance evaluation. The Common
Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat.

§ 19.85(l)(c), considering employment, promotion,
compensation or performance evaluation data of any
public employee over which the governing body has
jurisdiction or exercises responsibility, Wis. Stat.

§19.85(l)(f), considering financial, medical, social, or
personal histories or disciplinary data of specific persons,

preliminary consideration of specific personnel
problems, or the investigation of charges against specific
persons except where par. (b) applies which, if discussed
in public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse
effect upon the reputation of any person referred to in
such histories or data, or involved in such problems or
investigations, and Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(l)(g), conferring
with legal counsel for the governmental body who is

rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be
adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it
is likely to become involved, and to reenter open session

at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deems appropriate

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

MEETING
DATE

September 5, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

G.19.

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(c), considering employment, promotion,
compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governing body has
jurisdiction or exercises responsibility, Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1 )(f), considering financial, medical, social, or
personal histories or disciplinary data of specific persons, preliminary consideration of specific personnel
problems, or the investigation of charges against specific persons except where par. (b) applies which, if
discussed in public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse effect upon the reputation of any person
referred to in such histories or data, or involved in such problems or investigations, and Wis. Stat. § l 9.85(l)(g),
conferring with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning
strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is likely to become involved, and to
reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems
appropriate.

City Attorney



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

LICENSES AND

PERMITS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES

MEETING DATE
09/05/23

ITEM NUMBER

H.

See attached License Committee Meeting Minutes from the License Committee Meeting of
September 5, 2023.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Approval of the minutes of License Committee Meeting of September 5, 2023.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE



414-425-7500
License Committee Agenda*
Franklin City Hall Hearing Room
9229 W. Loomis Rd, Franklin, WI

September 5, 2023 - 5:45 p.m.

1. Call to Order & Roll Call I Time:
2. Citizen Comment

3. License Applications Reviewed I Recommendations
Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny

Operator Bryce Hedges
2023-2024 Target Store T-2388New

Operator Kamyla Held
2023-2024 Luxe Golf/Dog Haus/ BrickNew

Operator Sandra Kolb
2023-2024 Hideaway Pub & EateryNew

Operator Daniel Luna
2023-2024 Marcus Showtime CinemaNew

Operator Max D McCoy
2023-2024 Target Store T-2388New

Operator Samantha Pisczek
2023-2024 Mulligan's Irish Pub & GrillNew

Operator Liam Rodriguez
2023-2024 Walgreens #05884New

Operator Megan Rongholt
2023-2024 Walgreens #05459New

Operator Lyanna Tibbits
2023-2024 Walgreens # 15020New

Operator Raven Trammel
2023-2024 On the BorderNew

4. Adjournment Time:

*Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over which they have
decision-making responsibility. This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, even

though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting.



APPROVAL

~

Bills

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE
9/5/2023

ITEM NUMBER
I

Attached are vouchers dated August 11, 2023 through August 31, 2023, Nos 193925 through Nos 194172 in the
amount of$ 2,577,908 25 Also included in this listing are EFT's Nos 5421 through EFT Nos 5441, Library vouchers
totaling$ 29,462 10, Tourism vouchers totaling $ 7,500 00, Water Utility vouchers totaling $ 52,730 20 and Property
Tax Refunds in the amount of $ 2,552 60 Voided checks in the amount of $ (3,007 20) are separately listed

Early release disbursements dated August 11, 2023 through August 30, 2023 in the amount of$ 1,902,672 50 are
provided on a separate listng and are also included mn the complete disbursement listing These payments have been
released as authorized under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834

Attached is a list of property tax disbursements, EFT Nos 482 through Nos 488 and EFT Nos 341 (S) through Nos
342 (S) dated August 11, 2023 through August 31, 2023 in the amount of $ 3,847,941 20 $2,637 60 represents
refund reimbursements and $ 3,845,303 60 represents settlements from US Bank There is also an additional
$ 5,588,545 25 of tax settlements from American Deposits These payments have been released as authorized under
Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834

The net payroll dated August 25, 2023 Is $ 685,086 57, previously estimated at $ 660,000 Payroll deductions dated
August 25, 2023 are $ 538,480 15, previously estimated at $ 552,000

The estimated payroll for September 8, 2023 Is $ 465,000 with estimated deductions and matching payments of
$250,000

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Moton approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date of August 31, 2023 in the amount of $ 2,577,908 25

• Payroll dated August 25, 2023 in the amount of $ 685,086 57 and payments of the various payroll deductions mn the
amount of$ 538,480 15, plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated September 8, 2023 in the amount of $ 465,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $ 250,000, plus City matching payments

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Finance Dept - SB/CH


	CAS Municipal Court.pdf
	APPROVAL
	Authorize a Budget Amendment Request for Municipal Court Staffing Needs
	G5






